
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST
ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE MEETING IS
ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' CONFERENCE ROOM,
610 E. HIGHWAY 260, PAYSON, ARIZONA.  

NOTE:  Per the most recent guidelines from the federal government regarding COVID-19 and
to protect citizens, no citizens will be allowed in the Board of Supervisors' hearing room at
the Globe Courthouse or at the County Complex, Board of Supervisors' conference room in
Payson.  The only exception to this statement is for public hearings.  Citizens may attend the
public hearing in person, one at a time, in Globe or in Payson to provide comments. 

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit written comments related to the July 27th Special Meeting agenda by
no later than 5 p.m. on Monday, July 26th, by emailing to the Clerk of the Board at
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Citizens may also submit written
comments during the meeting through YouTube.  Please include the meeting date, agenda
item number, your name and residence address in the email.

SPECIAL MEETING - TUESDAY, JULY 27, 2021 - 10:00
A.M.                 

2nd Revision
 

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of Senator Mark Kelly's staff
introductions.  (Michele Ralston/Taylor Rogers)

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve, deny
or modify Conditional Use Permit application
number CUPP2102-001 to allow a 2-story,
36-foot tall building height for a single-family
residence, measured from grade level to the mean
height between the eaves and roof ridge, the

Approved

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


property is vacant land described as Lot 21 in the
Walnut Glen subdivision in Strawberry, Arizona
(APN 301-60-015B). The property is zoned
Residence One District-Density District 35
(R1-D35). (Randy Pluimer)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Case
No. CPA2103-001, a minor amendment to the
Gila County Comprehensive Plan, to change the
land use designation from Residential 0.1-0.4
du/ac to Mixed Use; approve Case No.
REZONP2103-001, a request to change the Gila
County Zoning Map zoning designation from
R1-D40 and R1L-D40 to Transitional Residential
with a Planned Development Overlay and Trailer
Overlay subject to the conditions that are
outlined in the recommendation section of the
Planning and Zoning staff report attached to this
item; adopt Ordinance No. 2021-02; and
approve Permit No. P2105-067, a request for a
Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon River Ranch
Final Subdivision plat, recorded on December 23,
2008 in the Official Records of Gila County,
Recording Number 2008-015996. (Randy
Pluimer)

Approved
& Adopted

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion to review guiding
principles for the redistricting of supervisorial
districts and the selection process of the Gila
County Citizens Advisory Committee. (Mary
Springer)

Discussed

 

B.   Information/Discussion on the recent activities of Discussed



B.   Information/Discussion on the recent activities of
the Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic Center
Committee regarding the proposed Cobre Valley
Regional Aquatic Center. (Evelyn Vargas/Sherry
Dorathy)

Discussed

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
Agreement for E-Rate Services between Gila
County Information Education Technology
Consortium on behalf of Gila County through the
Gila County School Superintendent and Gila
County Library District and Yavapai County
through the Yavapai County School
Superintendent for a term of three years effective
July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023, at a rate of
$5,000 per year; authorize the Chairman’s
signature on the Agreement; and authorize the
Gila County School Superintendent to sign the
Letter of Agency. (Roy Sandoval/Jacque
Sanders)

Approved

 

D.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board
of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
Agreement for E-Rate Services between Gila
County Information Education Technology
Consortium on behalf of Gila County through the
Gila County School Superintendent and Gila
County Library District and Yavapai County
through the Yavapai County School
Superintendent for a term of three years, effective
July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023, at a rate of
$5,000 per year; authorize the Chairman’s
signature on the Agreement for the Library
District; and authorize the Gila County Librarian
to sign the Letter of Agency. (Jacque
Sanders) (Motion to Adjourn as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors and

Approved



reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Gila
County Housing Authority and the Gila County
Homeless Task Force (the Local
Continuum/Coalition to End Homelessness) to
collaborate and help the homeless or soon-to-be
homeless of Gila County. (Malissa Buzan)

Approved

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service
Special Use Permit regarding the Pleasant Valley
Administrative Site/Tonto National Forest in
Young, AZ for the purpose of providing veteran
services for the time period of December 2020 to
December 2040. (Cathy Melvin)

Approved

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept the
grant award for Health Literacy Initiative funding
in the amount of $2,571,740 with $1,750,000
dedicated to local organizations that serve
underserved communities which will be used to
address the COVID-19 pandemic in Gila County's
underserved communities from July 1, 2021,
through June 30, 2023. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Accepted

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No.
071921 - Sub-Grantee for Project Management
(Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Community
Equitable Responses to COVID-19). (Michael
O'Driscoll)

Authorized

 

I.   Information/Discussion regarding the creation of
a reward program for reporting illegal
dumping. (Tim Humphrey)

Discussed



 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC: A call to the public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call
to the public, individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter
be put on a future agenda for further discussion
and decision at a future date. 

No
Comments

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented. 

Comments
Provided

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-6810   Presentations     2. A.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of Senator Mark Kelly's staff introductions - Michele Ralston
and Taylor Rogers

Background Information
The Outreach & Constituent Services Representatives from Senator Mark
Kelly's Office requested to introduce themselves and their roles to the
Board of Supervisors to be the contact personnel for Gila County.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of Senator Mark Kelly's staff introductions.  (Michele
Ralston/Taylor Rogers)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-6760   Public Hearing     3. A.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Randall Pluimer, Community Development Director 
Submitted By: Kim Manfredi, Administrative Assistant
Department: Community Development Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Request for the Board of Supervisors to approve, deny, or modify
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application number CUPP2102-001
submitted by Dan Auxier (Applicants/Owner) to allow a 2-story, 42-foot
tall building for a new single-family residence (measured from grade level
to the mean height between the eaves and ridge for gable and hip roofs
per the Gila County Zoning Ordinance) The property is vacant land
described as Lot 21 in the Walnut Glen subdivision in Strawberry, Arizona
(APN 301-60-015B). The property is zoned Residence One District-Density
District 35 (R1-D35)

Background Information
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit in order to construct
a residence that will exceed the maximum building height of 30’.
Originally, the applicant had requested a building height of 45’ (measured
from the grade level to the mean height between the eaves and ridge),
where 30’ is the maximum permitted, and a three-story residence, where
two stories is the maximum permitted. The applicant revised the request
to 42’ and removed a loft, resulting in a two-story home rather than three.
As discussed in the section above, the applicant agreed to further revise
the building height from 42’ to 36’ at the May 20, 2021, Planning
Commission meeting.

The applicant’s justification for the increased height is primarily based on
topographical issues including a steep slope of 132’ between the back of
the property to the front which accounts for a 60-70% slope across the
property.

The applicant provided revised building elevations, reflecting a building
height of 36’ and building columns not to exceed 17’, per the Planning
and Zoning Commission recommendation, which are included as Figures
5, 6 and 7 of this report.



Evaluation
The building must comply with the height and story requirements of the
Gila County Zoning Ordinance. In the R1 Limited Use District, building
heights above 30 feet are allowed with a CUP. The Ordinance further
defines a conditional use as use which, although not specifically
permitted in a zoning district, would become harmonious or compatible
with neighboring uses through the application and maintenance of
qualifying conditions.

These sections from the Gila County Zoning Ordinance shall apply:

104.2.A.2.e: A Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building
exceeding two (2) stories or thirty (30) feet above ground level.

101.3 C: Conditional Use Permits shall be issued setting forth all
qualifying conditions subject to the procedures for rezoning found in the
section of this Zoning Ordinance entitled “Amendment Procedures.”

101.3.B.2.a: The applicant shall invite and meet with his neighbors, being
the property owners in the notification area, at a specific time and place,
convenient for assembly and often the subject site, to discuss his
proposed request.

101.2 B.8: The Planning and Zoning Commission will hear, review,
determine compatibility requirements, and make the decision regarding
all Conditional Use Permit applications.

105.3 The Planning and Zoning Commission shall report to the Board of
Supervisors.

105.4 Upon receipt of the Planning and Zoning Commission's
recommendation, the Board may take appropriate action after holding at
least one public hearing.

The residence is to be constructed on Lot 21 in the Walnut Glen
subdivision in Strawberry, Arizona (APN 301-60-015B). The property is
zoned Residence One District-Density District 35 (R1-D35).

Conclusion
Staff conducted a site visit of the property and surrounding area in order
to determine if the proposed residence had the potential to negatively
impact other properties or otherwise be out of harmony or incompatible
with these properties. It is clear that there are significant topographical
challenges on this property given its slope and a significant number of



trees. This challenge is not specific to just the subject property but to
others in the subdivision as well. Particularly those lots on the south side
of Diane Circle.

In reviewing other homes along Diane Circle in the immediate area, they
include two-story structures that appear to be 30’ or less in height. This
is true for several properties in the area, even those which are located on
lots with similar topographic issues. As previously proposed, the subject
home would have a height of 42’, using the way the County measures
building height from grade to the mean height between the eaves and
ridge. The actual height to the highest peak of the roof would be up to a
foot higher.

Per Section 101.3.C of the Gila County Zoning Ordinance, conditional
uses are those uses that would become harmonious or compatible with
neighboring uses. Staff believes that the proposed redesign of the home,
per the Planning and Zoning Commission, recommended height of 36’
with the building columns not to exceed 17’, is much more compatible
and harmonious with the rest of the homes in the area.

The staff has been made aware that there are deed restrictions for the
Walnut Glen subdivision limiting the number of building stories to two.
With the removal of the loft, the County considers the residence to be two
stories. The County enforces governmental regulations such as state
statutes and the County Zoning Ordinance that affect the use of land,
however, the County does not enforce private rules and regulations, such
as those imposed by a homeowners’ association, a property owner’s
association, or covenants, conditions, and restrictions than run with the
land; those rules and regulations are independent of, and may conflict
with, governmental regulations. It is the applicant’s responsibility to
determine if there are any such private rules and regulations and comply
with them.

Recommendation
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of Case
Number CUPP2101-001, a Conditional Use Permit to allow a building
height of 36’ where 30’ is the maximum permitted with a maximum
building column height of 17’.

Staff is supportive of the request subject to the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommendation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve, deny or modify Conditional



Information/Discussion/Action to approve, deny or modify Conditional
Use Permit application number CUPP2102-001 to allow a 2-story, 36-foot
tall building height for a single-family residence, measured from grade
level to the mean height between the eaves and roof ridge, the property is
vacant land described as Lot 21 in the Walnut Glen subdivision in
Strawberry, Arizona (APN 301-60-015B). The property is zoned Residence
One District-Density District 35 (R1-D35). (Randy Pluimer)

Attachments
Auxier House Plans
Auxier Staff Report
Auxier Application Material
Auxier Legal Ad



















 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

TO THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GILA COUNTY CASE NUMBER CUPP2101-001 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT FOR A 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

Public Hearing 

July 27, 2021 

 

610 East Highway 260 

Payson, Arizona 

 

and 

 

745 Rose Mofford Way 

Globe, Arizona 

 



 
 

Case Details 

Gila County Case Number:     CUPP2102-001 

Request:  A building height of 42’ for a proposed 

residence where 30’ is the maximum 

permitted 

Applicant/Owner:     Daniel Auxier 

Staff Member:     Michelle Dahlke, Senior Planner 

 

Property Details 

 

Assessor Parcel Number:     301-60-015B 

Property Address:  Address not yet assigned  

Property Location:  Lot 21, Walnut Glen 

Parcel Size:       0.53 

Current Zoning Designation:    R1-D35 

Current Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential (1-2 dwelling units per acre) 

Current Land Use:  Vacant  

Surrounding Zoning/Land Uses*: North – R1-D35 

East –  R1-D35 

South – R1-D35 

       West – R1-D35 

 

 

 
 

 
Figure 1:  Copy of the Zoning Map for the Subject Property and Surrounding Area 

 

 

 



 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission continued the request to their April 15, 2021 meeting to 

allow more time for the applicant to work with neighbors regarding the proposed building height 

and number of stories.  The applicant then requested a continuance of the request from the April 

15, 2021 meeting to the May 20, 2021, meeting to provide them more time to redesign the proposed 

residence. 

 

At their May 20, 2021 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval of the Conditional Use Permit request subject to a reduced building height of 36’ to the 

means with building columns not exceeding 17’ in height.  

 

Property Background 

 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit in order to construct a residence that will 

exceed the maximum building height of 30’.  Originally, the applicant had requested a building 

height of 45’ (measured from the grade level to the mean height between the eaves and ridge), 

where 30’ is the maximum permitted, and a three-story residence, where two stories is the 

maximum permitted.  The applicant revised the request to 42’ and removed a loft, resulting in a 

two-story home rather than three.  As discussed in the section above, the applicant agreed to further 

revise the building height from 42’ to 36’ at the May 20, 2021, Planning Commission meeting.  

 

The applicant’s justification for the increased height is primarily based on topographical issues 

including a steep slope of 132’ between the back of the property to the front which accounts for a 

60-70% slope across the property.  

 

The applicant provided revised building elevations, reflecting a building height of 36’ and building 

columns not to exceed 17’, per the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation, which are 

included as Figures 5, 6 and 7 of this report.   



 
 

 
Figure 2: Second Revised Site Plan 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Figure 3: First Revised Site Plan 

 



 
 

 
Figure 4:  Original Site Plan 

 

 



 
 

  

 

 

 

Figure 5:  Revised North Elevation (reflects Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation) 



 
 

 

Figure 6:  Revised West Elevation (reflects Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation) 

 



 
 

 

Figure 7: Revised East and South Elevation (reflects Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation) 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8:  Main Floor Plan 



 
 

 

Figure 9: Lower Floor Plan 



 
 

 
 

 
Figure 10:  Looking North at the Property  

 

 
 

Figure 11: Looking East in Front of the Property 



 
 

 
Figure 12:  Looking West in Front of the Property 

 
 

Figure 13:  Looking at Home Across the Street from the Property 



 
 

 

Figure 14: Looking West at Home Next Door to Property 

 

Citizen Participation  

 

The applicant held a neighborhood meeting via Zoom on February 16, 2021 and invited all 

properties within 300’ of the Subject Property. Per the Citizen Participation report from the 

applicant, eight neighbors attended the meeting.  A copy of the meeting minutes are provided in 

this packet.  A map has been provided on the following page indicating which neighbors attended 

the neighborhood meeting, which have submitted emails in opposition to the request and which 

submitted emails in favor of the request.  A copy of each of the emails is also provided in this 

packet.   

 

Staff has been contacted by neighbors since the March Planning and Zoning Commission meeting 

with continued concerns regarding the building height and number of stories. A copy of all 

correspondence received to date is included in the enclosures section of this report.  The applicant 

states that after the March Commission meeting, he spoke with several neighbors who indicated 

they would be amenable to the Auxiers bringing down the overall height of the residence as much 

as possible and enhancing the vegetation in front of the home to hide the columns. Staff has since 

provided the neighbors with a copy of the revised building elevations showing a reduction in height 

and the elimination of the loft.  To date, staff has received a more positive neighbor response with 

the building height recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 



 
 

 
 

Figure 15: Map of Citizen Participation 

Staff Review and Analysis 
 

Staff conducted a site visit of the property and surrounding area in order to determine if the 

proposed residence had the potential to negatively impact other properties or otherwise be out of 

harmony or incompatiable with these properties.  It is clear that there are significant topographical 

challenges on this property given its slope and significant number of trees.  This challenge is not 

specific to just the subject property but others in the subdivision as well.  Particularly those lots on 

the south side of Diane Circle.  

 

In reviewing other homes along Diane Circle in the immediate area, they include two-story 

structures that appear to be 30’ or less in height.  This is true for several properties in the area, 

even those which are located on lots with similar topographic issues. As previously proposed, the 

subject home would have a height of 42’, using the way the County measures building height from 

grade to the mean height between the eaves and ridge.  The actual height to the highest peak of the 

roof would be up to a foot higher.   

 

Per Section 101.3.C of the Gila County Zoning Ordinance, conditional uses are those uses which 

would become harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses.  Staff believes that the proposed 

redesign of the home, per the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended height of 36’ with 



 
 

the building columns not to exceed 17’, is much more compatible and harmonious with the rest of 

the homes in the area.   

 

Staff has been made aware that there are deed restrictions for the Walnut Glen subdivision limiting 

the number of building stories to two. With the removal of the loft, the County considers the 

residence to be two stories. The County enforces governmental regulations such as state statutes 

and the County Zoning Ordinance that affect the use of land, however, the County does not enforce 

private rules and regulations, such as those imposed by a homeowners’ association, a property 

owner’s association, or covenants, conditions, and restrictions than run with land; those rules and 

regulations are independent from, and may conflict with, governmental regulations.  It is the 

applicant’s responsibility to determine if there are any such private rules and regulations and 

comply with them.  
 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of Case Number CUPP2101-001, a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow a building height of 36’ where 30’ is the maximum permitted with 

a maximum building column height of 17’.  

 

Staff Recommendation  

 

Staff is supportive of the request subject to the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

Arizona Silverbelt                        One Publication:  July 7, 2021                             Acc:  101556 
 

LEGAL NOTICE 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will hold a 
public hearing on Tuesday, July 27, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. regarding Case No. 
CUPP2102-001.  This is an application submitted by Dan Auxier 
(Applicant/Owner). The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a 
two-story, 42-foot in height building (measured from the grade level to the mean 
height between the eaves and ridge for gable and hip roofs per the Gila County 
Zoning Ordinance) for a new single-family residence. In the Residence One Use 
District, a Conditional Use Permit shall be required for any building exceeding two 
stories or thirty feet above ground level (measured from the grade level to the mean 
height between the eaves and ridge for gable and hip roofs per the Gila County 
Zoning Ordinance). The property is vacant land described as Lot 21 in the Walnut 
Glen subdivision in Strawberry, Arizona (APN 301-60-015B). The property is zoned 
Residence One District-Density District 35 (R1-D35)  
 

The public hearing will take place at the Gila County Courthouse, Board of 
Supervisors’ Hearing Room, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona.  One or more of 
the Board members may participate in the meeting by telephone conference call or 
by interactive television (ITV).  The meeting will televised to the Gila County 
Complex, Board of Supervisors’ Conference Room, 610 East Highway 260, Payson, 
Arizona, and it will be live-streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live.   
 
Citizens may submit comments related to this agenda item by no later than 5 p.m. 
on Monday, July 26, 2021, by emailing the Clerk of the Board at 
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Comments may also be 
input through YouTube during the public hearing portion of the meeting. 
 
Citizens will also be allowed to attend this hearing in person in Globe or in Payson 
to provide their comments.  A face mask must be worn while in the building which 
may be removed when addressing the Board.  One person at a time will be allowed 
into the Board room. 
 
Case No. CUPP2102-001 is available for review at the offices of the Gila County 
Community Development Department located at 745 North Rose Mofford Way in 
Globe, Arizona or 608 East Highway 260 in Payson, Arizona between 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m.  
 
 
By:  _________________________________________________ 
 Michelle Dahlke  
 Gila County Community Development Department 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live
mailto:msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov


   
ARF-6762   Public Hearing     3. B.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Randall Pluimer, Community Development Director 
Submitted By: Kim Manfredi, Administrative Assistant
Department: Community Development

Information
Request/Subject
Public hearing to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-02 which authorizes the
modification of the following: 1) a minor amendment to the Gila County
Comprehensive Master Plan for APNs (Assessor's Parcel Numbers)
301-46-001C, 301-46-001D, and 301-72-037 thru 301-72-053 to change
the land use designation from Residential 0.1 – 0.4 DU/AC to Mixed Use;
2) an amendment to the Gila County Zoning Map for APN# 301-46-001C,
301-46-001D and 301-72-037 thru 301-72-053 currently designated as
Residence One – Density District 40 (R1-D40) and Residence One Limited-
Density District 40 (R1L-D40) to Transitional Residential (TR) with a
Planned Area Development (PAD) Overlay and a Trailer District (T)
Overlay; and 3) a Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon River Ranch Final
Subdivision plat, recorded on December 23, 2008, in the Official Records
of Gila County, Recording Number 2008-015996. The parcels are vacant
land located in the Canyon River Ranch subdivision, west of Payson,
Arizona.

Background Information
The subject property was originally planned as a five-phased residential
development generally referred to as Canyon River Ranch.  Gila County
approved a rezoning of the property in 2008 and a final subdivision plat
was approved for the development in 2009. While some improvements
were constructed, including a 5,600 square foot pavilion, a 20,000 square
foot covered arena, a well site, a decorative entry feature/water tower, and
some internal road work and grading, further development of the property
was placed on hold due to the impacts of the Great Recession. Note that
there are two parcels of land located in the area of the request that is not
part of this request (APN # 301-46-001E and 001F).

Evaluation
The property recently changed hands and the new property owner is



The property recently changed hands and the new property owner is
proposing a mixed-use development consisting of residential and
commercial uses with a substantial amount of passive open space. At
complete build-out, there will be 721 residential homes sites with a
mixture of single and doublewide mobile homes with approximately 40%
of the overall home site devoted to recreational vehicles. Each home site
will be fully improved with electricity, water, and wastewater services and
leased to the resident for placement of a home or recreational vehicle. The
owners would; however, like the ability to lease up to 100% of the
property for recreational vehicle use until such time as the project is fully
developed. Per the project narrative, the 100% recreational vehicle use will
be for a temporary basis, for a period of 36 months from the issuance of
the first building permit for any given phase.

The proposed commercial uses include restaurants, personal service
businesses, self-storage facilities, general retail sales, and motor fuel and
propane sales, all of which are mainly intended to serve the community.
The property owners also envision certain temporary outdoor events.

The property owners propose to offer a significant number of amenities
with this development including the existing pavilion and arena, a large
community clubhouse, multiple miles of multi-use trails and paths, a
1-acre fishing pond, passive open space representing almost 60% of the
property, and multiple sporting opportunities such as pickleball, tennis,
baseball and softball, basketball courts, three dog parks, and three
community swimming pools.

As part of the Planned Area Development (“PAD”) overlay zoning, the
property owner is asking for a few deviations from the development
standards of the Trailer District overlay requirements for mobile homes
and recreational vehicles, commercial district, and parking requirements.
The table provided in the Planning and Zoning staff report (attached to
this agenda item) shows a comparison of what the minimum requirements
are versus what the property owner is asking with the PAD overlay. Note
that the purpose of PAD overlay is to allow flexibility in meeting the
requirements of the underlying zoning district. The Zoning Ordinance
recognizes that for specific planned communities, the PAD overlay can
provide better alternatives for some land developments than conventional
zoning districts can. Furthermore, the purpose of the PAD overlay is to
encourage innovative and imaginative planning with a variety of housing
opportunities that are affordable to the community.

The applicant would like the flexibility to develop the property either as a
single-phase or as a two-phased development, depending on the timing of
the approvals related to infrastructure permitting, construction costs, and



mobilization. If it becomes a two-phased project, the applicant anticipates
one phase north of Doll Baby Ranch Road and the second phase to the
south of this road.

Conclusion
In order to develop the property as proposed, a change in the
Comprehensive Plan land use designation and a rezoning are required.
The current land use designation for the property is Residential (0.1-0.4
dwelling units per acre), which is intended for low-density rural detached
residential development, would not permit the proposed 4½ unit per acre
development. Additionally, this residential land use designation only
permits non-residential uses if permitted in the underlying zoning district
and is located on a cumulative total of less than two acres and separated
and buffered from adjacent residential uses. Due to the mix of uses
requested on the property, the Comprehensive Plan land use designation
of Mixed-Use is appropriate.

The proposed mix of uses and the use of mobile homes and recreational
vehicles are not permitted under the existing zoning designation on the
property of R1-D40 and R1L-D40, which is why a zoning change is
required. The proposed zoning designation of Transitional Residential is
intended for a mix of residential and commercial uses subject to a
Development Plan. Additionally, the Trailer District overlay will allow for
mobile home and recreational vehicle uses. The Planned Area
Development overlay will enable the development to deviate from some of
the zoning regulations as discussed earlier in this report.

Due to assurances from the developer that they will meet all applicable
development standards and obtain all required local and state
infrastructure and building permits, staff does not believe that the
proposed change in the Comprehensive Plan land use designation or the
requested zoning designation change would have a negative impact on the
property or surrounding area. Rather, due to the significant number of
amenities proposed and the fact that the project will bring more affordable
housing to the area, staff believes the project will have a positive overall
impact on the community.

The project will be required to go through the Development Plan process
prior to the issuance of a building permit and, the State of Arizona will
need to approve the proposed water and wastewater service to the
community.

The applicant is also requesting a Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon
River Ranch final subdivision plat. Approval of the reversion will abandon
the final plat, which was recorded in the official records of Gila County in



the final plat, which was recorded in the official records of Gila County in
2008, and revert the land to its original acreage that existed prior to the
final plat being recorded. This will enable the property owner to develop
their mixed-use project as proposed.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors conducts the public
hearing and after the public hearing considers adopting Ordinance No.
2021-02 with conditions lined out in the staff report presented to the
Board and attached to this agenda item.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Case No. CPA2103-001, a
minor amendment to the Gila County Comprehensive Plan, to change the
land use designation from Residential 0.1-0.4 du/ac to Mixed Use;
approve Case No. REZONP2103-001, a request to change the Gila County
Zoning Map zoning designation from R1-D40 and R1L-D40 to Transitional
Residential with a Planned Development Overlay and Trailer Overlay
subject to the conditions that are outlined in the recommendation section
of the Planning and Zoning staff report attached to this item; adopt
Ordinance No. 2021-02; and approve Permit No. P2105-067, a request for
a Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon River Ranch Final Subdivision plat,
recorded on December 23, 2008 in the Official Records of Gila County,
Recording Number 2008-015996. (Randy Pluimer)

Attachments
Ordinance No. 2021-02
Canyon River Legal Ad
Canyon River CPA and Rezoning Applications
Canyon River - Rezoning Narrative
Canyon River - CPA Narrative
Reversion to Acreage Application Materials
Canyon River Development Plan
Parcel Maps
Canyon River Staff Report
Applicant Presentation



 

Ordinance No. 2021-02  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MODIFYING THE ZONING MAP FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF 

GILA COUNTY TO CHANGE THE ZONING FOR ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 

NUMBERS 301-46-001C, 301-46-001D AND 301-72-037 THRU 301-72-053 FROM 

RESIDENCE ONE – DENSITY DISTRICT 40 (R1-D40) AND RESIDENCE ONE 

LIMITED – DENSITY DISTRICT 40 (R1L-D40) TO TRANSITIONAL 

RESIDENTIAL (TR) WITH A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY (PAD) 

AND A TRAILER DISTRICT OVERLAY (T) TO ALLOW A MIXED-USE 

DEVELOPMENT CONSISTING OF RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL 

USES 

 

WHEREAS, an application was filed by Michael Baker International (Applicant), Gila County 

Planning and Zoning Case No. REZONP2103-001, to modify the Gila County Zoning Map for 

Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for Assessor’s parcel number 301-46-001C, 301-46-001D 

and 301-72-037 thru 301-72-053; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted the Gila County Planning and 

Zoning Ordinance on September 8, 1959; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on June 

17, 2021, and unanimously recommended approval of the modification requested; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors held a duly noticed public hearing on July 27, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that the findings for a change in zoning 

district (as listed below) from the Gila County Zoning Ordinance, Section 104.1-Zoning Map, 

have been met.  

 

1. The change is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the Gila County Zoning 

Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan.  

 



 

Ordinance No. 2021-02  Page 2 of 2 

 

2. The change is in the interest of or will further the public health, safety, comfort, convenience 

and welfare of Gila County residents.  

 

3. The change will not adversely affect the established character of the surrounding 

neighborhood nor be detrimental to adjacent properties.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby 

modifies the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County to change the zoning for 

Assessor’s parcel number 301-46-001C, 301-46-001D and 301-72-037 thru 301-72-053 from 

Residence One District - Density District 40 (R1-D40) and Residence One Limited – Density 

District 40 (R1L-D40) to Transitional Residential (TR) with a Planned Area Development 

overlay (PAD) and a Trailer District overlay (T) to allow a mixed-use development consisting of 

residential and commercial uses. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of July 2021, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona.  

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

_______________________________  _______________________________  

Marian Sheppard    Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman  

Clerk of the Board  

 

Approved as to form 

 

________________________________  

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



 

Arizona Silverbelt                        One Publication:  July 7, 2021                             Acc:  101556 
 

LEGAL NOTICE 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will hold a 
public hearing on Tuesday, July 27, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. regarding Case No. 
CPAP2103-001, REZONP2103-001 and P2105-067, Michael Baker International 
(Applicant) / Canyon River Partners LLC, International West Civil Constructors 
Inc (Owners). The applicant is requesting 1) a minor amendment to the Gila 
County Comprehensive Master Plan for APN# 301-46-001C, 301-46-001D and 
301-72-037 thru 301-72-053 to change the land use designation from Residential 
0.1 – 0.4 DU/AC to Mixed Use, 2) an amendment to the Gila County Zoning Map 
for APN# 301-46-001C, 301-46-001D and 301-72-037 thru 301-72-053 currently 
designated as Residence One – Density District 40 (R1-D40) and Residence One 
Limited- Density District 40 (R1L-D40) to Transitional Residential (TR) with a 
Planned Area Development (PAD) Overlay and a Trailer District (T) Overlay, and 3) 
a Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon River Ranch Final Subdivision plat, 
recorded on December 23, 2008 in the Official Records of Gila County, Recording 
Number 2008-015996. The parcels are vacant land located in the Canyon River 
Ranch subdivision, west of Payson, Arizona. 
 
The public hearing will take place at the Gila County Courthouse, Board of 
Supervisors’ Hearing Room, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona.  One or more of 
the Board members may participate in the meeting by telephone conference call or 
by interactive television (ITV).  The meeting will televised to the Gila County 
Complex, Board of Supervisors’ Conference Room, 610 East Highway 260, Payson, 
Arizona, and it will be live-streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live.   
 
Citizens may submit comments related to this agenda item by no later than 5 p.m. 
on Monday, July 26, 2021, by emailing the Clerk of the Board at 
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-8757.  Comments may also be 
input through YouTube during the public hearing portion of the meeting.  
 
Citizens will also be allowed to attend this hearing in person in Globe or in Payson 
to provide their comments.  A face mask must be worn while in the building which 
may be removed when addressing the Board.  One person at a time will be allowed 
into the Board room. 
 
Case No. CPAP2103-001, REZONP2103-001 and P2105-067, is available for 
review at the offices of the Gila County Community Development Department 
located at 745 North Rose Mofford Way in Globe, Arizona or 608 East Highway 
260 in Payson, Arizona between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
 
 
By:  _________________________________________________ 
 Michelle Dahlke  
 Gila County Community Development Department 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live
mailto:msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov


Gila County Community Development Division 

Planning & Zoning Department 

745 N Rose Mofford Way, Globe, AZ 85501
928-402-8512 or 402-8514, FAX 928-425-0829 

Or 
608 E Highway 260, Payson, AZ 85541

928-474-9276, FAX 928-474-0802 

APPLICATION FOR MINOR COMPREHENSsIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

Date February 26, 2021 File No.: 

Applicant Name Michael Baker International (Adam Pruett) 
Mailing Address 2929 N.CentralAvenye,8th Floor, Phoenix, AZ 85012
Signature(s): Lht 

Phone No.: 602.3081320 

Owners Name Canyon River Partners 
Mailing Address811 N. Catalina Avenue, Suite1306,Redondo Beach, CA 90277
Signature Authorized Agent Forms Enclosed
(If the applicant is not the owner of the subject property, the owner must submit an authorized agent form 
to allow the applicant to act for him or her.) 

Phone No.: 602.321.2185 

Property Address No address; propertylocated approximately 6.5 miles west of Payson on Doll Baby Ranch Road 
Tax Assessor Parcel No. Several, See Attached Narrative 
Legal Description See Attached Narrative 
Current Zoning: PAD 
CURRENT USE OF PROPERTY Vacant with minor improvements from previous development effort 

Requested Zoning: Canyon River Ranch PAD 

DESCRIBE PROPOSED PROPERTY USE: (Use extra sheet if necessary) 

See Attached Narrative 

SITE PLAN: See attached instruction sheet for requirements. Site plan must be submitted with the 
application. 

UTILITIES CURRENTLY AVAILABLE AT SITE: 
If utilities are not available, describe how utilities will be provided 

Water and wastewater will be provided and managed on-site; property will be served by APS 
Information must be complete and accurate. Attach all required information as outlined on the 
attached instruction sheet. 

Gas Sewer x_Water Electric

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Fee received ($365): CheckNo. 
PZC Legal Publication and Posting Date:_ 
PZC Recommendation:_ 
BOS Legal Publication and Posting Date:
BOS Decision:_ 

Cash Date 
Hearing Date:

Hearing Date: 

CPAP2103-001

CREDIT

60



ACOU GIL 
EAL 

1881 
Gila County Community Development Department 

Planning & Zoning Division

745 N. Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501
(928) 402-8512 

FAX: (928) 425-0829 

608 E. Highway 260 
Payson, AZ 85541

(928) 474-9276 
FAX: 928-474-0802 ZONING CHANGE (REZONING), ZONING

MAP OR zONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, 
OR SUPPLEMENT APPLICATION 

Date: February 26, 2021 

Address of Property Associated with Request: Canyon River Ranch (6.5 mi west of Payson)

Applicant Name: Michael Baker International (Adam Pruett) Phone No.: 602.308.1320 

Mailing Address: 2929N. Central Ave, 8th Floor, Phoenix, AZ 850112

Signature: 
Email Address: adam.pruett@mbakerintl.com 

If the applicant is not the owner, please provide the owner's name below and complete the Authorized Agent form 
attached to this application form.

Owner's Name: Canyon River Partners

If the subject property is part of a homeowner association (HOA)* No HOA at this time.

Name of HOA: Phone No. 

Contact Person at HOA:. 

Mailing Address:

Email Address: 
Please note that Gila County notifies an HOA asa courtesy only and does not enforce any HOA-related documents (i.e. CC&Rs,
deed restrictions, etc.).

FOR OFFICEUSE ONLY 
Case File No.:. Permit # Zoning of Property:. APN # 

$365 Fee Paid Check No.: Credit: Cash: Date:

Authorized Agent Form Recelved (if applicable): 

PZC Legal Publication and Posting Date: Hearing Date:. PZC Recommendation: 

BOS Legal Publication and Posting Date: Hearing Date: BOS Decision:_ 

REV 2-25-20 

REZONP2103-001 301-46-001D, -001C

301-72-037 THRU -053

R1-D40

R1L-D40

X 3/17/2021

61



AUTHORIZED AGENT FORM 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: Canyon River Subdivision 

301-72-045 ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER:

Please list additional sheets if necessary 
The undersigned, registered property owner(s) of the above-referenced property, do hereby authorize 

Michael Baker Intenational
of 

to act on my/our behalf and take all actions necessary for the processing, issuance and acceptance of 

this request for a Minor Comprehensive Plan Amendment to the Gila County Community Development 

Department. 

We hereby certify the above information submitted in this application is true and accurate to the best of 

our knowledge. 

Authorized Signatyre Authorized Signature 

Date 2-23 - 202 Date 

STATE OF r12-ona

coUNTY OF MAriCO0A 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 12Va day of fuyrUAyu 

802_ l husu Panmll 
SARAN OWEN 

Notary Publk Maricopa County 
Commisslon No. 593859

My Commlsslon Explre
December 4, 2024 

Notary Signature 

Serial Number_ sa3&s1L 

62



63



Canyon River Subdivision

301-72-037 through 301-72-053 and 301-46-001C and 301-46-001D

Michael Baker International

64



65



6 6



67



68



69



70



71



72



Canyon River Ranch 
GILA COUNTY, AZ 

Applicant: 

Michael Baker International 

Phoenix Plaza Tower II, 2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Applicant: 

Michael Baker International 

Phoenix Plaza Tower II, 2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

401



Table of Contents 

Project Team 1 

Concept Plan 2 

Purpose of Request 3 

General 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 3 

Property History 3 

Context 4 

Surrounding and Adjacent Properties 4 

Public Outreach  4 

Proposal 6 

Property Size and Location 6 

Residential Component  6 

Residential Uses and Development Standards 6 

Commercial Uses and Development Standards 9 

Project Amenities 11 

Timing of Development 12 

Phasing  12 

Utilities and Services 12 

Water  12 

Wastewater 12 

Electricity 13 

Solid Waste 13 

Fire and Medical 13 

Reversion to Acreage 13 

Streets and Common Areas 13 

Doll Baby Ranch Road  13 

Local Canyon River Ranch Roads  14 

Common Areas  14 

Development Plan 14 

Legal Description 15 

41



Project Team 

Canyon River Partners 

811 N Catalina Avenue, Suite 1306 

Redondo Beach, CA 90277 

Michael Baker International 

Phoenix Plaza Tower II, 2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

42



C
o

n
c

e
p

t P
la

n
 

4 3



Purpose of Request 
General 
The purpose of this rezoning request is to establish the necessary zoning, use allowances, and 

development standards to allow the future development of an age-restricted mobile home and 

recreational vehicle community.  The proposed zoning designation is Transitional Residential with 

Planned Area Development (PAD) and Trailer District overlays (TR-PAD-T).   

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
This rezoning request accompanies an application for a Minor Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  

The property is currently designated Residential with a projected density range of 0.1 to 0.4 

dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  This designation is intended for very low-density rural residential 

development, including farming and ranching.  To align the County’s Comprehensive Plan with 

this development, a Minor Amendment has been filed to change the land use designation from 

Residential 0.1 to 0.4 du/ac to Mixed Use. 

Property History 
In 2008, the subject property was zoned PAD to allow for 

116 ‘cabin’ properties.  The final plat for this concept was 

completed and approved by Gila County in June of 2009 

with the first phase of construction beginning shortly 

thereafter.  Doll Baby Ranch Road from the Town of 

Payson town limits to the property was improved and dry 

utility conduit was installed.  On-site improvements 

included a portion of the residential road network and 

ribbon curbing, a well site with storage and pump 

facilities, grading and retention, a 20,000 square-foot 

covered arena and a 5,600 square-foot pavilion, and a 

decorative water tower entry feature.  Construction 

ceased by 2011 due to the prolonged economic 

recession that affected so much of the country.  

The property has since been acquired by Canyon River 

Partners, however, after analyzing market conditions, it is 

evident that the demand for the previously-entitled 

‘cabin’ concept has diminished considerably.  Therefore, 

this proposal intends to reposition the property in a 

manner that provides a new affordable and well-

amenitized housing option for the region.     

Figure 1: Previous Cabin Property Concept 

44



Context 
Surrounding and Adjacent Properties 
Canyon River Ranch is 

surrounded by United 

States Forest Service 

land.  Such lands are 

neither zoned nor do 

they have a local 

jurisdictional land use 

designation.  These are 

public lands intended 

for public use as 

prescribed by the 

federal government.  

Ongoing 

communication with 

the USFS Payson 

Ranger Station has 

been a priority in the development of this project as well as discussions pertaining to access and 

drainage improvements along Doll Baby Ranch Road.  To date, the USFS remains supportive of 

the proposed development. 

This community will have a rather unique feature in that near the 

northern end of the property, there are two 2-acre occupied 

residential parcels under separate private ownership which occur 

within the boundary of the overall project.  The owners of these 

parcels were approached to be included in this project (without 

transfer of ownership), however, both owners have declined this 

offer.  Neither parcel is integral to the development of the Canyon 

River Ranch community.   

Public Outreach 
Based on the extensive history of this property, the development team has established a long-

standing relationship with property owners in the area, specifically, the Tonto National Forest 

Payson Ranger Station (USFS) and the exempted property owners.  Additionally, the team has had 

ongoing communication with the Town of Payson, Gila County, North Gila County Sanitary District, 

and private property owners along Doll Baby Ranch Road between the Town of Payson town limits 

and the Canyon River Ranch. 

A community meeting was held virtually on the Zoom meeting platform on January 14, 2021 at 

5:30 p.m.  Property owners within 300’ of the subject property were invited to attend the meeting 

to discuss the project in detail.  This was a productive meeting that resulted in a number of 

changes to the site plan that would improve access to Parcels A and B as shown in Figure 2 below, 

preserve or enhance privacy, and preserve views and physical access to the north.  These 

changes are in addition to a separate agreement between the Canyon River Ranch property 

N 

N 
- 001E - 001F

45



owner and the owners of Parcels A and B in which approximately four (4) acres of property will be 

deeded to the owners of Parcels A and B (Figure 2).   

Figure 2: Deeded Property 

B A 

46



Proposal 
Property Size and Location 
The subject property consists of 

approximately 158.16 acres 

located approximately 6.2 miles 

west of the Town of Payson on 

Doll Baby Ranch Road.  It is 

currently in an unincorporated 

portion of Gila County and 

remains undeveloped except for 

the improvements stated above.  In total, this proposal includes twenty (20) parcels, seventeen 

(17) of which were created with the previous rezoning and Phase 1 plat.

Residential Component 
Canyon River Ranch is an age-restricted 

community comprised of up to 721 residential 

homesites comprised of both mobile home 

homesites and Recreational Vehicle (RV) 

spaces.  Canyon River Ranch will welcome a 

mix of ‘single’ and ‘double’ mobile homes as 

well as RV sites with full utility connections.  

Homesites will be improved and leased to residents, who will place their home on the site and 

connect to provided water, wastewater, and electric utilities.    

At build-out, it is anticipated that the total RV spaces will not exceed 40% of the total residential 

entitlement; however, as development commences, there may be a period of time where 

Canyon River Ranch may be occupied 100% by Recreational Vehicles.  Each phase of Canyon 

River Ranch may allow 100% Recreational Vehicle use on temporary basis for a period of 36 

months from the issuance of the first building permit for the given phase.  This allowance includes 

the temporary RV use of mobile home homesites.    

Residential Uses and Development Standards 
Parcels designated for residential and recreational vehicle space development are limited to the 

permitted uses as provided in the Gila County Transitional Residential (TR) and Trailer District (T) 

Zoning District(s), Sections 104.3.D and 104.6.C, respectively, except as modified herein: 

• Mobile and manufactured homes, including ‘park models’, ‘tiny homes’ and / or ‘shipping

container homes’.

• Individual private accessory buildings, except for HOA-approved optional garage

buildings shall be prohibited.

• Outdoor storage of personal belongings shall be prohibited.

• Fences and free-standing walls with a maximum height of six feet above ground level;

provided, however, that no fence or free-standing wall shall be constructed in such a way

Residential Homesites 721 (4.56 du/ac)

RV Spaces 40% (288*) 

Open Space 93 acres 

Commercial 3 acres

Storage 20,000 s.f.

* RV space allowance based on entitlement

Parcels Included in this Proposal 
301-46-001C 301-72-040 301-72-045 301-72-051

301-46-001D 301-72-041 301-72-046 301-72-052 

301-72-037 301-72-042 301-72-047 301-72-053 

301-72-038 301-72-043 301-72-048 

301-72-039 301-72-044 301-72-050 
Parcel number in bold text is under separate ownership but has provided

written authorization to be included in this PAD.

47



as to create a hazard to safety by restricting the view of a driver entering a street from a 

private drive or alley or approaching an intersection of two streets.  

• Communal recreation buildings and structures, laundry facilities, swimming pool,

playground and other common area uses for the exclusive benefit of subdivision residents

and guests.

• Paths, trails, and golf cart / UTV paths for residents and guests to use for recreation and

internal circulation.

• Parks, playgrounds, recreational lakes, and community-owned buildings.

• Temporary buildings used for the sale or lease of homesites.

• Wastewater and water collection and treatment facilities.

Residential development shall adhere to the Gila County Trailer District Overlay as modified below: 

Minimum Homesite Area: 

Single:  3,000 square feet 

Double:    6,000 square feet 

RV: 1,500 square feet 

Minimum Homesite Width (measure at midpoint of lot): 

Single: 33 feet 

Double: 55 feet 

RV: 25 feet 

Maximum Building Height: 

Principal Buildings:    16 feet 

Community Buildings and Structures: 30 feet 

Minimum Building Setbacks: 

Project Perimeter: 10 feet outer perimeter; and 

20 feet inner perimeter where project abuts private ‘exempted’ 

properties. 

Single / Double: 

Front: 12 feet 

Side: 5 feet (home); 10 feet between homes 

Rear: 10 feet 

Optional Garages (attached or detached): 

Setbacks shall comply with principal building setbacks (see Single / Double above) 

Community Buildings and Structures: 1.5x the building or structure height 

General Design Standards 

• Native vegetation may be salvaged when economically feasible and when the long-term

health of the vegetation is certain.  New vegetation will be planted in a manner that

reflects the natural environment in terms of plant density and species.  Trees will be planted

at a ratio of 1.5 trees per homesite.  Each tree will be a minimum size of ¾-inch caliper at

the time of installation.  Trees of 1½ inch caliper or larger in size shall count as two (2) trees.

All plantings shall be distributed evenly throughout the site.

48



• All utility lines shall be placed underground.

• Project perimeter fences or walls shall not be required; however, decorative / vinyl, pipe

rail, or similar barrier shall be provided where project abuts private ‘exempted’ properties.

Final design shall be negotiated with adjacent property owner; however, in no case shall

such barrier be a solid masonry wall or wrought iron ‘pool fence’ style fence as such barriers

are incompatible with wildlife movement.

• Chain link fencing shall be prohibited throughout the development.

• Private patios or decks shall be integrated into the design of the building, typically through

the use of complementary colors and materials.

• Outdoor storage of personal property shall be fully screened from public view and shall

not occur in any front setback.

• No mobile unit space, parking space, drive, street, or common area may be used for the

dismantling and/or storage of inoperable motor vehicles, equipment, or other personal

property.

• Adequate common trash collection stations shall be provided at a rate of not less than

one station per ten (10) spaces. Such stations shall be screened from view of adjacent

spaces and constructed in such a manner as to prevent the spreading of trash due to

wind or animals.

• Development shall be maintained in a clean, safe and sanitary manner. No refuse, debris,

trash, or uncontrolled vegetation shall be allowed to accumulate to such an extent as to

constitute a nuisance or potential threat to the lives, health, or property of the

development residents or surrounding property owners.

• All site and building lighting will be dark sky compliant.

Parking Requirements 

Parking for the residential component of Canyon River Ranch shall be as follows: 

General: 

• Parking spaces will be at least 8’ wide by 20’ deep

• Parking may be placed in a front setback or in one (1) side setback

• Parked vehicles shall not encroach into sidewalks, paths, trails, or roadways

• Parking criteria not addressed herein will conform with the provisions of the jurisdiction’s

Zoning Ordinance entitled “Off-Street Parking” and “Off-Street Loading Space and ADA

(Americans with Disabilities Act) Parking Requirements”

Single: 

• A minimum of one (1) on-site parking space required per homesite

Double: 

• A minimum of two (2) on-site parking spaces required per homesite

• Tandem parking shall be a permitted configuration

RV: 

• Guest parking will be provided at a ratio of .15 spaces per unit

49



Deeded Property and Parcels A & B 

Deeded Property 

The four (4) deeded acres discussed in the 

Public Outreach section of this project shall 

remain a part of the Canyon River Ranch 

project.  This property has been excluded 

from the site plan design at this time and will 

initially be an extension of the R1-D40 

Zoning that currently exists on Parcels A and 

B. All uses and development standards as

stated in the Gila County R1-D40 Zoning

District shall apply.   Simultaneously, the

entitlement for future development, should

the owners elect to pursue it, will be an

extension of the Canyon River Ranch

development and shall be capped at five (5) dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  All R1-D40 uses and

development standards shall be deemed null and void when any portion of said property is

developed in accordance with the Canyon River Ranch residential or RV community concept as

described herein.   Commercial retail or storage uses are prohibited unless this request is amended

accordingly, and RV spaces are capped at twenty (20) spaces total.  All applicable development

standards contained in this project shall apply.

Parcels A & B 

The owners of Parcels A & B were approached to have their properties included in this PAD to 

encourage future development potential and enhanced transition between current and future 

development.  Both owners declined the offer without opposition to the proposed development. 

Commercial Uses and Development Standards 
The Canyon River Ranch will provide up to 3 acres of land for small-scale commercial retail and 

services for public access.  Due to the nature of the community and its proximity to the nearest 

services, it is appropriate to include such uses into the development.  The permitted uses and 

development standards for the commercial component of the development will comply with the 

TR zoning district and as follows: 

Permitted Uses 

General retail sales of new and used merchandise, indoor only 

Motor fuel and propane sales 

Self-service storage for resident use only (up to 20,000 sf) 

Personal services, such as barber shops, salons, and similar uses 

Restaurants, indoor 

Restaurants, outdoor dining, where dining area is no closer than 100’ from a residence 

Temporary outdoor events 

• No more than 4 events per year

• No event shall not exceed three days in duration

B A 

50



• Limited to commercial property only

• Event shall not interfere with fire lanes, site circulation, or parking without specific

permission from the appropriate jurisdiction.

Building Height 

Twenty-five (25) feet maximum height, excluding structures such as the covered arena 

and pavilion, which have been constructed prior to the adoption of this PAD.  These 

structures may exceed the twenty-five (25) foot height limit but shall not be modified to 

exceed their current height.     

Building Setbacks 

From street: 1.5x the building height 

From all other property lines: 1.0x the building height  

Parking 

1 space per 200 square feet of building floor area 

Standard parking spaces shall be 9’x20’ 

ADA parking shall comply with the Federal ADA requirements in place at the time of 

development. 

Drive aisles shall be no less than 24 feet wide 

Signage 

Signage shall be limited to the following: 

• Building mounted signs shall be calculated at 1.5x the building front footage, or 1.5x

each suite width for multiple-suite buildings, whichever applies.

• Window signs shall be limited to 25% of the total window area of any building or suite.

• Monument signs shall be limited to commercial and recreational uses only and will be

no greater than 48 square feet in area and 8 feet in height per sign.

• On-site directional signs shall not be included in sign area calculations

• Where this PAD is silent on a given sign type, the sign standards for the Gila County

Section 104.4.B C-2 Zoning Commercial Two District (Intermediate Commercial) will

apply.

• Signage will be in compliance with Section 103.6 Signs of the Gila County Zoning

Ordinance, with the exception that all signage will be reduced to 50% brightness at

midnight.

Lighting 

All lighting shall be dark sky compliant, shielded downward, and cut to 50% brightness after 

midnight. 

51



Project Amenities 
Canyon River Ranch is rich with a diverse mix of private 

Community amenities that encourage an active lifestyle 

for its residents.  These amenities are dispersed throughout 

Canyon River Ranch for ease of access and to encourage 

pedestrian access.  For residents who prefer to drive, most 

of the amenities listed below are served by their own 

parking lots.  The Community amenities are as follows: 

• Over 93 acres of passive open space 

(approximately 59% of project area)  

• Approximately 1-acre private fishing pond

• 5 miles of multi-use paths and trails

• 20,000 square-foot covered arena

• 12,500 square-foot Community Clubhouse

• 5,600 square-foot social event pavilion

• Sport Courts

• Pickleball courts (10 planned)

• Tennis Courts (8 planned)

• Baseball / softball fields (2 planned)

• Basketball courts (2 planned)

• Community swimming pools with hospitality and

food (3 planned)

• Enclosed dog parks (3 planned)

Quality amenities such as these are essential to the high 

quality of life of the Canyon River Ranch residents.  While 

the location of these amenities is nearly certain, there may 

be instances where adjustments may be needed to better 

serve the needs of the community.  Such adjustments may 

include the substitution of similar amenities, additional 

amenities (or amenity expansion) in lieu of homesites, or 

relocation of an amenity to provide improved access and 

greater use of the amenity itself. 

52



Timing of Development 
Phasing 
While Canyon River Ranch could be developed in a single phase, there are 

some variables that could result in a multi-phased development plan.  In all 

practicality, a logical phasing plan would divide the project into two 

phases with the areas north and south of Doll Baby Ranch Road serving as 

Phases 1 and 2, respectively.  At this time, this shall be the phasing 

direction; however, as the project continues to make headway with water 

and wastewater solutions and with electricity planning, costs related to 

economies of scale, construction costs and mobilization, and unique 

reimbursement structures through Arizona Public Service (APS) based on 

phasing and product type may favor development in a single phase.  

Utilities and Services 

Water 
The Property History section of this request briefly mentions that this property was platted for 116 

residential lots.  At that time, water was to be provided via private on-site wells.  One such well 

with a pumphouse and storage tank currently exist near the western edge of the property.  As the 

property is repositioned for an age-restricted mobile / manufactured home community, the 

demand for water has increased.  The development team continues to explore viable options for 

a reliable and sustainable water supply.  It is understood that this PAD establishes the maximum 

entitlement for the property; however, it is also understood that attainment of that maximum 

entitlement may be impacted by the ability to serve the development with adequate water.        

Locating, treating, and delivering high-quality water from private on-site sources is the preferred 

water solution for Canyon River Ranch.  The development team has engaged a well-renowned 

hydrologist to study the area and produce findings regarding the location, quantity, and 

availability of underground water for the community.  At this stage of exploration, the 

development team is confident providing water via on-site sources is a viable option.   

In the event, however, that the findings are not ideal, the development team will explore 

additional options ranging from density reduction to furthering prior conversations with the Town 

of Payson regarding annexation.  The Town was receptive to annexation (with conditions), though 

while annexation would guarantee the needed water supply, the process(es) involved are require 

significant time and cost, thereby making the annexation option less attractive.   

Wastewater 
Like the topic of water discussed above, Canyon River Ranch also has options for wastewater 

collection and treatment.  Initially, it was contemplated that the community would connect to 

the North Gila County Sanitary District, which has a service facility near the Payson town limits at 

Phase 1 

Phase 2 

53



Doll Baby Ranch Road.  Distance from the site, topography, and overall costs of connections, 

maintenance, and impact fees has virtually eliminated this option.  To that end, a wastewater 

feasibility study has been conducted to determine demand and viable options for collection and 

treatment.  In alignment with the previous water solution, a private collection and treatment 

option will be pursued.  Treatment will include the reuse of effluent and a private hauler will remove 

the remaining material for off-site management.  Regardless of which wastewater solution is 

selected, it is unlikely that this decision will have any significant impact on the overall project 

density.   

Electricity 
Canyon River Ranch is in the Arizona Public Service (APS) service area.  Previous improvements to 

Doll Baby Ranch Road included the installation of dry utility conduit and pull-boxes.  

Communication with APS representatives is ongoing and will guide future improvements, if 

needed.   

Solid Waste 
Solid waste will be collected and hauled off-site via private carrier.    

Fire and Medical 
Emergency fire and medical service will be provided by the Town of Payson; however, Canyon 

River Partners, with support from the Town of Payson Fire Chief, has committed to establishing a 

local Fire District which, through assessed taxes and fees for the Canyon River Ranch residents, will 

fund a future emergency fire and medical facilities within the Canyon River Ranch community.  

Upon formation of the Fire District, Canyon River Ranch will provide a ‘Type 3’ firetruck to remain 

on-premises for Town of Payson EMS and fire crews to access as needed.  Additionally, 

approximately two (2) acres near the northeast corner of the community have been set aside for 

if, or when, it is determined by the Town of Payson that a local sub-station is warranted.   

Reversion to Acreage 
Upon approval of this rezoning request and the accompanying Minor Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment, an application to revert the previously approved plat associated with this property 

to acreage will be filed with the County. 

Streets and Common Areas 

Doll Baby Ranch Road 
Doll Baby Ranch Road is a public two-lane road that provides primary access to Canyon River 

Ranch from the Town of Payson.  Only about one mile of the road is located within the town limits, 

though it turns into West Country Club Drive and West Main Street as the alignment continues east 

in the Town. 

There is approximately 3,000 feet of the road that remains unimproved with approximately 1,000 

feet in the town limits of Payson and approximately 2,000 feet west of Town in unincorporated Gila 

54



County.  This unimproved section of the road is being studied for improvements that include 

realignment and critical crossings of the American Gulch drainageway.    

Beyond the Town of Payson, Doll Baby Ranch Road is mostly improved with asphalt paving, 

underground conduit, and pull boxes for dry utilities.  The extent of Doll Baby Ranch Road will 

remain public and publicly maintained by the jurisdiction within which it is located.   

Local Canyon River Ranch Roads 
All local roads within Canyon River Ranch will be privately owned and maintained.  These roads 

will be rural in nature, which equates to slightly narrower pavement widths and ribbon curbing in 

lieu of full curb, cutter, and sidewalk sections.   

Common Areas 
Canyon River Ranch will provide its residents with a wide variety of active and passive open space 

amenities that have been distributed throughout the community.  While the community will not 

be gated or otherwise separated from the surrounding National Forest by fences or walls, Canyon 

River Ranch may have a certain degree of public access.  Access to the community amenities, 

however, will be for residents only.  As such, these amenities will be privately constructed and 

maintained by the homeowners’ association.  

Development Plan 
Enclosed 

55



Canyon River Ranch 
GILA COUNTY, AZ 

Applicant: 

Michael Baker International 

Phoenix Plaza Tower II, 2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

25



Table of Contents 

Project Team 1 

Concept Plan 2 

Purpose of Request 3 

General 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 3 

Property History 3 

Context 4 

Surrounding and Adjacent Properties 4 

Public Outreach  4 

Proposal 6 

Property Size and Location 6 

Residential Uses 7 

Commercial Uses 7 

Project Amenities 7 

Timing of Development 9 

Phasing  9 

Utilities and Services 9 

Water  9 

Wastewater 9 

Electricity 10 

Solid Waste 10 

Fire and Medical 10 

Reversion to Acreage 10 

Streets and Common Areas 10 

Doll Baby Ranch Road  10 

Local Canyon River Ranch Roads  11 

Common Areas  11 

Development Plan 11 

Legal Description 12 

26



Project Team 

Canyon River Partners 

811 N Catalina Avenue, Suite 1306 

Redondo Beach, CA 90277 

Michael Baker International 

Phoenix Plaza Tower II, 2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

27



Concept Plan 

28



Purpose of Request 
General 
The purpose of this Comprehensive Plan Amendment is to modify the current land use designation 

to support a companion Canyon River Ranch rezoning application for the future development of 

an age-restricted mobile home and RV resort community.   

Comprehensive Plan 
The property is currently designated Residential with a projected density range of 0.1 to 0.4 

dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  This designation is intended for very low-density rural residential 

development, including farming and ranching.  To align the County’s Comprehensive Plan with 

this development, this Minor Amendment has been filed to change the land use designation from 

Residential 0.1 to 0.4 du/ac to Mixed Use.  Depending on how the County views the various 

dwelling types, the proposed residential density would be 4.56 du/ac (this counts RVs as dwelling 

units).   

Property History 
In 2008, the subject property was zoned PAD to allow for 

116 ‘cabin’ properties.  The final plat for this concept was 

completed and approved by Gila County in June of 2009 

with the first phase of construction beginning shortly 

thereafter.  Doll Baby Ranch Road from the Town of 

Payson town limits to the property was improved and dry 

utility conduit was installed.  On-site improvements 

included a portion of the residential road network and 

ribbon curbing, a well site with storage and pump 

facilities, grading and retention, a 20,000 square-foot 

covered arena and a 5,600 square-foot pavilion, and a 

decorative water tower entry feature.  Construction 

ceased by 2011 due to the prolonged economic 

recession that affected so much of the country.  

The property has since been acquired by Canyon River 

Partners, however, after analyzing market conditions, it is 

evident that the demand for the previously-entitled 

‘cabin’ concept has diminished considerably.  Therefore, 

this proposal intends to reposition the property in a 

manner that provides a new affordable and well-

amenitized housing option for the region.     

Figure 1: Previous Cabin Property Concept 

29



Context 
Surrounding and Adjacent Properties 
Canyon River Ranch is 

surrounded by United 

States Forest Service 

land.  Such lands are 

neither zoned nor do 

they have a local 

jurisdictional land use 

designation.  These are 

public lands intended for 

public use as prescribed 

by the federal 

government.  Ongoing 

communication with the 

USFS Payson Ranger 

Station has been a 

priority in the 

development of this project as well as discussions pertaining to access and drainage 

improvements along Doll Baby Ranch Road.  To date, the USFS remains supportive of the proposed 

development. 

This community will have a rather unique feature in that near the 

northern end of the property, there are two 2-acre occupied 

residential parcels under separate private ownership which occur 

within the boundary of the overall project.  The owners of these 

parcels were approached to be included in this project (without 

transfer of ownership), however, both owners have declined this 

offer.  Neither parcel is integral to the development of the Canyon 

River Ranch community.   

Public Outreach 
Based on the extensive history of this property, the development team has established a long-

standing relationship with property owners in the area, specifically, the Tonto National Forest 

Payson Ranger Station (USFS) and the exempted property owners.  Additionally, the team has had 

ongoing communication with the Town of Payson, Gila County, North Gila County Sanitary District, 

and private property owners along Doll Baby Ranch Road between the Town of Payson town limits 

and the Canyon River Ranch. 

A community meeting was held virtually on the Zoom meeting platform on January 14, 2021 at 

5:30 p.m.  Property owners within 300’ of the subject property were invited to attend the meeting 

to discuss the project in detail.  This was a productive meeting that resulted in a number of 

changes to the site plan that would improve access to Parcels A and B as shown in Figure 2 below, 

preserve or enhance privacy, and preserve views and physical access to the north.  These 

changes are in addition to a separate agreement between the Canyon River Ranch property 

N 

N 
- 001E - 001F

30



owner and the owners of Parcels A and B in which approximately four (4) acres of property will be 

deeded to the owners of Parcels A and B (Figure 2).   

Figure 2: Deeded Property 

B A 

31



Proposal 
Property Size and Location 
The subject property consists of 

approximately 158.16 acres 

located approximately 6.2 miles 

west of the Town of Payson on 

Doll Baby Ranch Road.  It is 

currently in an unincorporated 

portion of Gila County and 

remains undeveloped except for 

the improvements stated above.  In total, this proposal includes twenty (20) parcels, seventeen 

(17) of which were created with the previous rezoning and Phase 1 plat.

Parcels A & B 

Parcels A & B 

The owners of Parcels A & B were approached to have their properties included in this PAD to 

encourage future development potential and enhanced transition between current and future 

development.  Both owners declined the offer without opposition to the proposed development.    

Deeded Property 

The four (4) deeded acres discussed in the 

Public Outreach section of this project shall 

remain a part of the Canyon River Ranch 

project.  This property has been excluded 

from the site plan design at this time and will 

initially be an extension of the R1-D40 

Zoning that currently exists on Parcels A and 

B. All uses and development standards as

stated in the Gila County R1-D40 Zoning 

District shall apply.   Simultaneously, the 

entitlement for future development, should 

the owners elect to pursue it, will be an 

extension of the Canyon River Ranch 

development and shall be capped at five (5) dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  All R1-D40 uses and 

development standards shall be deemed null and void when any portion of said property is 

developed in accordance with the Canyon River Ranch residential or RV community concept as 

described herein.   Commercial retail or storage uses are prohibited unless this request is amended 

accordingly, and RV spaces are capped at twenty (20) spaces total.  All applicable development 

standards contained in this project shall apply.     

Parcels Included in this Proposal 
301-46-001C 301-72-040 301-72-045 301-72-051

301-46-001D 301-72-041 301-72-046 301-72-052 

301-72-037 301-72-042 301-72-047 301-72-053 

301-72-038 301-72-043 301-72-048 

301-72-039 301-72-044 301-72-050 
Parcel number in bold text is under separate ownership but has provided

written authorization to be included in this PAD.

B A 

32



Residential Component 
Canyon River Ranch is an age-restricted 

community comprised of up to 721 residential 

homesites comprised of both mobile home 

homesites and Recreational Vehicle (RV) 

spaces.  Canyon River Ranch will welcome a 

mix of ‘single’ and ‘double’ mobile homes as 

well as RV sites with full utility connections.  

Homesites will be improved and leased to residents, who will place their home on the site and 

connect to provided water, wastewater, and electric utilities.    

At build-out, it is anticipated that the total RV spaces will not exceed 40% of the total residential 

entitlement; however, as development commences, there may be a period of time where 

Canyon River Ranch may be occupied 100% by Recreational Vehicles.  Each phase of Canyon 

River Ranch may allow 100% Recreational Vehicle use on temporary basis for a period of 36 

months from the issuance of the first building permit for the given phase.  This allowance includes 

the temporary RV use of mobile home homesites.    

Commercial Uses 
The Canyon River Ranch will provide up to 3 acres of land for small-scale commercial retail and 

services for public access.  Due to the nature of the community and its proximity to the nearest 

services, it is appropriate to include such uses into the development.  The permitted uses and 

development standards for the commercial component of the development will comply with the 

TR zoning district and as follows: 

Permitted Uses 

General retail sales of new and used merchandise, indoor only 

Motor fuel and propane sales 

Self-service storage for resident use only (up to 20,000 sf) 

Personal services, such as barber shops, salons, and similar uses 

Restaurants, indoor 

Restaurants, outdoor dining, where dining area is no closer than 100’ from a residence 

Temporary outdoor events 

• No more than 4 events per year

• No event shall not exceed three days in duration

• Limited to commercial property only

• Event shall not interfere with fire lanes, site circulation, or parking without specific

permission from the appropriate jurisdiction.

Project Amenities 
Canyon River Ranch is rich with a diverse mix of private Community amenities that encourage an 

active lifestyle for its residents.  These amenities are dispersed throughout Canyon River Ranch for 

Residential Homesites 721 (4.56 du/ac)

RV Spaces 40% (288*) 

Open Space 93 acres 

Commercial 3 acres

Storage 20,000 s.f.

* RV space allowance based on entitlement

33



ease of access and to encourage pedestrian access.  For 

residents who prefer to drive, most of the amenities listed 

below are served by their own parking lots.  The Community 

amenities are as follows: 

• Over 93 acres of passive open space 

(approximately 59% of project area)  

• Approximately 1-acre private fishing pond

• 5 miles of multi-use paths and trails

• 20,000 square-foot covered arena

• 12,500 square-foot Community Clubhouse

• 5,600 square-foot social event pavilion

• Sport Courts

• Pickleball courts (10 planned)

• Tennis Courts (8 planned)

• Baseball / softball fields (2 planned)

• Basketball courts (2 planned)

• Community swimming pools with hospitality and

food (3 planned)

• Enclosed dog parks (3 planned)

Quality amenities such as these are essential to the high 

quality of life of the Canyon River Ranch residents.  While 

the location of these amenities is nearly certain, there may 

be instances where adjustments may be needed to better 

serve the needs of the community.  Such adjustments may 

include the substitution of similar amenities, additional 

amenities (or amenity expansion) in lieu of homesites, or 

relocation of an amenity to provide improved access and 

greater use of the amenity itself. 

34



Timing of Development 
Phasing 
While Canyon River Ranch could be developed in a single phase, there are 

some variables that could result in a multi-phased development plan.  In all 

practicality, a logical phasing plan would divide the project into two phases 

with the areas north and south of Doll Baby Ranch Road serving as Phases 

1 and 2, respectively.  At this time, this shall be the phasing direction; 

however, as the project continues to make headway with water and 

wastewater solutions and with electricity planning, costs related to 

economies of scale, construction costs and mobilization, and unique 

reimbursement structures through Arizona Public Service (APS) based on 

phasing and product type may favor development in a single phase.  

Utilities and Services 

Water 
The Property History section of this request briefly mentions that this property was platted for 116 

residential lots.  At that time, water was to be provided via private on-site wells.  One such well 

with a pumphouse and storage tank currently exist near the western edge of the property.  As the 

property is repositioned for an age-restricted mobile / manufactured home community, the 

demand for water has increased.  The development team continues to explore viable options for 

a reliable and sustainable water supply.  It is understood that this PAD establishes the maximum 

entitlement for the property; however, it is also understood that attainment of that maximum 

entitlement may be impacted by the ability to serve the development with adequate water.        

Locating, treating, and delivering high-quality water from private on-site sources is the preferred 

water solution for Canyon River Ranch.  The development team has engaged a well-renowned 

hydrologist to study the area and produce findings regarding the location, quantity, and 

availability of underground water for the community.  At this stage of exploration, the 

development team is confident providing water via on-site sources is a viable option.   

In the event, however, that the findings are not ideal, the development team will explore 

additional options ranging from density reduction to furthering prior conversations with the Town 

of Payson regarding annexation.  The Town was receptive to annexation (with conditions), though 

while annexation would guarantee the needed water supply, the process(es) involved are require 

significant time and cost, thereby making the annexation option less attractive.   

Wastewater 
Like the topic of water discussed above, Canyon River Ranch also has options for wastewater 

collection and treatment.  Initially, it was contemplated that the community would connect to 

the North Gila County Sanitary District, which has a service facility near the Payson town limits at 

Phase 1 

Phase 2 

35



Doll Baby Ranch Road.  Distance from the site, topography, and overall costs of connections, 

maintenance, and impact fees has virtually eliminated this option.  To that end, a wastewater 

feasibility study has been conducted to determine demand and viable options for collection and 

treatment.  In alignment with the previous water solution, a private collection and treatment 

option will be pursued.  Treatment will include the reuse of effluent and a private hauler will remove 

the remaining material for off-site management.  Regardless of which wastewater solution is 

selected, it is unlikely that this decision will have any significant impact on the overall project 

density.   

Electricity 
Canyon River Ranch is in the Arizona Public Service (APS) service area.  Previous improvements to 

Doll Baby Ranch Road included the installation of dry utility conduit and pull-boxes.  

Communication with APS representatives is ongoing and will guide future improvements, if 

needed.   

Solid Waste 
Solid waste will be collected and hauled off-site via private carrier.    

Fire and Medical 
Emergency fire and medical service will be provided by the Town of Payson; however, Canyon 

River Partners, with support from the Town of Payson Fire Chief, has committed to establishing a 

local Fire District which, through assessed taxes and fees for the Canyon River Ranch residents, will 

fund a future emergency fire and medical facilities within the Canyon River Ranch community.  

Upon formation of the Fire District, Canyon River Ranch will provide a ‘Type 3’ firetruck to remain 

on-premises for Town of Payson EMS and fire crews to access as needed.  Additionally, 

approximately two (2) acres near the northeast corner of the community have been set aside for 

if, or when, it is determined by the Town of Payson that a local sub-station is warranted.   

Reversion to Acreage 
Upon approval of this rezoning request and the accompanying Minor Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment, an application to revert the previously approved plat associated with this property 

to acreage will be filed with the County. 

Streets and Common Areas 

Doll Baby Ranch Road 
Doll Baby Ranch Road is a public two-lane road that provides primary access to Canyon River 

Ranch from the Town of Payson.  Only about one mile of the road is located within the town limits, 

though it turns into West Country Club Drive and West Main Street as the alignment continues east 

in the Town. 

There is approximately 3,000 feet of the road that remains unimproved with approximately 1,000 

feet in the town limits of Payson and approximately 2,000 feet west of Town in unincorporated Gila 

36



County.  This unimproved section of the road is being studied for improvements that include 

realignment and critical crossings of the American Gulch drainageway.    

Beyond the Town of Payson, Doll Baby Ranch Road is mostly improved with asphalt paving, 

underground conduit, and pull boxes for dry utilities.  The extent of Doll Baby Ranch Road will 

remain public and publicly maintained by the jurisdiction within which it is located.   

Local Canyon River Ranch Roads 
All local roads within Canyon River Ranch will be privately owned and maintained.  These roads 

will be rural in nature, which equates to slightly narrower pavement widths and ribbon curbing in 

lieu of full curb, cutter, and sidewalk sections.   

Common Areas 
Canyon River Ranch will provide its residents with a wide variety of active and passive open space 

amenities that have been distributed throughout the community.  While the community will not 

be gated or otherwise separated from the surrounding National Forest by fences or walls, Canyon 

River Ranch may have a certain degree of public access.  Access to the community amenities, 

however, will be for residents only.  As such, these amenities will be privately constructed and 

maintained by the homeowners’ association.  

Development Plan 
Enclosed 

37



Legal Description 
THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF GILA, STATE OF ARIZONA, 

AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL NO. 1: 

HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, EMBRACING A PORTION OF APPROXIMATELY SECTIONS 8 AND 

17, TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 1, FROM WHICH U.S. LOCATION MONUMENT NO. 131 BEARS NORTH 

86 DEGREES 58 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE OF 151.39 CHAINS; 

THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 26.10 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 2;  

THENCE SOUTH 42 DEGREES 38 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 11.55 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 3;  

THENCE SOUTH 24 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 40.40 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 4; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 14 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE OF 38.50 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 32 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.05 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 1, THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING, ACCORDING TO BOOK 37 OF REAL ESTATE DEEDS, PAGE 377, RECORDS OF 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT CORNER NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 

NO. 1 AND NO. 2 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 1153.98 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 190.00 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 250.00 

FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 697.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 250.00 FEET; 

381



THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 697.00 FEET TO THE POINT 

OF BEGINNING; AND 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 

NOS. 4 AND 5 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 2538.84 FEET TO SAID 

CORNER NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 

NO. 5 AND NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 74 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 47 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2488.49 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 

600.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PARCEL NO. 2: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, EMBRACING A PORTION OF 

APPROXIMATELY SECTIONS 8 AND 17, TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT 

RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 

NO. 4 AND 5 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 2538.84 FEET TO SAID 

CORNER NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 

NO. 5 AND NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 74 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 47 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2488.49 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 

600.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

39



Michael Baker International  
2929 N. Central Avenue, 8th Floor 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

May 3, 2021 

Gila County Community Development Department 
Attn: Randy Pluimer, Director 
608 E. Hwy 260 Payson, AZ 85541 

Re:  Canyon River Ranch - Reversion to Acreage 

Dear Mr. Pluimer, 

The purpose of this letter is to initiate the Reversion to Acreage process for the Canyon River Ranch property 
located approximately 6.2 miles west of the Town of Payson on Doll Baby Ranch Road.  This request comes at 
the behest of County staff following the Planning and Zoning Commission’s April 15, 2021 continuance of the 
associated Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning hearing items.   

It is our intent to process this application in a manner that minimizes any delays with the in-progress 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment at Rezoning requests, both of which have been scheduled for hearings before 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors.  It is also our request, that if shared with the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning items on the same agenda, this item be placed after these two 
items to ensure the two ‘entitlement’ requests are heard, and presumably approved, before taking action on a 
item that would effectively remove an existing development right from the property (i.e. final plat).   

In the spirit of cooperation and more importantly, a strong desire to begin construction on this project, please 
accept this letter as the formal initiation of the Reversion to Acreage process.   

Regards, 

Adam D. Pruett 

Enclosures: 
Legal Description 
Project Boundary Exhibit 

56





Canyon River Ranch 
Legal Description 

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF GILA, STATE OF ARIZONA, AND 
IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL NO. 1: 

HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, EMBRACING A PORTION OF APPROXIMATELY SECTIONS 8 AND 17, 
TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 1, FROM WHICH U.S. LOCATION MONUMENT NO. 131 BEARS NORTH 86 
DEGREES 58 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE OF 151.39 CHAINS; 

THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 26.10 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 2;  

THENCE SOUTH 42 DEGREES 38 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 11.55 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 3;  

THENCE SOUTH 24 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 40.40 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 4; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 14 MINUTES WEST, A DISTANCE OF 38.50 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 32 MINUTES EAST, A DISTANCE OF 44.05 CHAINS TO CORNER NO. 1, THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, ACCORDING TO BOOK 37 OF REAL ESTATE DEEDS, PAGE 377, RECORDS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT CORNER NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 1 
AND NO. 2 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 1153.98 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 190.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 250.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 697.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 11 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 41 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 250.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 697.00 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; AND 

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 
NOS. 4 AND 5 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 2538.84 FEET TO SAID 
CORNER NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 5 
AND NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 FEET; 

57



THENCE SOUTH 74 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 47 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2488.49 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PARCEL NO. 2: 

THAT PORTION OF HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, EMBRACING A PORTION OF APPROXIMATELY 
SECTIONS 8 AND 17, TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND 
MERIDIAN, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE NORTH 75 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 
4 AND 5 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 2538.84 FEET TO SAID CORNER 
NO. 5; 

THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 5 
AND NO. 1 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 74 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 47 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2488.49 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 OF SAID HOMESTEAD ENTRY SURVEY NO. 613; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 600.00 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

58



Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

05
/0

3/
21



Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

4/
4/

21

·

·

·

·

A:\PDATA\181793_Canyon River Ranch\3_CADD\Land\CAD\Land\181793-01-SP.dwg, 4/5/2021 10:02:42 AM



S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
SSSSSSS

S

S

S

S

S

SW

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSS

S
S

SSSSS W W W W W W W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W W

W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W

S S S S S

W
W

W
W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

05
/11

/2
1

S

W



S

S
SSSSSSS

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W

W

W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SSSSSSSSS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

SSSSSSSSW W W W W W W W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
SW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

SSSSSSSSSW W W W W W W W W W W

SSSSSSSW W W W W W W W W W

SSSSS W W W W W W

S S
W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S
S

S

W
W

W
W

W

W

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

SSSSSS
S

S
S

S
S

S W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

SSSSSS
S

S
S

S
SW

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W W W W W W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

05
/11

/2
1

S

W



Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

4/
4/

21

A:\PDATA\181793_Canyon River Ranch\3_CADD\Land\CAD\Land\181793-04-05-SP.dwg, 4/5/2021 9:57:51 AM



Expires  09 / 30 / 21

DATE SIGNED...

M
BA

KE
R

IN
TL

.C
O

M

29
29

 N
 C

EN
TR

AL
 A

VE
, S

U
IT

E 
80

0
PH

O
EN

IX
, A

Z 
85

01
2

Ph
on

e:
 (6

02
) 2

79
-1

23
4

4/
4/

21

A:\PDATA\181793_Canyon River Ranch\3_CADD\Land\CAD\Land\181793-04-05-SP.dwg, 4/5/2021 9:58:54 AM







 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

TO THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

GILA COUNTY CASE NUMBERS CPA2103-001, REZONP2103-001 AND P2105-067 

MINOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT, REZONING AND 

 REVERSION TO ACREAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

Public Hearing 

July 27, 2021 

 

610 East Highway 260 

Payson, Arizona 

 

and 

 

745 Rose Mofford Way 

Globe, Arizona 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Case Details 

Gila County Case Number:  CPA2103-001, REZONP2103-001 and 

P2105-067 

Request:  A minor amendment to the Gila County 

Comprehensive Plan to change the land use 

designation from Residential 0.1-0.4 du/ac to 

Mixed Use, an amendment to the Gila 

County Zoning Map to change the zoning 

designation from R1-D40 and R1L-D40 to 

Transitional Residential with a Planned 

Development Overlay and Trailer Overlay 

and a Reversion to Acreage related to the 

Canyon River Ranch subdivision plat 

Applicant:                      Michael Baker International 

Owner: Canyon River Partners LLC and International 

West Civil Contractors Inc.  

Staff Member:     Michelle Dahlke, Senior Planner 

 

 

Property Details 

 

Assessor Parcel Number:  301-46-001C, 301-46-001D and 301-72-037 

through 301-72-053 

Property Address:  None yet assigned 

Property Location:  Canyon River Ranch area 

Parcel Size:       158 acres approximately 

Current Zoning Designation:    R1-D12 and R1L-D12 

Current Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential (0.1 to 0.4 du/ac) 

Current Land Use:  Vacant  

Surrounding Zoning/Land Uses*: North – R1-D40 

East –  R1-D40 and R1L-D40 

South – R1-D12 

West – R1-D12 

 

Note:  A copy of the zoning maps for the property and surrounding area are located on the 

following pages. 

 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

 

At their June 17, 2021 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval of the minor Comprehensive Plan amendment, rezoning and reversion to acreage subject 

to the revised conditions listed in the recommendation section of this staff report.  

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Property Background 

 

The Planning Commission continued these items at their April 15, 2021 hearing to the May 20, 

2021 hearing allow more time for staff to analyze the request and meet with the applicant to discuss 

infrastructure and related property improvements.  The applicant requested a continuance of the 

request to the June 17, 2021 meeting due to the illness of a team member.  

 

The subject property was originally planned as a five-phased residential development generally 

referred to as Canyon River Ranch.  Gila County approved a rezoning of the property in 2008 and 

a final subdivision plat was approved for the development in 2009. While some improvements 

were constructed, including a 5,600 square foot pavilion, a 20,000 square foot covered arena, a 

well site, a decorative entry feature/water tower, and some internal road work and grading, further 

development of the property was placed on hold due to the impacts of the Great Recession. Note 

that there are two parcels of land located in the area of the request that are not part of this request 

(APN # 301-46-001E and 001F).   

 

 

 
Figure 1: Aerial of the northern portion of the property.  The arrow on the left are parcels that are not included with these 

requests.  The arrow on the left are the existing improvements on the property from the initial development phase. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Figure 2:  Zoning Map # 1 of the Overall Property 

 

Figure 3: Zoning Map # 2 of the Platted Portion of the Property 

Description of Request 

 

The property recently changed hands and the new property owner is proposing a mixed-use 

development consisting of residential and commercial uses with a substantial amount of passive 

open space.  At complete buildout, there will be 721 residential homes sites with a mixture of 

single and doublewide mobile homes with approximately 40% of the overall homesite devoted to 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

recreational vehicles.  Each homesite will be fully improved with electricity, water and wastewater 

services and leased to the resident for placement of a home or recreational vehicle. The owners 

would; however, like the ability to lease up to 100% of the property for recreational vehicle uses 

until such time as the project is fully developed.  Per the project narrative, the 100% recreational 

vehicle use will be for a temporary basis, for a period of 36 months from the issuance of the first 

building permit for any given phase.   

 

The proposed commercial uses include restaurants, personal service businesses, self-storage 

facilities, general retail sales and motor fuel and propane sales, all of which are mainly intended 

to serve the community.  The property owners also envision certain temporary outdoor events. 

 

The property owners propose to offer a significant number of amenities with this development 

including the existing pavilion and arena, a large community clubhouse, multiple miles of multi-

use trails and paths, a 1-acre fishing pond, passive open space representing almost 60% of the 

property, and multiple sporting opportunities such as pickleball, tennis, baseball and softball, 

basketball courts, three dog parks and three community swimming pools.  

 

As part of the Planned Area Development (“PAD”) overlay zoning, the property owner is asking 

for a few deviations from the development standards of the Trailer district overlay requirements 

for mobile homes and recreational vehicles, commercial district and parking requirements.  The 

table below provides a comparison of what the minimum requirements are versus what the 

property owner is asking with the PAD overlay.  Note that the purpose of PAD overlays is to allow 

flexibility in meeting the requirements of the underlying zoning district.  The Zoning Ordinance 

recognizes that for specific planned communities, the PAD overlay can provide better alternatives 

for some land developments than conventional zoning districts can.  Furthermore, the purpose of 

the PAD overlay is to encourage innovative and imaginative planning with a variety of housing 

opportunities that are affordable to the community. 

 

 

 Existing Proposed with PAD 

Residential  

Minimum Space Area 

-Single Wide 

-Double Wide 

-RV 

Minimum Space Width 

-Single Wide 

-Double Wide 

-RV 

Minimum Space Depth 

-Single Wide 

-Double Wide 

-RV 

Minimum Setbacks 

-from exterior boundary 

 

 

3,400 SF 

4,675 SF 

1,500 SF 

 

40’ 

55’ 

25’ 

 

85’ 

85’ 

60’ 

 

10’ 

5’ 

 

 

3,000 SF 

6,000 SF 

1,500 SF 

 

33’ 

55’ 

25’ 

 

85’ 

85’ 

60’ 

 

10’ from outer perimeter and 

20’ from inner perimeter 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

-from any interior street or 

rear, front or non-main entry 

space 

 

 

 

-distance between mobile 

units within same 

development 

 

Parking 

-space area 

-number of spaces 

 

 

 

Building Height 

-maximum 

 

 

 

 

Commercial  

Building Height 

 

 

 

 

 

Building Setbacks 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parking 

-minimum # of spaces 

 

-space area 

 

Signage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10’ 

 

 

 

 

9’ by 20’ 

2 per unit 

 

 

 

 

30’ 

 

 

 

 

 

-30’ in C1 

-36’ in C2 

-40’ in C3 

 

 

 

-20’ front (C1 & C2) 

-0’ side (20’ if adjacent to 

residential) (C1 & C2) 

-20’ rear (C1 & C2) 

 

None required in C3 unless 

abutting residential where the 

setback is 30’ 

 

 

 

1 space per 300 SF of gross 

floor area 

9’ by 20’ 

 

Varies by commercial use 

districts 

where project abuts a private 

exempted property 

Single/Double Front - 12’ 

Single/Double Side - 5’ 

Single/Double Rear – 10’ 

10’ 

 

 

 

 

8’ by 20’ 

1 per single wide 

2 per double wide 

0.15 guest parking spaces per 

unit 

 

16’ 

 

 

 

 

 

30’ max for all commercial 

uses 

 

 

 

 

1.5 x building height 

1.0 x building height from all 

other property lines 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 space per 200 SF of 

building floor area 

9’ by 20’ 

 

1.5 x the building front 

footage, of 1.5 x each suite 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

width for multiple-suite 

buildings 

25% of the total window area 

of any building or suite for 

window signs 

48 SF in area and 8’ in height 

for monument signs  

On-site directional signs shall 

not be included in sign area 

calculations 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Figure 4: Conceptual (Revised Since April 15th P&Z Meeting) Site Layout 

 

Phasing and Improvements 

 

Phasing 

 

The applicant would like the flexibility to develop the property either as a single phase, or as a 

two-phased development, depending on the timing of the approvals related to infrastructure 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

permitting, construction costs and mobilization. If it becomes a two-phased project, the applicant 

anticipates one phase north of Doll Baby Ranch Road and the second phase to the south of this 

road.  

 

Water 

 

Currently, the applicant is exploring viable options to provide water to the project.  Previously, 

when the property was to be developed for single-family residences, water was to be provided 

through private wells. With a change in use of the property from single-family residences to a 

mobile/manufactured home/RV project, the applicant has retained a hydrologist to determine the 

potential capacity and availability of water to serve the project. Ultimately, the applicant will need 

to get approvals from the Arizona Departments of Environmental Quality and Water Resources to 

provide water to the property.  

 

Wastewater 

 

The applicant is proposing to utilize a private wastewater collection and treatment plant based on 

a wastewater feasibility study conducted for the property.  The proposed treatment includes the 

reuse of effluent with a private hauler to remove the remaining material for off-site management.  

The applicant will need to obtain approval from the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality 

for the wastewater system that will serve the project.  

 

Emergency Services 

 

The applicant has had numerous discussions with the Town of Payson with respect to emergency 

medical and fire service to the project.  Per a letter dated May 12, 2021 from the Town of Payson 

Fire Chief, the Town is in support of the project subject to the following conditions: 1) the 

developer of the property creates a Fire District which will contract with the Town to provide fire 

and emergency service, 2) the developer will contribute $700,000 to the Town for the purchase of 

a fire engine and equip it as needed by the Town (the truck will be kept at a Town facility), 3) the 

developer will ensure that all access roads within the development meet the requirements of the 

International Fire Code adopted by the Town, 4) the developer will provide fire hydrants 

throughout the community that meet the Town’s adopted Fire Code requirements, 5) the developer 

will provide a water fire flow of 500 gallons per minute from all fire hydrants at 20 psi residual 

pressure that has a duration of two hours, 6) that all buildings in the development will be equipped 

with an automatic fire sprinkler system that meets the use of the building which is required when 

there is no secondary access out of the development, and 7) that the developer will dedicate two 

acres of land for the Fire District to use for a future fire station.  

 

Ingress and Egress 

 

Doll Baby Ranch Road, which is the primary access road between the property and the Town, is a 

public, two-lane road. Approximately 1,000 feet of this road is located within the Town and 

roughly 2,000 feet is located within the County’s jurisdiction.  The applicant has discussed the 

required improvements of Doll Baby Ranch Road with the Town and the County and has agreed 

to make the necessary improvements in accordance with Town and County requirements.  Part of 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

the improvements will include a road realignment and drainage crossings over the American Gulch 

drainageway.   

 

Citizen Participation 

 

The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting via Zoom on January 14, 2021.  All property 

owners within 300’ of the property were notified of the meeting in advance (see notification map 

below). The owners of the properties shown by the red arrow below attended the meeting and 

asked questions.   

 

 

 
 

Figure 5:  300' Notification Map and Exhibit from Applicant 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Figure 6: To Be Deeded Area 

Per the applicant, several changes were made to the conceptual layout of the property in response 

to comments received at the neighborhood meeting including improved access to parcels “A” and 

“B” (APN # 301-46-001E and 001F) as well as physical access to the north. Additionally, the 

property owners will deed land to the owners of parcel “A” and “B”.  Please note that the “to be 

deeded” area is a part of the subject Comprehensive Plan and Rezoning requests; however, per the 

applicant, the uses in the “to be deeded” area are to be in conformance with the uses and 

requirements of the current zoning designation of R1-D40.   This will enable the owners of “A” 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

and “B” to exercise their current property uses and rights.  Any future development of the “to be 

deeded” area will be subject to the TR-PAD-T standards.  

 

Staff Review and Analysis 

 

In order to develop the property as proposed, a change in the Comprehensive Plan land use 

designation and a rezoning are required.  The current land use designation for the property is 

Residential (0.1-0.4 dwelling units per acre), which is intended for low-density rural detached 

residential development, would not permit the proposed 4 ½ unit per acre development.  

Additionally, this residential land use designation only permits non-residential uses if permitted in 

the underlying zoning district and is located on a cumulative total of less than two acres and 

separated and buffered from adjacent residential uses.  Due to the mix of uses requested on the 

property, the Comprehensive Plan land use designation of Mixed Use is appropriate.   

 

The proposed mix of uses and the use of mobile homes and recreational vehicles is not permitted 

under the existing zoning designation on the property of R1-D40 and R1L-D40 which is why a 

zoning change is required.  The proposed zoning designation of Transitional Residential is 

intended for a mix of residential and commercial uses subject to a Development Plan.  

Additionally, the Trailer district overlay will allow for the mobile home and recreational vehicle 

uses.  The Planned Area Development overlay will enable the development to deviate from some 

of the zoning regulations as discussed earlier in this report. 

 

Due to assurances from the developer that they will meet all applicable development standards and 

obtain all required local and state infrastructure and building permits, staff does not believe that 

the proposed change in the Comprehensive Plan land use designation or the requested zoning 

designation change would have a negative impact on the property or surrounding area.  Rather, 

due to the significant number of amenities proposed and the fact that the project will bring more 

affordable housing to the area, staff believes the project will have a positive overall impact on the 

community.    

 

The project will be required to go through the Development Plan process prior to the issuance of 

a building permit and, the State of Arizona will need to approve the proposed water and wastewater 

service to the community.  

 

The applicant is also requesting a Reversion to Acreage for the Canyon River Ranch final 

subdivision plat. Approval of the reversion will abandon the final plat, which was recorded in the 

official records of Gila County in 2008, and revert the land back to the original acreage that existed 

prior to the final plat being recorded.  This will enable the property owner to develop their mixed-

use project as proposed.  

 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the request as follows: 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1) A motion to approve Case Number CPA2103-001, a minor amendment to the Gila County 

Comprehensive Plan, to change the land use designation from Residential 0.1-0.4 du/ac to 

Mixed Use. 

 

2) A motion to approve Case Number REZONP2103-001, a request to change the Gila 

County Zoning Map zoning designation from R1-D40 and R1L-D40 to Transitional 

Residential with a Planned Development Overlay and Trailer Overlay subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

a. The applicant shall: 

 

i. Obtain Development Plan approval from the County prior to the submittal 

of any infrastructure permits. Development Plans (Section 103.10 of the 

Gila County Zoning Ordinance) are required for all commercial and mixed-

use projects and allow the Zoning Inspector to request information as may 

be deemed necessary.  Important information that will be required of the 

Development Plan will include, but is not limited to the following: 

1. The submittal of improvement plans to the County Public Works 

Department for that portion of Doll Baby Ranch Road that is located 

within the jurisdiction of the County. 

2. The submittal of drainage and improvement plans to the County 

Flood Control District. 

3. Written evidence that the Forest Service has approved the 

realignment of the Doll Baby Ranch Road.  

4. Approval from the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality 

and the Department of Water Resources for the proposed water and 

wastewater service for the project.   

5. Provide a letter from a licensed hydrologist stating that the property 

has the capacity to serve the proposed development with water, 

including the water capacity and years of supply. 

6. Provide an emergency evacuation plan to the County Emergency 

Management Division. 

ii. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the applicant shall: 

1. Provide a letter from the Town of Payson stating that all 

requirements of the Fire District have been satisfied.  

iii. Recreational vehicles on the property shall only be used in conformance 

with manufacturer’s specifications. 

 

3) A motion to approve Permit #P2105-067, a request for a Reversion to Acreage for the 

Canyon River Ranch Final Subdivision plat, recorded on December 23, 2008 in the Official 

Records of Gila County, Recording Number 2008-015996.   

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Staff is supportive of the request subject to the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation. 

 



CANYON RIVER 
RANCH

Gila County

Board of Supervisors

July 27, 2021



Property is comprised of 158 acres located approximately 6.2 miles west of the Town 
of Payson on Doll Baby Ranch Road, which bisects the property.

Requesting Minor Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning to allow for the 
development of an age-restricted mobile home and RV resort community

Minor Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Residential 0.1 to 0.4 du/ac to Mixed Use

Rezoning

Transitional Residential with Planned Area Development (PAD) & Trailer District 
overlays (TR-PAD-T) 

PROPERTY HISTORY AND CURRENT APPLICATIONS



MINOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT

Current Designation 

(Residential 0.1 to 0.4 du/ac)

Proposed Designation 

(Mixed Use)



REZONING

Transitional Residential with Planned Area 

Development (PAD) & Trailer District overlays 

(TR-PAD-T) 

Promotes a cohesive development

Allows a mixed of uses 

• Predominantly residential with light commercial 

Allows a variety of housing options 

• Mobile homes and RVs



DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

Homesites 721 (4.56 du/ac)

RV Spaces 40% (288*)

Open Space 93 acres

Light Commercial 3 acres

Storage 20,000 s.f.

* RV space allowance based on entitlement 

Homesites: Single and Double Mobile Homes

RV spaces 

Commercial: Retail, indoor

Fuel and propane sales

Personal services

Restaurants

Self-Storage

Development Summary Table



NEIGHBORS

Parcels A & B

− Privately-Owned, not part of 

this project

− Approx. 2 ac. each

To Be Deeded

− Approx. 4 ac. total

− Included in this project

− Up to 5 du/ac, 20 RVs

− To be deeded to owners of 

Parcels A & B



PROJECT AMENITIES

Over 93 acres of passive open space (nearly 59% of project area)  

Approximately 1-acre private fishing pond 

5 miles of multi-use paths and trails

20,000 square-foot open food hall and recreation space

12,500 square-foot Community Clubhouse

5,600 square-foot social event pavilion

Sport Courts
• Pickleball courts (10 planned)

• Tennis Courts (8 planned)

• Baseball / softball fields (2 planned)

• Basketball courts (2 planned)

• Community swimming pools with hospitality and food (3 planned)

• Enclosed dog parks (3 planned)

Concierge service



PROJECT AMENITIES – (CON’T)



STREETSCAPE & LANDSCAPING



INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW

Water will be provided by on-site wells and treated to meet or exceed ADEQ quality 

standards

Wastewater will be collected and treated on-site 

−High-quality effluent will be reused for landscaping and open space amenities

− Solids will be separated and removed from the property by a private carrier

Arizona Public Service (APS) will extend electricity to the property

Solid Waste will be hauled by a private carrier

Fire and EMS provided by Town of Payson

– Establish a Fire District to fund service

– Provide firetruck to remain onsite for TOP Fire / EMS staff to use

–Up to 2 acres set aside for future Fire Sub-Station if warranted

Doll Baby Ranch Road will remain a public County road

Canyon River Ranch interior / local roads will be private



THANK YOU

Adam Pruett 602.308.1320

Adam.Pruett@mbakerintl.com



   
ARF-6765   Regular Agenda Item     4. A.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation/Discussion regarding redistricting of Gila County.

Background Information
Redistricting: A.R.S. § 11-212 requires the Board of Supervisors to meet
following the decennial census and divide the county into supervisorial
districts. The 2020 census data has been delayed until September 2021,
therefore, allowing the County time to conduct a thorough and
transparent redistricting process. The redistricting process for Gila
County will be completed in spring 2022.  The Board of Supervisors may
appoint a Gila County Citizens Advisory Committee.  The Citizens
Advisory Committee will work under the auspices of the Board of
Supervisors, along with consultants James" Mac" Feezor and Bruce
Adelson, Esq., to obtain public input, hold public hearings, and review
alternative redistricting plans.

Evaluation
The discussion will include the Board of Supervisors reviewing guiding
principles, and the selection process of the Gila County Citizen Advisory
Committee. It is intended that the content of the resolution be discussed
and staff be directed to finalize the resolution for adoption at the August
3, 2021 Board of Supervisors' meeting.

Conclusion
The presentation and discussion will provide the legal requirements and
public input process that is critical to ensuring the successful outcome of
the redistricting process.

Recommendation
Presentation and discussion.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion to review guiding principles for the redistricting
of supervisorial districts and the selection process of the Gila County
Citizens Advisory Committee. (Mary Springer)

Attachments
Redistricting Presentation



REDISTRICTING
TIMELINE



REDISTRICTING 101

• Board Work Session July 27, 2021

• Federal Compliance – Bruce Adelson

• Redistricting Citizen Input – Mac Feezor



ARS 11-212 –DEADLINE SET BY STATUTE

• A.R.S. §11-212 the Gila County Board of Supervisors shall meet at the county seat on or 

before December 1 following the release of the United States decennial census data and 

divide the county into three districts and shall define the boundaries and limits of each 

district and make the division equal or with not more than ten percent difference in 

population

• Due to delay in release of census data date has been extended to July 1, 2022. 



REDISTRICTING PRINCIPLES

• The following two Redistricting Principles must be observed:

• Districts shall be substantially equal in population to ensure one person-one vote; ensure the 

total maximum population deviation between districts is less than 10%

• The principle that all citizens, regardless of where they reside in a state, are entitled to equal 

legislative representation. This principle was enunciated by the Supreme Court in REYNOLDS V. 

SIMS, 377 U.S. 533, 84 S. Ct. 1362, 12 L. Ed. 2d 506 (1964). The Court ruled that a state's 

Apportionment plan for seats in both houses of a bicameral state legislature must allocate seats on 

a population basis so that the voting power of each voter be as equal as possible to that of any 

other voter. One person-one vote principle requires that districts be substantially equal in 

population. New court cases may require deviation of much less than 10%.



REDISTRICTING PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

• New Districts shall not harm minority voting rights

• Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act forbids a voting standard, practice, or procedure from having the 

effect of reducing the opportunity of members of a covered minority to participate in the political 

process and to elect representatives of their choice. Basically, this non-discrimination provision 

prohibits districting practices that result in:

• “Cracking” - fragmenting concentrations of minority populations and dispersing them among other districts 

to dilute minority opportunities to elect candidates of their choice

• “Stacking” - combining concentrations of minority populations with greater concentrations of white 

population to prevent minority opportunities to elect candidates of their choice

• “Packing” - over-concentrating minorities in as few districts as possible to minimize the number of districts 

in which minorities constitute a numerical majority (referred to as “majority-minority districts”)



GUIDING PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

• The following Redistricting Principles should be considered to the extent practicable:

• Be contiguous and compact

• A district is contiguous if all parts the district can be visited without crossing a boundary line. 

Compactness is more complex as there are various methods for measuring it. Appearance and 

function analyses will look at the overall shape of the district to see how tightly drawn and or 

smooth the edges are. If too irregular, it may be a signal to the courts that the lines may have been 

motivated by a desire to create racial or political advantage



GUIDING PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

• Preserve existing voting precincts and the cores of prior supervisory and community 

college districts

• Recognition that major boundary changes can possibly be disruptive or confusing to voters.

• Respect political subdivisions

• When a proposed district or precinct boundary line is close to an existing municipality or 

another district line, an attempt should be made to use that same line.

• Be drawn to protect incumbent elected officials

• Recognition that incumbents may be affected by the lines that are drawn.



GUIDING PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

• The following Redistricting Principles may be considered to the extent practicable:

• Preserve communities of interest

• Populations or communities that have common needs and interests. Communities of interest can be 

identified by referring to the census, demographic studies, surveys, political information, or through 

public meetings to assess what socio-economic characteristics community members share. County 

residents can also suggest communities of interest that they feel should not be divided. The 

Redistricting Committee should not “discover” or claim the existence of communities of interest 

late in the process so as to avoid the appearance of using a supposed community of interest to mask 

a partisan or racial gerrymander.

• Use visible, identifiable geographic features

• While not a high priority, visible geographic features may be appropriate factors in certain situations.



TRANSPARENT PUBLIC PROCESS

• Solicit citizens to serve on a Citizens Advisory Committee

• Review and utilize Census Data to ensure compliance to Redistricting Principles and Federal 

compliance.

• Coordinate public meetings to educate the public on the redistricting process and their ability to 

submit maps for consideration.   

• Review all maps submitted for compliance requirements, provide feedback on submittals

• Identify the maps that best meet the Redistricting Principles and Federal requirements

• Coordinate public meetings for final review of proposed maps.

• Submit final district maps for Board of Supervisors and Gila County Community College District 

Board’s  review and approval.



REDISTRICTING TIMELINE

Board Work 

Session

Redistricting

Overview

Board adopts 

Redistricting 

principles / solicits 

candidates for 

committee

Public map 

submittals 

reviewed by 

committee/ 

consultants

Public meetings 

held to explain 

process/mapping 

tool

Committee 

formed; census 

data 

received/reviewed

July 27, 2021

February 2022

September 2021 December 2021October/November 2021

February/March 2022

August 2021

May 2022 January 2022

DOJ 

Approval

Redistricting 

documentation 

submitted to 

DOJ

Redistricting 

documentation 

submitted review   

and approval

Map 

submittals 

refined to 3 

alternatives



QUESTIONS



   
ARF-6727       4. B.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager 
Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Management Associate
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation and update on the proposed Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic
Center

Background Information
On July 30, 2019, the Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic Center (CVRAC)
Committee last provided an update to the Board of Supervisors on its
activities pertaining to the proposed project. Sherry Dorathy and Evelyn
Vargas, members of the CVRAC Committee, have requested to present the
Board with an update on the most recent activities of the Committee.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
It would be advantageous for the Board of Supervisors and the public to
receive an update on the recent activities of the Cobre Valley Regional
Aquatic Center Committee.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion on the recent activities of the Cobre Valley
Regional Aquatic Center Committee regarding the proposed Cobre Valley
Regional Aquatic Center. (Evelyn Vargas/Sherry Dorathy)

Attachments
Aquatic Center Presentation 
Aquatic Center Community Information and Timeline



Aquatic Center Community Information and Timeline
Income and Expense Report Aquatic Center
Aquatic Center Architect Amenity Building 



“Let’s Build a Splash!”

501 (C) (3) EIN:  81-1019007

Updated July 27, 2021



Comparison Operations/Maintenance

OLD PLAN RE-WORKED OLD PLAN (3 Mos.) Actual From Florence

Net Income -$443,569.00 -$333,459.50

Net Income Without 

Full-Time -$271,059.50 -$283,000.00

6 mos.

7 days/week

May-Oct.

10 – 14 hrs. per day

Non-flexing staff

Full-Time Manager

3 mos.

6 days/week

Memorial – Labor day

9 - 10 hrs. per day

Flexing staff



Comparison Operations/Maintenance

Note:  

Have received a promissory 

from Mickie Nye of DQ for 

$1,000 per year.  

Also, from Debbie Yerkovich, 

John Wong of Bravo and 

Bloom, $1,000 per year for the 

first 5 years.

Other potential donors are 

possible to reduce O & M.

O & M of $283,000 per year $283,000.00

Add Liability Insurance $5,000.00

Less Revenue $70,000.00

DIFFERENCE OF: -$218,000.00 

Other Contributions:

Dairy Queen $1,000.00 

Bravo and Bloom $1,000.00

TOTAL DIFFERENCE AFTER 

OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS -$216,000.00 

PROPOSED 

CONTRIBUTION CURRENT NET SAVINGS   (Loss)

44.7%  Globe $96,552.00 $120,000.00 $23,448.00

12.7%  Miami $27,432.00 $65,000.00 $37,568.00

42.6%  Gila County $92,016.00 $0.00 ($92,016.00)

TOTAL $216,000.00



Capital to Build
1. Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center “Challenge Grant”  $1,500,000 in 

matching funds

• Received $10,000 from Mickie Nye of DQ

• Received $1,000 from a 92 year old, anonymous donor

• Received $2,000 from Ken and Evelyn Vargas

• Received $1,000 from Janice and Bill Cook

• Received $5,000 from Debbie Yerkovich/John Wong of Bloom and Bravo

• This is $19,000 and “matched” for a total of $38,000!!  We have not 

even started our “Let’s Build a Splash” fundraising campaigns! (Grants, 

Foundation Donations, Naming Rights, Walk of Fame project, Alumni 

project, and others.)

2. Update on County wide Bond with Northern Gila County



Capital to Build
3.  First goal in fundraising is to match the “Challenge Grant” of 

$1,500,000

• BUILDING IN PHASES – Hidell Architects, Carollton, TX

• Price point 1 at about $3,000,000

• Price point 2 at about $4,000,000 (additional million)

• Price point 3 at just over $5,000,000 (additional million)















Land Update

1. Currently investigating 6 “Regional” properties.

2. Great consideration for all.  

Also, looking at vehicular access, pedestrian access, compatibility to 

surroundings, central/regional location, visibility, utilities –

water/gas/electric/sewer, constructability, size, drainage.



Purpose
1. To show our communities that we are united for this project.

2. To each carry our share for the betterment of our communities.

3. To move with synergy – “The same energy” – so this project gets 

done sooner than later.

Operations – Capital – Land: 

It’s not going to be easy.  

That’s why it has to be together.



Open Discussion

Thank you.



 

Operations, Capital, Land 

There are 3 components the Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic 

Center (CVRAC) is focused on to bring this type of facility to the 

Globe-Miami region. 

1. Operations and Maintenance (O & M).  These are the ex-

penses to operate a water recreation facility.  These costs 

include full and part-time personnel, pool chemicals, utili-

ties, maintenance/repair materials, office supplies, janitor 

supplies, etc.  The O & M Costs for the type of multi-use, 

water facility CVRAC would like to see in the Globe-Miami 

region is  $283,000 per year. Based on population, the re-

quest is to have the City of Globe, Town of Miami, and Gila 

County (and possibly other entities) to share this cost over 

the life of the Aquatic Center. 

2. Capital to Build.  This is the money it would cost to build 

the facility. CVRAC is looking at a 401,000 gallon pool, 8 

competition lanes, zero entry*, 2 slides, diving board, play 

structure, water spouts at zero entry, boys/girls locker 

rooms, conference/party room, guard and ticket area, 

deck bleachers for competition, and shade structures.  The 

Capital to Build is estimated at $6 Million.  With CVRMC 

(our medical center) donating $1.5 Million in a “Challenge 

Grant” (matching funds) for construction costs, this could 

grow to $3 Million, enough to begin PHASE 1 of construc-

tion and half way to the total cost of the Aquatic Center.  

PHASE 2 would be the $4 Million price point, and PHASE 3 

would be just over the $5 Million price point. The 

“pooling” of all resources is vital. If other entities contrib-

uted, and CVRAC along with our entire region, implement-

ed other  strategies for raising the Capital to Build, the goal 

of $6 Million could be attained.  

3.Land to Build.  An independent study was conducted 6 years 

ago regarding the most “regional” area for construction and 

the most practicable based on the following criteria:  vehicular 

access, pedestrian access, compatibility to surroundings, cen-

tral location, visibility to site, constructability, size, drainage, 

and access to utilities (water, sewer, power, gas). The BHP 

property scored a 56 on this study with the next 2 properties 

scoring a 46. In November 2020, BHP informed the Aquatic 

Center committee they had other plans for the site.  BHP con-

tinues to be great partners in the community with many other 

projects.  Currently the Aquatic Center committee is investi-

gating a few other sites with the obligation that the Land to 

Build is regional and in a central location between Globe and Miami. 

This would be an additional capital cost unless the land is donated. 

We all need to work together to make this a reality.  How can you help?   

 Make a donation.  CVRAC is a tax deductible, 501 (c) (3) organiza-

tion.  EIN:  81-1019007   Checks can be mailed to: 

 CVRAC 
 P.O. Box 2640 
 Claypool, AZ  85532 
 
 (Currently working on on-line donations.) 
 

 Join in our effort to help fund raise by sending an e-mail to:   

 CobreValleyAquatic@gmail.com  

*Zero Entry– Also known as “beach entry” where the water gradually gets 
deeper.  Usually located in the play structure area, this type of entry makes it 
easy for the elderly and moms with small children to enter the pool. 

EIN: 81-1019007 



20
14

 

Globe Community 

Center Pool Closed 

Due to irreparable 

Structural Damage 20
14

 

Globe Mayor  

Task Force to 

Determine 

Aquatic Center 

Need 

20
15

 CVRAC 

Formed for a 

Regional Effort: 

Globe, Miami, 

County Areas 20
16

 

Site Analysis/ 

Program 

Development/ 

Market Analysis 

Revitalization 

Tax Bill 

Introduced in 

the State Senate  

D
ec

em
b

er
  

20
16

 

Timeline of  Events 

Working Together Gives Us More 

Aquatic Centers, with amenities such as zero entry, water features, splash areas, and lap lanes, provide water 
recreation for all ages.  There is something for everyone from toddlers to our senior population. While the 
swim team is practicing, swim lessons and lifesaving skills, or water aerobics can be taking place in another 
area of the pool. An aquatic center is oriented to family activities. Family members of different ages are able to 
participate in water activities in the same facility, at the same time. It will take Globe, Miami, and the County 
areas of our region to work together to bring this type of amenity to our area.    

D
ec

em
b

er
 

20
17

 Aquatics 

Facility 

Maintenance 

District Bill  

Failed in the 

Senate Caucus  

501(c)(3)  

Designation 

 

Worked With 

Stakeholders 

to Re-Work 

the Bill 

Ju
ly

 

20
17

 

Ja
nu

a
ry

 

20
17

 Revitalization 

Tax Bill Passed 

in the Senate, 

Failed in the 

House Fe
b

ru
a

ry
 

20
18

 Aquatics 

Facility 

Maintenance 

District Bill  

Introduced in 

the State 

Senate 

20
18

 Miami Pool Gains 

Support  for 

Repairs—5 Years 

Expected Use 

CVRAC Back to 

AZ Legislature 

Ja
nu

a
ry

 

20
19

 

20
19

 

 

20
19

 The Aquatics 

Facility 

Maintenance 

Bill—Passed in 

the Senate, Did 

not pass in the 

house. 

CVRAC 

proposed the 

O&M be  paid 

by—  The 

Town of 

Miami. City of  

Globe and 

Gila County 

A new 

business 

plan was 

created and 

presented to  

Gila County.  

 

20
20

 Business plan 

was created 

and presented 

to  City of 

Globe and 

Town of Miami 

COVID 

 

20
21

 

NEW Business 

plan was devised -

based on Florence 

Aquatic center—

hours of operation, 

employees, etc. 

CVRMC $1.5 

Million “Challenge 

Grant” 

M
a

rc
h

 

N
ov

em
b

er
 

Fe
b

.—
M

a
rc

h
 

M
a

y 

For more information please call: 
Evelyn Vargas (928) 812-9267 or Sherry Dorothy (928) 701-7686 

E-Mail:   CobreValleyAquatic@gmail.com 
Donations can be mailed to:   

CVRAC 
P.O. Box 2640 

Claypool, AZ  85532 
                                                                                     (Currently working on on-line donations)                                                         Updated July 21, 2021 



UPDATED JULY 26, 2021                       

Worksheet                            Operations 

and Maintenance   Town of 

Florence/CVRAC

Looking at an O & M Budget of $283,000per year $283,000.00 NOTE #1 below - O & M  - Memorial Day - Labor Day

Less revenue $50,000.00 NOTE #2 below - With projected numbers from Globe-Miami

Difference (shortfall) $233,000.00 

Applying the Difference (shortfall) to the 

population of Globe-Miami

Population % of Total Pop. Contribution to Offset Difference
Globe 7348 44.7% $104,065.40 NOTE #3 below

Miami 2094 12.7% $29,656.09 NOTE #4 below

Southern Gila County 7010 42.6% $99,278.51 Note #5 below

Others Note #6 below

TOTALS 16452 100% $233,000.00

Capital to Build Estimated $6M
Architect Renderings in Phases 1,2,3 NOTE #7 below

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center $1,500,000
Donation from Mickie Nye $10,000

Donation from Anonymous Donor (1) $1,000

Donation from Ken and Evelyn Vargas $2,000

Donation from Anonymous Donor (2) $1,000 Note #8 below

Jon Wong and Debbie Yerkovich $5,000

FUNDS ELIGIBLE TO  MATCH $19,000.00 $38,000.00

Campaign to raise capital entire community 

involved and beyond

Grants and Foundation Donations Note #9 below

Naming Rights

Corporate Sponsorships

Bond possibility county wide Note #10 below

FACILITY TOTAL $6,000,000 NOTE #11 below

Land to Build On - Currently Unknown NOTE #12 below

NOTE #1 - The Town of Florence pays all the O & M for their Aquatic Center.

The Operations & Maintenance below is based on the Town of Florence Aquatic Center which is open from Memorial Day through Labor Day; 6 days 
per week; 9-10 hours per day; guards fluctuate depending on volumes, highest volumes are during open swim.  Florence has a Parks and Recreation 
Department that maintains the pool during the off season. School pays for the use for their swim team; water aerobics pays for the use of their time; 
pool manager; head life guards; standard life guards; liability insurance is carried by the municipality.This is the revenue for the Town of Florence 2018-
2019.  The Town of Florence has a population of 29,000 which includes the prison population which generates state revenue.  General community 
population is 12,000.  There are two aquatic centers in the Town of Florence - One in the Town of Florence and one in the housing development of 
Anthem. The Town of Florence Aquatic Center is what we are modeling after.  With a population of approximatly 4,000 living in the Anthem area, who 
more than likely use the Anthem Aquatic Center, a population of 8,000 would be the number of people served by the Town of Florence Aquatic Center.  

501 (c) (3)    EIN: 81-1019007

To Make a Donation:

CVRAC
P.O. Box 2640

Claypool,  AZ  85532
Call: 928-812-9267



O & M of $283000 per year $283,000.00

Add Liability Insurance $5,000.00

Less Revenue $70,000.00

 DIFFERENCE OF: $218,000.00 

Other Contributions:

Dairy Queen $1,000.00 

Bravo and Bloom $1,000.00 

TOTAL DIFFERENCE AFTER OTHER 

CONTRIBUTIONS $216,000.00 

PROPOSED 

CONTRIBUTION CURRENT NET SAVINGS   (Loss)

 44.7%  Globe $96,552.00 $120,000.00 $23,448.00

 12.7%  Miami $27,432.00 $65,000.00 $37,568.00

 42.6%  Gila County $92,016.00 $0.00 ($92,016.00)

TOTAL $216,000.00

NOTE #3 - With the projected Globe Community Center Rehab project, the City's estimated O & M costs are $120,000 per year.  Roughly 
$23,000 more per year (with the Town of Miami and County sharing costs) than this example of an Aquatic Center. (see above Note #2)

NOTE #4 - Miami has been paying approximately $65,000 per summer to keep the pool going.  This would free up approximately $37,000 of 
their O & M. This would help them to make other improvements for their community. (see above Note #2)

NOTE #2 - The Aquatic Center proposed for the region of Globe-Miami  would serve just over 16,400.  This would increase 
the revenue amount from $50,000.  A safe estimate (conservative estimate) would be $70,000 in revenue and these 
numbers would include $5,000 liability insurance.  With revenue at $70,000  - Costs for Miami, Globe, County would be:

NOTE #5 - We need Gila County to be a part of the O & M for this to work.  

NOTE #9 - If the Gila County bond option is a go, the appropriate funds can be used to support economically disadvantaged families for swim 
passes/lessons/water aerobics, etc.; host community wide events i.e. 4th of July; money to fund unexpected equipment failure; purchase 
additional furniture, etc. It has always been a priority to continue this type of funding under a Foundation for the Aquatic Center.

NOTE #10 - This would require the entire county. This is the part of the plan we will investigate, reaching out to the community of Payson.  
Let's let the population decide. 

NOTE #6 - We can also look at different entities to help with this cost over the next 25 years which would help defray some of the cost from 
Globe, Miami, and the County. Mickie Nye of Dairy Queen has already made this offer of $1,000 per year once it its built.

NOTE #8 - Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center (CVRMC) has donated $1.5 Million in a "Challenge Grant".  CVRMC will match dollar for dollar 
up to $1.5 Million.  The Aquatic Center will be officially fundraising beginning the week of July 19, 2021.  CVRMC will invest this money because 
the health and wellness of the communities of Globe, Miami, and surrounding areas is part of their strategic plan.  With today's contributions 

NOTE #7 - Hidell Architects, TX are designing a center with similar amenities, not the same design as the Town of Florence Aquatic Center.  
They are designing in phases.   Phase 1 at a $3,000,000 price point; Phase 2 at a $4,000,000 price point; Phase 3 at a $5,000,000 price point. 
The first phase would be the essentials with the ability to add on all the other features as the capital becomes available.



NOTE #12 - Currently CVRAC is investigating 6 different "regional" possible properties.  The following criteria for the land is vehicular access, 
pedestrian access, compatibility to surroundings, central/regional location, visibility, utilities - water/gas/electric/sewer, constructability, size, 
drainage.

NOTE #11 - Florence construction was $4,754,901. Estimated cost today is just under $6,000,000. Amenities listed below:

AQUATIC CENTER AMENITIES GLOBE COMMUNITY CENTER MIAMI HOSTETLER

 Gallons: 401,000 Unknown gallons Unknown gallons
 8 competition lanes 6  lanes, not regulation 6 lanes, not regulation
 zero entry NONE NONE
 2 slides NONE NONE
 diving board NONE 1 diving board
 play structure NONE NONE
 water spouts at zero entry Maybe a splash pad NONE
 boys/girls locker rooms boys/girls locker rooms boys/girls locker rooms
 conference/party room NONE NONE
 guard and ticket area guard and ticket area guard and ticket area
 deck bleachers for competition NONE NONE

NOTE #10 - This would require the entire county. This is the part of the plan we will investigate, reaching out to the community of Payson.  
Let's let the population decide. 

NOTE:  This spreadsheet is subject to some adjustments according to more information gathered.



Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic Facility

AQUATIC FACILIY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

PREPARED BY 

HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC. & H2O DESIGNS        



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            2

AQUATIC FACILTY COMPONENTS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES AQUATICSBUILDINGS

TWO OPTIONS BASED ON COST RANGE - $3.0 MILLION TO $6.0 MILLION



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            3

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES AQUATICSBUILDINGS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – BASE PLAN

• PARKING

• LANDSCAPING

• LIMITED POOL DECK AREA

• BATH HOUSE

• PUMP ENCLOSURE

(not a building)

• 1 BODY OF WATER

• LEISURE POOL

• SPLASH AREA

• COMPETITION POOL

• DIVING BOWL

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $3.0 – $4.0 MILLION

ESTIMATED ANNUAL OPERATIONAL COST - $300,000 TO $320,000



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            4

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – BASE PLAN

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $3.0 – $4.0 MILLION

• POOL PERIMETER FENCING.  

• GRADING AND DRAINAGE

• PARKING (Minimal parking, designed to be expanded) 

• MINIMAL LANDSCAPING

• POOL DECK AND DECK DRAINAGE 10’ TO 12’ WIDTH OF DECK (Minimal area) 



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            5

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

BUILDINGS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – BASE PLAN

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $3.0 – $4.0 MILLION

• ARRIVAL AREA

• LOBBY

• TICKET BOOTH

• FAMILY RESTROOM

• LIFEGUARD AREA

• MEN’S AND WOMEN’S BATHROOMS AND CHANGING, SHOWERS

• VENDING AREA

• LOCKERS

• POOL PUMP ENCLOSURE WITH SHADE AND POOL CHEMICAL, UTILITY, STORAGE ROOMS



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            6

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

AQUATICS – 1 BODY OF WATER

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – BASE PLAN

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $3.0 – $4.0 MILLION

• DECK SHADE (UMBRELLA)

• UNDERWATER SEATING

• BEACH ENTRY GEYSERS (NO INTEGRAL SPLASH PAD)

• TUMBLE BUCKETS WATER FEATURE

• RAINDROP WATER FEATURE

• BEACH ENTRY

• WATERSLIDE AND TOWER (SINGLE WATER SLIDE OPTIONAL, SPLASH DOWN AREA INTEGRAL WITH 

POOL)

• NO SPLASH DOWN POOL.  

• LEARN TO SWIM AREA WITH TEACHING BENCH

• AEROBIC / WELLNESS AREA

• VOLLEYBALL AND BASKETBALL PLAY AREA (COMBINED)

• HANDICAP POOL ENTRY

• EIGHT (8) LANE COMPETITION POOL WITH STARTING PLATFORMS

• DIVING BOWL WITH (2) 1 METER DIVING TOWERS

• BLEACHER AREA

• LIMITED TENT CITY AREA

• MINIMAL POOL DECK LOUNGING SPACE 



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            7

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES AQUATICSBUILDINGS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – BASE PLAN PLUS

• PARKING

• LANDSCAPING

• INCREASED POOL DECK 

AREA

• BATH HOUSE WITH 

COMMUNITY ROOM

• PUMP ENCLOSURE

(not a building)

• 1 BODY OF WATER

• LEISURE POOL

• SPLASH AREA

• COMPETITION POOL

• DIVING BOWL

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $4.0 – $5.0 MILLION

ESTIMATED ANNUAL OPERATIONAL COST - $310,000 TO $330,000



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            8

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES AQUATICSBUILDINGS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – ULTIMATE MASTERPLAN

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $5.0 – $6.0 MILLION

• PARKING

• LANDSCAPING

• BATH HOUSE

• PUMP HOUSE

• 2 TO 3 BODIES OF WATER

• LEISURE POOL

• SPLASH AREA

• COMPETITION POOL

• DIVING BOWL

ESTIMATED ANNUAL OPERATIONAL COST - $340,000 TO $360,000



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            9

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

SITE AMMENITIES

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – ULTIMATE MASTERPLAN

• POOL PERIMETER FENCING. 

• GRADING AND DRAINAGE

• PARKING (Increased capacity)

• MINIMAL LANDSCAPING

• POOL DECK AND DECK DRAINAGE (Increased area) 

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $5.0 – $6.0 MILLION



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            10

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

BUILDINGS

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – ULTIMATE MASTERPLAN

• ARRIVAL AREA

• LOBBY

• TICKET BOOTH

• FAMILY RESTROOM

• LIFEGUARD AREA

• MEN’S AND WOMEN’S BATHROOMS AND CHANGING, SHOWERS

• COMMUNITY ROOM

• VENDING AREA

• LOCKERS

• POOL PUMP HOUSE AND POOL CHEMICAL ROOMS WITH ASSOCIATED UTILITY / STORAGE ROOMS

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $5.0 – $6.0 MILLION



COBRE VALLEY REGIONAL AQUATIC CENTER

PREPARED BY HIDELL AND ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS, INC & H2O DESIGN            11

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES OPTIONS

AQUATICS – 2 TO 3 BODIES OF WATER

AQUATIC FACILTY AMMENITIES – ULTIMATE MASTERPLAN

LESIURE POOL (BODY OF WATER NO 1)

• DECK SHADE (UMBRELLA)

• UNDERWATER SEATING

• BEACH ENTRY GEYSERS OR INTEGRAL SPLASH PAD

• TUMBLE BUCKETS WATER FEATURE

• MEDIUM SIZE AQUATIC PLAY UNIT (APU)

• RAINDROP WATER FEATURE

• BEACH ENTRY

• WATERSLIDE AND TOWER (DUAL WATER SLIDES)

• SPLASH DOWN POOL

• LEARN TO SWIM AREA WITH TEACHING BENCH

• AEROBIC / WELLNESS AREA

• VOLLEYBALL PLAY AREA (Separate from Basketball 

Area)

• BASKETBALL PLAY AREA (Separate from Volleyball 

Area)

• HANDICAP POOL ENTRY

COMPETITION POOL (BODY OF WATER NO 2)

• (8) LANE COMPETITION POOL WITH 

STARTING PLATFORMS

• DIVING BOWL WITH (2) 1 METER DIVING 

TOWERS

• BLEACHER AREA

• TENT CITY LANDSCAPE AREA FOR 

COMPETITIONS

• POOL DECK LOUNGING SPACE

APPROXIMATE COST RANGE - $5.0 – $6.0 MILLION



   
ARF-6795   Regular Agenda Item     4. C.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Roy Sandoval, School Superintendent 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian
Department: Deputy County Mgr/Library District
Fiscal Year: FY21, FY22, FY23 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2020 - June
30, 2023

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Agreement for E-Rate Services between Gila County
Information Education Technology Consortium on behalf of Gila County
through the Gila County Schools Superintendent and the Gila County
Library District and Yavapai County through the Yavapai County School
Superintendent.

Background Information
The Gila County School Superintendent’s office and the Gila County
Library District formed the Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium in December 2018 for the purpose of obtaining an E-Rate
Grant from the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) Schools
and Library Division (SLD) for Construction and Service to bring
high-speed internet services to the schools and libraries in Gila County.
The construction and service grant was awarded in May 2020.  In July
2020, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Gila County
Librarian on behalf of the GCIET Consortium reached out to Frank
Vander Horst with the Yavapai County School Superintendent’s Office to
assist with providing expertise, oversight, and project management for the
construction and ongoing service related to this project. Since that time,
the Yavapai County School Superintendent’s Office learned that they were
not able to contract with the Consortium and that the agreement would
need to be between the respective counties (Yavapai and Gila).

As a part of this agreement, the Gila County Board of Supervisors as that
body, as well as in their capacity as the Library District Board of Directors
need to approve this agreement for federal E-Rate purposes.



need to approve this agreement for federal E-Rate purposes.

In addition, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Gila County
Librarian need to be authorized to sign the additional Letter of Agency, to
act on behalf of the County and the respective Superintendent’s Office
and Library District to participate with and Yavapai County School
Superintendent for the procurement of affordable internet access and
related equipment, and authorize the submission of various Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) forms for E-Rate services for USAC.

Evaluation
The Yavapai School Superintendent’s Office and their employee Frank
Vander Horst have extensive experience with E-Rate Construction projects
as well as with the service portion of E-Rate. He is very knowledgeable of
the processes, procedures, and deadlines related to the ongoing provision
of E-Rate services to such a large group of individual entities. In the past
year, he has provided invaluable assistance in keeping the project on
track.

Conclusion
The Yavapai School Superintendent’s Office has the experience and
expertise to assist the Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium in keeping the E-Rate project on track and ensuring that all
federal deadlines and reporting requirements are met. The agreement
benefits the Consortium and formalized the arrangements that are
currently in place.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the agreement along with authorizing the
Gila County School Superintendent to sign the companion Letter of
Agency.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Agreement for E-Rate
Services between Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium on behalf of Gila County through the Gila County School
Superintendent and Gila County Library District and Yavapai County
through the Yavapai County School Superintendent for a term of three
years effective July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023, at a rate of $5,000
per year; authorize the Chairman’s signature on the Agreement; and
authorize the Gila County School Superintendent to sign the Letter of
Agency.  (Roy Sandoval/Jacque Sanders)



Attachments
Agreement for E-Rate Services





























   
ARF-6796   Regular Agenda Item     4. D.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian
Department: Deputy County Mgr/Library District
Fiscal Year: FY21, FY22, FY23 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2020 - June
30, 2023

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Agreement for E-Rate Services between Gila County
Information Education Technology Consortium on behalf of Gila County
Library through the Gila County Schools Superintendent and the Gila
County Library District and Yavapai County through the Yavapai County
School Superintendent.

Background Information
The Gila County School Superintendent’s office and the Gila County
Library District formed the Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium in December 2018 for the purpose of obtaining an E-Rate
Grant from the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) Schools
and Library Division (SLD) for Construction and Service to bring
high-speed internet services to the schools and libraries in Gila County.
The construction and service grant was awarded in May 2020.  In July
2020, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Gila County
Librarian on behalf of the GCIET Consortium reached out to Frank
Vander Horst with the Yavapai County School Superintendent’s Office to
assist with providing expertise, oversight, and project management for the
construction and ongoing service related to this project. Since that time,
the Yavapai County School Superintendent’s Office learned that they were
not able to contract with the Consortium and that the agreement would
need to be between the respective counties (Yavapai and Gila).

As a part of this agreement, the Gila County Board of Supervisors as that
body, as well as in their capacity as the Library District Board of Directors
need to approve this agreement for federal E-Rate purposes.



need to approve this agreement for federal E-Rate purposes.

In addition, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Gila County
Librarian need to be authorized to sign the additional Letter of Agency, to
act on behalf of the County and the respective Superintendent’s Office
and Library District to participate with and Yavapai County School
Superintendent for the procurement of affordable internet access and
related equipment, and authorize the submission of various Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) forms for E-Rate services for USAC.

Evaluation
The Yavapai School Superintendent’s Office and their employee Frank
Vander Horst have extensive experience with E-Rate Construction projects
as well as with the service portion of E-Rate. He is very knowledgeable of
the processes, procedures, and deadlines related to the ongoing provision
of E-Rate services to such a large group of individual entities. In the past
year, he has provided invaluable assistance in keeping the project on
track.

Conclusion
The Yavapai School Superintendent’s Office has the experience and
expertise to assist the Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium in keeping the E-Rate project on track and ensuring that all
federal deadlines and reporting requirements are met. The agreement
benefits the Consortium and formalized the arrangements that are
currently in place.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the agreement along with authorizing the
Gila County Librarian to sign the companion Letter of Agency.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and
convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Agreement for E-Rate
Services between Gila County Information Education Technology
Consortium on behalf of Gila County through the Gila County School
Superintendent and Gila County Library District and Yavapai County
through the Yavapai County School Superintendent for a term of three
years, effective July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023, at a rate of $5,000
per year; authorize the Chairman’s signature on the Agreement for the
Library District; and authorize the Gila County Librarian to sign the
Letter of Agency. (Jacque Sanders) (Motion to Adjourn as the Gila



County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the
Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
Agreement for E-Rate Services





























   
ARF-6757   Regular Agenda Item     4. E.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Lisa Wilckens, Fiscal Services Manager
Department: Community Services Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 21, 2021 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to collaborate
between the Gila County Public Housing Authority (PHA) and the Gila
County Homeless Task Force, the Local Continuum/Coalition to End
Homelessness (LCEH).  The collaboration will result in households that
meet the eligibility of the U.S Department and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency House Voucher (EHV) Program to assist individuals and
families who are (1) homeless, (2) at risk of being homeless, (3) fleeing or
attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault,
stalking or human trafficking, or (4) recently homeless.

Background Information
President Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, into law.
Notice PIH 2021-15 describes the process.  HUD has allocated
approximately 70,000 Emergency Housing Vouchers (EHV) to public
housing agencies.  The Gila County PHA was awarded fifteen vouchers
effective July 1, 2021, amounting to an initial award amount of $86,916
to assist individuals and families experiencing homelessness in
conjunction with the LCEH.

Evaluation
If the MOU is approved, the Gila County PHA and the Gila County Task
Force (LCEH) will collaborate and help the homeless or soon-to-be
homeless become housed.

Conclusion



By the Board of Supervisors approving the MOU with Gila County Public
Housing Authority and Gila County Homeless Task Force, it will help
assist Gila County homeless community to become housed.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Department Director recommends
that the Board of Supervisors approve the MOU between the Gila County
PHA and the Gila County Task Force to provide housing to the local
homeless community.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Memorandum of
Understanding between the Gila County Housing Authority and the Gila
County Homeless Task Force (the Local Continuum/Coalition to End
Homelessness) to collaborate and help the homeless or soon-to-be
homeless of Gila County. (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Memorandum of Understanding
HUD notification



 

1 
 

  

Memorandum of Understanding 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been created and entered into on 

June 21, 2021 

 

By: 

Public Housing Authority (PHA): 

Name of PHA: Gila County Housing Authority 

Address:            5515 South Apache Avenue #200 

                           Globe, AZ 85532   

And: 

Local Continuum/Coalition to End Homelessness (LCEH) (Local continuums within 

the AZBOSCOC): 

Name of LCEH:  Gila County Homeless Task force 

Address:               5515 South Apache Ave #200  

                               Globe, Arizona 85532  

 

Arizona Balance of State Continuum of Care—United Funding Agency on behalf of 

the Governance Advisory Board 

Name of AZBOSCOC UFA:  Arizona Department of Housing 

Address:  1110 W. Washington, Suite 280, Phoenix, AZ  85007 

 

☒ (This is applicable for Gila, Mohave and Pinal).  Because the LCEH and PHA are 

the same agency, the LCEH Governance Board acted on    06/24/2021    to designate 

Charles Proudfoot as signatory on behalf of the LCEH to ensure transparency of 

process. 

 

I. Introduction and Goals 

 

Preamble:  The purpose of this memorandum of understanding is to articulate the 

collaboration between The Gila County Housing Authority (PHA) and The Gila County 

Homeless Task Force (the Local Continuum of Care [LCEH]) which is a part of the 

Arizona Balance of State Continuum of Care (AZBOSCOC).  The collaboration will 

result in households that meet the eligibility of the U.S. Department of Housing and 



 

2 
 

Urban Development (HUD) Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) Program will be 

identified through coordinated entry and case conferencing.  This process will result 

in households experiencing homelessness being offered housing opportunities and 

that all housing opportunities, regardless of funding source, will be included in the 

case conferencing process to ensure highest and best use of all housing resources in 

our geographic area. 

 

In implementing the activities outlined in this MOU, compliance, and promotion of 

equal housing choice for all prospective residents regardless of race, ethnicity, color, 

religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, non-binary, disability, familial status, 

national origin, and/or limited English proficiency.  As the Gila County Homeless 

Taskforce continues implementation of the AZBOSCOC Social Justice and Racial 

Equity Initiative, policies and procedures implement will ensure that referrals 

provided are driven by social justice and racial equity. 

 

A.  This MOU represents the commitment of the Gila County Housing Authority 

PHA and the Gila County Homeless Task force to administer and collaborate 

related to the EHV Program in accordance with all program requirements as 

identified in the HUD EHV Operating Requirements published on May 5, 2021. 

This document can be found at this link.  
 

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PIH/documents/PIH2021-15.pdf. 

 

B. Coordinated entry, case conferencing, and other collaborative activities will take 

place in order to support the Gila County Housing Authority ability to meet goals 

and standards of success in the administration of the program.  The standards for 

success for our community includes:   

 

• 100% of households referred to EHV will have met eligibility requirements. 

• EHVs will be used to implement “Move On Strategies” when the resulting 

vacant PSH can be quickly filled. 

• Coordinated Entry, By Name List, and Case Conferencing where household 

placements in EHV will initially take place at a minimum bi-weekly.  The 

timeline may increase once all the vouchers have been allocated and there are 

no anticipated vacancies.  Case Conferencing can occur in person as well as 

virtually.   

 

C. The following individuals will serve as the lead EHV Liaisons (i.e., Primary 

Point of Contact: 

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PIH/documents/PIH2021-15.pdf


 

3 
 

For the PHA For the LCEH 
Name 

 

Gila County Public Housing Authority 

Name 

 

Gila County Homeless Task Force 

Position 

 

Malissa Buzan, Director 

 

Role within the LCEH 

 

Charles Proudfoot, Co chairman 

Telephone Number 

 

928 402-8693 

 

Telephone Number 

 

928 402-7193 

 
EMAIL Address 

 

mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

EMAIL Address 

 

cpfoot@gmail.com 

 

 In addition, if different from above, the primary 

contact for Coordinated Entry for this LCEH is: 

 

 

Name 

 

Dorine Prine 

 

 Telephone Number 

 

928 402-7193 

 

 EMAIL Address 

 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

II.  Population eligible for EHV assistance through referral by the LCEH: 

In Gila County, the following households (individuals and families are eligible for 

assistance through this program (check all that apply): 

☐ Households experiencing homelessness. 

☐ Are at risk of experiencing homelessness; fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic 

violence, trafficking and dating. 

☐ Have experienced violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking; or were 

recently homeless. 

☐ Will benefit from rental assistance which will prevent the family’s homelessness 

or having high risk of housing instability.  (Case conferencing will consider this use in 

the context of rental assistance, eviction prevention, and homelessness prevention 

resources that are available in the county). 

☐ Households that will benefit through “Moving On” i.e., households funding 

subsidy will move from current subsidies such as PSH in order that households that have 

higher need and acuity can access those subsides.  The overall purpose is to ensure that 



 

4 
 

all housing subsidies, regardless of program, are being allocated to households that best 

fit the available services and support needed. 

 

III.  Services/Activities to support or be provided to EHV Households 

The following table documents the assistance and support households will be provided 

so that they are successful in the program:  

 
Service/Activity Provider(s)/Agency(ies) Contact Information 

(Person or at least phone number or email 

Coordinated Entry Access Points in 

Gila County—Includes completion 

of VI-SPDAT and/or other 

assessments to identify housing 

need as appropriate 

 

Homeless Task Force 

 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

Assistance in completing 

application for EHV 
 Homeless Task Force Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com 

Assistance in obtaining required 

supporting document (i.e., ID, 

copies of documents) 

Cap  

Homeless Coilition,  

 Warming Center 

ebobier@gilacountyaz.gov 

Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com 

mrdanihilist@gmail.com 

 

 

Support households in identifying 

and addressing barriers they are 

experiencing to becoming or 

remaining housed. 

PHA pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov 

Support households with activities 

(i.e., transportation, translation, 

access to virtual meetings, etc.) to 

PHAs related to appointment 

notifications and attending 

appointments. 

Homeless Task Force 

Warming Center 

CAP 

Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com 

mrdanihilist@gmail.com 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

Support households so that they 

attend appointments with PHAs to 

complete interviews.  PHAs will 

establish schedules for these 

interviews. 

Homeless Task Force 

Warming Center 

Cap 

Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com 

mrdanihilist@gmail.com 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

Support housing search for eligible 

households. 
PHA pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov 

Communicate and provide 

counseling with households 

related to compliance with rental 

lease requirements. 

 

PHA 

 

pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov 

Support households related to 

assistance for security deposits, 

utility hook-up fees and deposits 

and other move in costs. 

 

CAP 

 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

Assistance with applying and 

securing benefits such as SNAPS, 

health care coverage, SSI, SS, 

CAP 

 

 

dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

mailto:ebobier@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com
mailto:mrdanihilist@gmail.com
mailto:Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com
mailto:mrdanihilist@gmail.com
mailto:Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com
mailto:mrdanihilist@gmail.com
mailto:dprine@gilacountyaz.gov


 

5 
 

Service/Activity Provider(s)/Agency(ies) Contact Information 

(Person or at least phone number or email 

disability benefits, Veteran 

benefits. 
Phoenix VA 602 320-1986 

 

Access to food pantries to meet 

immediate and ongoing needs. 
Homeless Task Force 

Warming center 

Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com 

mrdanihilist@gmail.com 

 

Access to household furnishings. Second Chance 928 473-4123 

Assistances to households related 

to financial management and 

household budgeting 

 CAP dprine@gilacountyaz.gov 

Establish strategies to promote and 

maintain good relationships with 

landlords/management 

companies. 

PHA pcampos@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

IV.  PHA Roles and Responsibilities and V.  LCEH Roles and Responsibilities 

The following table documents the roles and responsibilities of the PHA and LCEH:  

 

PHA Roles and Responsibilities LCEH Roles and Responsibilities 
1. Coordinate and consult with the LCEH in 

developing service and assistance to offer under the 

EHV services fee. 

 

2. Accept direct referrals for eligible households 

(individuals and families) through coordinated 

entry/case conferencing. 

1. Refer eligible households to the PHA through the 

coordinated entry/case conferencing system.  

(Process must include methods by which to refer 

survivors of domestic violence/trafficking even 

though information for these households is not 

entered into HMIS. 

 2. Assist households in applying an obtaining 

supporting documentation to accompany 

admissions application to the PHA (i.e., self-

certification, birth certificate, social security card) 

3. As a part of case conferencing or other meetings, 

attend EHV participant briefings as needed 

3. As a part of case conferencing or other meetings, 

attend EHV participant briefings as needed 

4. Commit sufficient staff and necessary resources to 

ensure application, certification, and voucher 

issuances process are completed in a timely manner. 

 

5. Committed a sufficient number of staff and 

resources to ensure that inspections of units are 

completed in a timely manner. 

 

6. Designate and maintain a staff to serve as the lead 

EHV liaison. 

4. Designate and maintain a lead EHV liaison to 

communicate with the PHA.  

 5. Through the LCEH membership/continuum ensure 

all households referred to EHV complete 

assessments for mainstream services and other 

support so that households have access to supports 

through their transition. 

 6. Through the LCEH membership/continuum ensure 

all households referred to EHV have access to 

mailto:Tgonzales.1964homelesscoalition@gmail.com
mailto:mrdanihilist@gmail.com


 

6 
 

PHA Roles and Responsibilities LCEH Roles and Responsibilities 
supportive services.  (Note:  Households that receive 

an EHV participation in other wraparound and 

support services is voluntary.  

7. Comply with the provisions of this MOU. 7. Comply with the provisions of this MOU. 

 

VI.  Third Party Roles and Responsibilities 

In addition to services and activities outlined in Section III, these organizations will 

also support the EHV program. Sufficient resources will be committed by 

organizations directly involved in the support of households that participate in any 

component of the EHV program to ensure activities including application, 

certification, and voucher issuance processes are completed in a timely manner. 

 
Roles and Responsibilities Agency/Organization   Contact Information 

(Person or at least phone number or 

email 

Collaborative Applicant and United 

Funding Agency for the 

AZBOSCOC 

Arizona Department of Housing  

Ryan.vernick@azhousing.gov 

Collaborative Activities Local government 928 425-7631 

 Collaborative Activities Faith-based organizations nevgramma@outlook.com 

neal.unityofpayson@gmail.com 

pastor@paysonumc.org 

Collaborative Activities Relief Society and LDS Sallinson71@gmail.com 

Collaborative Activities Health Organizations Denise.cox@healthchoiceaz.com 

Collaborative Activities 

 

 

 

Community Bridges wcarlson@cbridges.com 

ccunningham@cbridges.com 

dfry@cbridges.com 

 

Collaborative Activities Hope Center compassionjoe@gmail.com 

Collaborative Activities Payson Warming Center mrdanihilist@gmail.com 

Collaborative Activities Solari Inc. Hillary.evans@solari-inc.org 

Collaborative Activities Southwest Behavioral christinekr@sbhservices.org 

Collaborative Activities Horizon Elena.mgroarty@hhwaz.org 

Collaborative Activities St. Vincent de Paul svdppayson@gmail.com 

   

 

VII.  Program Evaluation 

 

As documented by the signatures below the Gila county Housing Authority PHA and 

Gila County Homeless Taskforce LCEH agree to cooperated with HUD, provide 

requested data to HUD or HUD approved contractor delegated the responsibilities of 

program evaluation protocols established by HUD or HUD approved contractor, 

including possible random assignment procedures.   

 

  

mailto:nevgramma@outlook.com
mailto:neal.unityofpayson@gmail.com
mailto:wcarlson@cbridges.com
mailto:ccunningham@cbridges.com
mailto:dfry@cbridges.com


 

7 
 

By the signatures below, this MOU is executed on : 06/21/2021 

 

For the PHA For the LCEH 

 

 
                                  Signature 

 

 
                                  Signature 

Tim R. Humphrey 

 

 

 

 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

Charles Proudfoot 
 

 

 

 

 

Co- Chair of the Homeless Task Force 

Date: 

 

Date 

 

  

 

 

  



 

8 
 

  

 For the AZBOSCOC 

  

 
                                  Signature 

 Camie Rasband, Co-Chair AZBOSCOC 

  

  

 
                                  Signature 

 Olivia Gutzman,  

Special Needs Programs Administrator  

on behalf of the  AZBOSCOC 

 











   
ARF-6779   Regular Agenda Item     4. F.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Woody Cline, Board of Supervisors-District 3 
Submitted By: Cathy Melvin, Executive Assistant
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3
Fiscal Year: 2021/2022 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

12/312020 to
12/31/40

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Consideration of a 20-year Special Use Permit for the Pleasant Valley
Admin site located in Young, Arizona.

Background Information
Since 2019, the Tonto National Forest (TNF) has consolidated the Payson
and Pleasant Valley Ranger Districts to the Ranger Station in Payson. In
2016 the Tonto National Forest (TNF) began moving personnel to Payson
leaving the Pleasant Valley Admin site with minimal staff and the
community of Young lost approximately 60 jobs, a big loss to a
community of just over 650 people.

In 2017, Supervisor Woody Cline began discussions with the TNF to
transfer ownership to Gila County for the purpose of providing a retreat
facility as well as other services for veterans. Rep. Paul Gosar and staff
have been assisting with this project since 2018 and he and his staff have
been working on a bill to transfer ownership to Gila County. Recently,
Senator Kelly and his staff pledged to introduce a bill in the Senate that
will mirror the bill that Rep. Gosar has prepared and they will do a joint
rollout in both the House and Senate.

In early 2020, TNF Supervisor Neil Bosworth suggested a 20-year Special
Use Permit so that Gila County could take possession of the Admin Site
and begin providing services while continuing to work toward the transfer
of ownership to Gila County. During the process of obtaining the Special
Use Permit, a consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office
(SHPO) was required due to the fact that historic buildings are located on



(SHPO) was required due to the fact that historic buildings are located on
the site and those buildings would be included in the permit. An onsite
consultation was held with SHPO staff, the TNF archeologist, and county
staff. A plan was developed for future building upkeep as well as
immediate concerns and submitted for SHPO approval. In addition,
county staff developed an Operating Plan and submitted it in February
2021 to the TNF as a supplement to the Special Use Permit application.

Buildings and facilities contained in the Special Use Permit are Ranger's
House, Assistant Fire Management Office House, Historic Ranger's
Residence, Historic District Office, Historic Barn, Paint Shed, Recreation
Shed, Flammable Storage Shed, Seed Storage, Crew Quarters #1, Crew
Quarters #2, District Office, North Well Pump House, Water and
Wastewater System, Roads within the site and 80 acres of land.

Evaluation
The annual permit fee will be $36,157 of which will be 100% of that fee
used to offset the cost of Government maintenance and reconditioning
projects pursuant to the Granger-Thye Offset Agreement made part of the
Special Use Permit.

A non-profit board will be established to handle the day-to-day operations
of the facility. The board will also be tasked with working with veterans
organizations, conduct outreach, and perform fundraising events.

The TNF will continue to maintain firefighters at the Ranger Station
during the fire season to allow quick response to any fires in the vicinity. 
The Fire Office, Fire Storage Unit, and the Fire Warehouse are not
included in this Special Use Permit and will be retained by the TNF for fire
administration.

Conclusion
The purpose of the Special Use Permit is for Gila County to be able to
provide a veterans retreat programs and services. The Special Use Permit
will allow the county to provide the services while waiting for the final
transfer of ownership.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the Special Use
Permit allowing Gila County to take possession of the Pleasant Valley
Admin Site for the purpose of providing a veterans retreat and services
facility.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to approve the U.S. Department of
Agriculture Forest Service Special Use Permit regarding the Pleasant
Valley Administrative Site/Tonto National Forest in Young, AZ for the
purpose of providing veteran services for the time period of December
2020 to December 2040. (Cathy Melvin)

Attachments
Special Use Permit
PV Admin Site Operating Plan
PV Admin Site Presentation































































































   

ARF-6813   Regular Agenda Item     4. G.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Josh Beck, EM/PHEP Manager
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of the Health Literacy Initiative; addressing COVID-19 pandemic in
underserved communities grant

Background Information
As part of President Biden’s National Strategy for the COVID-19 Response and
Pandemic Preparedness today, the Administration is announcing an effort to invest
$250 million to encourage COVID-19 safety and vaccination among underserved
populations. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Office of
Minority Health (OMH) will offer the funding as health literacy grants to localities, who
will partner with community-based organizations, to reach racial and ethnic minority,
rural, and other vulnerable populations. The new initiative is expected to fund
approximately 30 projects in urban communities and 43 projects in rural communities
for two years. Recipients are expected to develop a disparity impact statement using
local data to identify underserved populations at the highest risk for health disparities,
low health literacy, and not being engaged or reached through existing public health
messages and approaches for promoting COVID-19 public health recommendations.
They will create and put into action a health literacy plan, partnering with
community-based organizations and adhering to culturally and linguistically
appropriate standards, to increase the availability, acceptability, and use of COVID-19
public health information and services by underserved populations and others
considered vulnerable for not receiving and using COVID-19 public health information.

The Gila County Public Health Department was notified about this grant opportunity
on March 15th, 2021 by Senator Sinema's office. After reaching out to our consultant
list, ASU and U of A, and our local stakeholders the decision was made to complete an
expedited contract for the May 20, 2021 application deadline. The grant opportunity
allows for 73 awards of up to 3 million dollars each. The Gila County application is for
$2,571,740 with no match required. This sum includes $1,750,000 in mini-grant for
local Gila County organizations. The anticipated grant period will be July 1, 2021, to
June 30, 2023.

On June 1, 2021, The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the application for
the Health Literacy Initiative; addressing COVID-19 Pandemic in Gila County's
underserved communities grant.

On July 1, 2021, The Department of Health & Human Services Office of Minority
Health signed the disposition letter of approval awarding Gila County an award in the
amount of $2,571,740 for the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023. Gila



County was officially notified on July 15, 2021, of the award letter.

Evaluation
The Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division will utilize the funding
to address health literacy in the underserved populations of Gila County in
partnership with Banner Payson Medical Center, Canyonlands Healthcare, Horizon
Health & Wellness, Arizona Youth Partnership, Town of Miami - Senior Center, and the
Town of Payson Fire Department.

Project partners will work to address the following objectives: (1) Address barriers to
accurate and reliable health information during the COVID-19 pandemic, (2) Apply
health literacy and plain language principles to improve communication and
understanding among vaccine-hesitant and vulnerable populations, and (3) Identify,
disseminate or develop COVID-19 resources and responses to meet the literacy,
language, and cultural needs of diverse audiences through the development of health
impact statements and health literacy action plans.

Conclusion
To utilize this funding opportunity to address health literacy for the COVID-19
pandemic in Gila County's underserved communities, the focus will be on preventing
illness and saving lives in Gila County's underserved populations to improve testing,
vaccination, and knowledge around COVID-19. Additionally, this funding will be a
financial boost to our local community partners who work with underserved
populations in their day-to-day activities.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health and Emergency
Management Division Director that the Board of Supervisors accepts the award for the
Health Literacy Initiative in the amount of $2,571,740 with $1,750,000 dedicated to
local organizations that serve underserved communities, and with no match required.
This funding will address the COVID-19 pandemic in Gila County's underserved
communities from July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept the grant award for Health Literacy Initiative
funding in the amount of $2,571,740 with $1,750,000 dedicated to local organizations
that serve underserved communities which will be used to address the COVID-19
pandemic in Gila County's underserved communities from July 1, 2021, through June
30, 2023. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Disposition Letter
Notice of Award
Section 1-3 Grant proposal 
Section 4; Narrative 
Budget



   DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES   
                                                                                                                        Office of the Secretary 
 
                                                                      Office of Minority Health 
                                                                      Rockville, MD 20852 
 

 
 U.S. Public Health Service 
 

 
July 1, 2021 
 
Ms. Mary Jane Springer 
Chief Financial Officer 
1400 E. Ash Street 
Public Health and Emer. Mgt 
Globe, AZ 85501 
 
  

Re: Grant Application Number CPI2021003393 
 
Dear Ms. Springer, 
 
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), Office of Minority Health (OMH) is pleased to 
inform you of the decision to fund your organization under the Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Equitable 
Community Responses to COVID-19 initiative. This decision was based on an Independent Review Committee’s 
(IRC) review of your competitive application submitted for the Fiscal Year 2021 Funding Opportunity 
Announcement for this initiative.  The IRC’s summary statement for your application is attached.  
 
The attached Notice of Award (NOA) provides formal notification of the funds available to conduct your project.  
Please carefully review the terms and conditions of the NOA and promptly notify the Grants and Acquisitions 
Management Division (GAM), Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health (OASH) should you require 
clarification.  You must comply with all terms and conditions outlined in the award letter, including: (1) grant 
policy terms and conditions contained in applicable HHS Grant Policy Statements; (2) requirements imposed by 
program statutes and regulations, Executive Orders, and HHS grant administration regulations, as applicable; and 
(3) requirements or limitations in any applicable appropriations laws.  By drawing or otherwise obtaining funds 
for the award from the grant payment system or office, you accept the terms and conditions of the award and 
agree to perform in accordance with the requirements of the award.  Please reference the grant number cited in the 
enclosed NOA in all correspondence pertaining to this award.   
 
Stacey Williams is your Project Officer in the OMH Division of Program Operations and is available to provide 
consultation or program assistance during the period of performance of your project.  She can be reached at 240-
453-6152 or Stacey.Williams@hhs.gov.  Jessica Hall-Shields, Grants Management Specialist in GAM, OASH, is 
responsible for the business management aspect of the grant and can be reached at 240-453-8839 or 
Jessica.Shields@hhs.gov.   
 
We wish you great success in implementing your project. 
 
      Sincerely, 

       
Felicia Collins, M.D, M.P.H. 
RADM, U.S. Public Health Service    
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Minority Health 
Director, Office of Minority Health 

 
Attachments 
cc:  Jessica Hall-Shields, Grants Management Specialist 
       Sheila James, Regional Minority Health Analyst

https://www.minorityhealth.hhs.gov/omh/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvlid=102
https://www.minorityhealth.hhs.gov/omh/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvlid=102


Summary Federal Award Financial Information 

19.  Budget Period Start Date  - End Date

20. Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Action
20a. Direct Cost Amount
20b. Indirect Cost Amount

21. Authorized Carryover

22. Offset

23.  Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated this budget period

24.  Total Approved Cost Sharing or Matching, where applicable

25.  Total Federal and Non-Federal Approved this Budget Period 

26. Project Period  Start Date - End Date

27. Total Amount of the Federal Award including Approved 
Cost  Sharing or Matching this Project Period

28. Authorized Treatment of Program Income

29. Grants Management Officer – Signature

Recipient Information 

Fe deral Agency Information 

10.Program Official Contact Information

 Federal Award Information 

30. Remarks

1. Recipient Name

9.  Awarding Agency Contact Information

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date:

Page 1

2.  Congressional District of Recipient

3. Payment System Identifier (ID)

4. Employer Identification Number (EIN)

5. Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS)

6. Recipient’s Unique Entity Identifier

7. Project Director or Principal Investigator

8. Authorized Official

11. Award Number

12. Unique Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

13. Statutory Authority

14. Federal Award Project Title

15. Assistance Listing Number

16. Assistance Listing Program Title

17. Award Action Type

18. Is the Award R&D?

07/01/2021 06/30/2023

07/01/2021

ADDITIONAL COSTS

01

1866000444A2

Closing the Gap on Covid-19 Through Improving Individual and Organizational Health Literacy

93.137

Community Program to Improve Minority Health

New

No

Not Available

866000444

Ms. Stacey L. Williams 
Grants Coordinator 
Stacey.Williams@hhs.gov 
240-453-8444

Office of the Secretary

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

1 CPIMP211254-01-00

1 CPIMP211254-01-00

CPIMP211254

CPIMP211254
06/18/2021

OASH Grants and Acquisitions Management Division

This action awards funding from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021 (P.L. 116-260).

Dr. Scott Moore 
OASH Grants Management Officer

Ms. Mary Jane Springer 
Chief Financial Officer 
mspringer@gilacountyaz.gov 
9284028516

Gila County 
1400 E Ash St 
Public Health and Emer. Mgt 
Globe, AZ 85501-1483

Ms. Aimee  Staten 
astaten@gilacountyaz.gov 
928-402-4392

$2,557,096.00

$14,644.00

06/30/2023

$2,571,740.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

42 U.S.C. § 300u-6, (Section 1707 of the Public Health Service Act)

074462102

Mrs. Jessica Hall-Shields 
Grants Specialist 
Jessica.Shields@hhs.gov 
240-453-8839

$2,571,740.00



Page 2 

33. Approved Budget
(Excludes Direct Assistance) 
I. Financial Assistance from the Federal Awarding Agency Only 
II. Total project costs including grant funds and all other financial participation

a. Salaries and Wages

b. Fringe Benefits 

c.  Total Personnel Costs 

d. Equipment 

e. Supplies 

f. Travel 

g. Construction 

h. Other 

i. Contractual 

j.  TOTAL DIRECT COSTS 

INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL APPROVED BUDGET 

m. Federal Share 

n. Non-Federal Share 

34.  Accounting Classification Codes

k.

l.

Not Available

31.Assistance Type

32.Type of Award

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date:

Recipient Information

Recipient Name

Congressional District of Recipient 

Payment Account Number and Type 

Employer Identification Number (EIN) Data 

Universal Numbering System (DUNS) 

Recipient’s Unique Entity Identifier 

$104,604.00

$41,840.00

$146,444.00

$0.00

$9,380.00

$14,116.00

$0.00

$25,000.00

$2,362,156.00

$2,557,096.00$2,557,096.00

$14,644.00$14,644.00

$2,571,740.00$2,571,740.00

$2,571,740.00$2,571,740.00

$0.00$0.00

06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary

Gila County 
1400 E Ash St 
Public Health and Emer. Mgt 
Globe, AZ 85501-1483

Project Grant

01

074462102

866000444

1866000444A2

Other

FY-ACCOUNT NO. DOCUMENT NO. ADMINISTRATIVE CODE OBJECT CLASS AMT ACTION FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPROPRIATION
1-199CVBE CPIMP1254C5 MPD-52 41.51 $2,571,740.00 75-2122-0140



 35. Terms And Conditions


SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Medium Risk Designation.  Yourprojectisdesignatedmediumrisk.

Webasedthisdesignationonourexperiencewithyourpriorexperiencemanagingawardswiththe
OfficeoftheAssistantSecretaryforHealth,concernsidentifiedinyourmostrecentsingleaudit,and/
orconcerns aboutyourproposedtreatementofcostsundertheCostPrinciplesin 45C.F.R.part75.
ThisdesignationistoprotecttheFederalGovernment'sinterest.Wewillreevaluatethisdesignation
afterthreemonthsofreporting. Thisspecialconditionremainsineffectuntilyourecievewritten
approvalfromtheGrantsManagementOfficer. 

Toassureongoingprogrammaticprogressandfinancialcomplaince,youmustsubmitamonthly
progressreportoutliningspecificandmeasurableprogresstowardmeetingtheobjectivesinthe
approvedprojectworkplan.Thefederalprojectofficerandgrantsmanagementspecialistwillprovide
informationregardingthecontentandformatofthereportwhichareintendedtosupplmentthe30-,
60-,and90-dayreportingforthisintiative. Thereportingperiodisevery30daysfromtheproject
startdate. ThereportmustbesubmittedintheGrantNotesmoduleofGrantSolutionsnolaterthan7
calendardaysafterthecloseoftheperiod. Forexample,foraprojectbeginningJuly1,thefirst
reportingperiodcoversJuly1throughJuly30andmustbesubmittednolaterthanAugust7. 

ThisrequirementisinadditiontothestandardreportingrequirementdescribedintheStandardTerms
andRequirementsbelow. 

FailuretocomplywiththisoranyotherSpecialConditionmayresultinanenforcementactionsuch
asdisallowanceoffunds,drawdownrestriction,suspension,ortermination.Shouldwedecideto
terminateyourawardpriortotheendoftheprojectperiodbasedonyourmaterialfailuretocomply
withthetermsandconditionsoftheaward,wemustreporttheterminationtoagovernment-wide
integrityandperformancesystem.

SPECIAL TERMS AND REQUIREMENTS

1. Limitations on Burn-rate.  Fundingforthisprojecthasbeenawardedasasinglebudgetperiodfor
theentireprojectperiod.OASHexpectsawardeesappropriatemanagementoffundsincluding
appropriateburn-ratestoexecutetheawardedprojectinfull. Toprotectthefederalinterest,OASHis
placingalimitationontheburn-rateoftheTotalFederalShareawarded. Unlesspriorwritten
approvalhasbeen obtainedfrom theOASHGrantsManagementOfficer,theawardeeisauthorizedto
drawdown:

-- upto30%oftheTotalFederalShareinthefirst6monthsoftheprojectperiod;
-- upto55%oftheTotalFederalShareinthefirst12monthsoftheprojectperiod;and 
-- upto80%oftheTotalFederalShareinthefirst18monthsoftheprojectperiod.

PriorwrittenapprovalisrequiredfromtheOASHGrantsManagementOfficertoexceedtheselimits. 
RequestswillonlybeconsideredafterreviewingasumittedBudgetRevisionAmendmentincludinga
justificationuploadedinGrantSolutions. 

2. Special Reporting. Forthefirst6monthsoftheproject,youmustsubmitmonthlyreportsinGrant
NotesinGrantSolutions. Thecalendarmonthisthereportingperiod. Thereportsareduenolater

3Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



than7calendardaysaftertheendofthemonth. Eachreportshallcontainasummaryoftheprevious
month’saccomplishments,difficulties,anda30-,60-,and90-dayoutlooktable. Yourprojectofficer
willprovideadditionalguidanceregardingoptionalformats. Afterthesixthreport,thereporting
cadencewillautomaticallyreverttothequarterlyreportingfrequencynotedintheReportingSection
ofthisNoticeofAwardunlessyourawardhasadifferentreportingcadenceunderSpecial
Conditions. Themonthlyreportingcadencemaybeextendedasnecessaryforappropriatemonitoring
oftheprojectbytheGrantsManagementOfficer. 

3. First 30 days. ThefollwingitemmustbecompletedandsubmittedasaGrantNote(s)inGrant
Solutionswithinthefirst30daysoftheprojectperiod. 

a.  Budget Revision.Nolaterthan30daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmustsubmita
revisedbudgetviaGrantNotesinGrantSolutionsonSF-424Afornon-constructionprojectswitha
revised,detailedbudgetjustification. Thebudgetmustbebrokendownbyyearandcovertheentire
projectperiod. 

Awardeeandcontractorcostsmustbeproperlyallocatedinthebudgetcategories(e.g.,contractor
salariesassignedtocontractsandnotawardeeemployeesalaries)andcorrectlyapplytheindirectcost
ratetothemodifiedtotaldirectcosts(MTDC). Budgetsmustconformtothecostprinciplesin45
C.F.R.part75. Ifyouhaveanegotiatedindirectcostrate,youmustprovideacopyofthe
documentationtosupportit. 

b.  Acquisition Process Timeline. Nolaterthan30daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmust
submitatimelineforyouracquisition/contractingprocesstobeusedtosolicitandexecutecontracts
tosupportthisgrant.

c.  Staffing Plan. Nolaterthan30daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmustsubmitthe
staffingplanfortheprojectindicatingpositionsalreadyfilledaswellasthosethatarecurrently
vacant. Youmustincludetheanticipatedonboardingdatesforpositionstobefilledtoexecutethe
award.

d.  Disparity Impact Statement (DIS).  Nolaterthan30daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,you
mustsubmitaDisparityImpactStatement(DIS)preparedaccordingtotheguidancepostedbythe
OfficeofMinorityHealthat https://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/disparities-impact . 

e.  Audit Findings. Nolaterthan30daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmustsubmityour
correctiveactionplanforanymaterialweaknessormaterialnon-compliancefindingthatrelatesto
internalcontrolsorsubrecipientmonitoringinyourmostrecentSingleAudit. 

4. First 60 Days. ThefollwingitemmustbecompletedandsubmittedasaGrantNote(s)inGrant
Solutionswithinthefirst60daysoftheprojectperiod. 

a.  Planning Documents. Nolaterthan60daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmustsubmita
detailedworkplan,ahealthliteracyplanincorporatingtheNationalstandardsforCulturallyand
LinguisticallyAppropriateServicesinHealthandHealthCare,andanoutcomeevaluationplan. The
plansshouldappropriatelyrelatetoandbuilduponeachother. 

b.  Subrecipient Monitoring Plan. Nolaterthan60daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmust
submitacomprehensivesubrecipientmonitoringplanspecifictothesubrecipientactivitiesunderthis
project.

5. First 90 days.  ThefollwingitemmustbecompletedandsubmittedasaGrantNoteinGrant
Solutionswithinthefirst90daysoftheprojectperiod. 

4Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a.  Final Confidentiality Plan. Nolaterthan90daysaftertheprojectperiodstartdate,youmust
submitafinalconfidentialityplan. 

6. Documentation of Agreements.YouareexpectedtosubmitallsignedMemorandaofUnderstanding
(MOUs)withallpartnerswithinthefirst60calendardaysoftheprojectperiod. Additionalpartners
canandshouldbeaddedthroughoutthedurationoftheaward,atwhichpointsignedMOUsshouldbe
submittedwithin10calendardaysofnewlyestablishedformalpartnerships.MOUsshoulddetail
rolesandresponsibilitiesofeachpartner.

Youmustsubmitanotificationforeachexecutedcontractthatincludesabriefdescriptionofthe
contractscopeofwork,costbreakdown,thedateexecuted,andtheperformanceperiodofthe
contract. Thenotificationisdue10calendardaysfollowingexecutionofthecontract. Youshould
notsendacopyofthecontract. 

MOUs,contractnotifications,andanyothersupportingdocumentationforpartnersandsubrecipients
mustbesubmittedviaGrantNotesModuleinGrantSolutions.

7. Institutional Review Board (IRB). InstitutionalReviewBoard(IRB)approvals,whenapplicable,
mustbesubmittedviaGrantSolutionsGrantNoteswithin5businessdaysofreceiptfromtheIRB. 
NoactivitiesthatrequireIRBapprovalmaytakeplacepriortoyourreceiptoftheIRBapproval. 

STANDARD TERMS

1. Compliance with Terms and Conditions. Youmustcomplywithalltermsandconditionsoutlined
inthegrantaward,includinggrantpolicytermsandconditionscontainedinapplicableDepartmentof
HealthandHumanServices(HHS)GrantPolicyStatements(GPS),(noteanyreferencesintheGPS
to45C.F.R.Part74or92arenowreplacedby45C.F.R.Part75,andtheSF-269isnowtheSF-425),
andrequirementsimposedbyprogramstatutesandregulations,ExecutiveOrders,andHHSgrant
administrationregulations,asapplicable;aswellasanyrequirementsorlimitationsinanyapplicable
appropriationsacts.Bydrawingorotherwiseobtainingfundsfortheawardfromthegrantpayment
systemoroffice,youacceptthetermsandconditionsoftheawardandagreetoperforminaccordance
withtherequirementsoftheaward.TheHHSGrantsPolicyStatementisavailableat:
http://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/grants/grants/policies-regulations/hhsgps107.pdfUniform
AdministrativeRequirements,CostPrinciples,andAuditRequirementsforHHSawardsareat45
C.F.R.Part75.

2. Grants Management Officer Prior Approval Requirements. Certainchangestoyourprojector
personnelrequirepriorapprovalfromtheGrantsManagementOfficer(GMO).(SeePartII,HHS
GrantsPolicyStatement(GPS),anyreferencesintheGPSto45C.F.R.Part74or92arenow
replacedby45C.F.R.Part75).Allamendmentrequestsrequiringpriorapprovalmustbesignedby
thegranteeauthorizingofficialandorPI/PDandsubmittedthroughtheGrantSolutionsAmendment
Module.OnlyresponsessignedbytheGMOareconsideredvalid.Ifyoutakeactiononthebasisof
responsesfromotherofficialsorindividuals,youdosoatyourownrisk.Suchresponseswillnotbe
consideredbindingbyoruponanyOASHOfficeorHHScomponent.Anyothercorrespondencenot
relatingtoapriorapprovalitemshouldbeuploadedtoGrantNoteswithintheGrantSolutionssystem.
IncludetheFederalgrantnumberandsignatureoftheauthorizedbusinessofficialandtheproject
directoronallsuchcorrespondence.

3. Salary Limitation (Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020, Div. A, Title II, sec. 
202). “Noneofthefundsappropriatedinthistitleshallbeusedtopaythesalaryofanindividual,
throughagrantorotherextramuralmechanism,atarateinexcessofExecutiveLevelII.”

5Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



TheSalaryLimitationisbasedupontheExecutiveLevelIIoftheFederalExecutivePayScale. 
EffectiveJanuary 2021,theExecutiveLevelIIsalaryis$199,300.Forthepurposesofthesalary
limitation,thedirectsalaryisexclusiveoffringebenefitsandindirectcosts.Anindividual’sdirect
salaryisnotconstrainedbythelegislativeprovisionforalimitationofsalary.Theratelimitation
simplylimitstheamountthatmaybeawardedandchargedtothegrant.cooperativeagreement.A
recipientmaypayanindividual’ssalaryamountinexcessofthesalarycapwithnon-federalfunds.

4. Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation.

A.Reportingoffirst-tiersubawards.

1)    Applicability. 

UnlessyouareexemptasprovidedinparagraphD.ofthisawardterm,youmustreporteachaction
thatobligates$25,000ormoreinFederalfundsthatdoesnotincludeRecoveryActfunds(asdefined
insection1512(a)(2)oftheAmericanRecoveryandReinvestmentActof2009,Pub.L.111–5)fora
subawardtoanentity(seedefinitionsinparagraphe.ofthisawardterm).

2)    Whereandwhentoreport. 

YoumustreporteachobligatingactiondescribedinparagraphA.1.ofthisawardtermtotheFederal
FundingAccountabilityandTransparencyActSubawardReportingSystem(FFRS).Forsubaward
information,reportnolaterthantheendofthemonthfollowingthemonthinwhichtheobligation
wasmade.(Forexample,iftheobligationwasmadeonNovember7,2010,theobligationmustbe
reportedbynolaterthanDecember31,2010.)

3)    Whattoreport. 

Youmustreporttheinformationabouteachobligatingactionasspecifiedinthesubmission
instructionspostedathttp://www.fsrs.gov.

B. ReportingTotalCompensationofRecipientExecutives.

1)    Applicabilityandwhattoreport.

Youmustreporttotalcompensationforeachofyourfivemosthighlycompensatedexecutivesforthe
precedingcompletedfiscalyear,if—

6Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a)ThetotalFederalfundingauthorizedtodateunderthisawardis$25,000or
more;

b)Intheprecedingfiscalyear,youreceived—

(1) 80percentormoreofyourannualgrossrevenuesfromFederal
procurementcontracts(andsubcontracts)andFederalfinancial
assistancesubjecttotheTransparencyAct,asdefinedat2C.F.R.
§170.320(andsubawards);and

(2) $25,000,000ormoreinannualgrossrevenuesfromFederal
procurementcontracts(andsubcontracts)andFederalfinancial
assistancesubjecttotheTransparencyAct,asdefinedat2C.F.R.
§170.320(andsubawards);and

c)  Thepublicdoesnothaveaccesstoinformationaboutthecompensationof
theexecutivesthroughperiodicreportsfiledundersection13(a)or15(d)ofthe
SecuritiesExchangeActof1934(15U.S.C.§78m(a),78o(d))orsection6104
oftheInternalRevenueCodeof1986.(Todetermineifthepublichasaccessto
thecompensationinformation,seetheU.S.SecurityandExchangeCommission
totalcompensationfilingsattheExecutiveCompensationpageoftheSEC
website.)

2) Whereandwhentoreport. 

YoumustreportexecutivetotalcompensationdescribedinparagraphB.1.ofthisawardterm:

a) AspartofyourregistrationprofileintheSystemforAwardManagement
(SAM).

b) Bytheendofthemonthfollowingthemonthinwhichthisawardismade,
andannuallythereafter.

C. ReportingofTotalCompensationofSubrecipientExecutives.

1)    Applicabilityandwhattoreport.

UnlessyouareexemptasprovidedinparagraphDofthisawardterm,foreachfirst-tiersubrecipient
underthisaward,youshallreportthenamesandtotalcompensationofeachofthesubrecipient’sfive
mosthighlycompensatedexecutivesforthesubrecipient’sprecedingcompletedfiscalyear,if—

7Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a) Inthesubrecipient’sprecedingfiscalyear,thesubrecipientreceived—

(1) 80percentormoreofitsannualgrossrevenuesfromFederal
procurementcontracts(andsubcontracts)andFederalfinancial
assistancesubjecttotheTransparencyAct,asdefinedat2C.F.R.§
170.320(andsubawards);and

(2) $25,000,000ormoreinannualgrossrevenuesfromFederal
procurementcontracts(andsubcontracts),andFederalfinancial
assistancesubjecttotheTransparencyAct(andsubawards);and

b)Thepublicdoesnothaveaccesstoinformationaboutthecompensationof
theexecutivesthroughperiodicreportsfiledundersection13(a)or15(d)ofthe
SecuritiesExchangeActof1934(15U.S.C.§78m(a),78o(d))orsection6104
oftheInternalRevenueCodeof1986.(Todetermineifthepublichasaccessto
thecompensationinformation,seetheU.S.SecurityandExchangeCommission
totalcompensationfilingsattheExecutiveCompensationpageoftheSEC
website.)

2) Whereandwhentoreport. 

YoumustreportsubrecipientexecutivetotalcompensationdescribedinparagraphC.1.ofthisaward
term:

a) Totherecipient.

b)  Bytheendofthemonthfollowingthemonthduringwhichyoumakethe
subaward.Forexample,ifasubawardisobligatedonanydateduringthe
monthofOctoberofagivenyear(i.e.,betweenOctober1and31),youmust
reportanyrequiredcompensationinformationofthesubrecipientbyNovember
30ofthatyear.

D. Exemptions.

If,intheprevioustaxyear,youhadgrossincome,fromallsources,under$300,000,youareexempt
fromtherequirementstoreport:

1) Subawards,and

2) Thetotalcompensationofthefivemosthighlycompensatedexecutivesofany
subrecipient.

E.Definitions.

Forpurposesofthisawardterm:

1)    “Entity”

Thistermmeansallofthefollowing,asdefinedin2C.F.R.Part25:

8Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a) AGovernmentalorganization,whichisaState,localgovernment,orIndian
tribe;

b) Aforeignpublicentity;

c) Adomesticorforeignnonprofitorganization;

d) Adomesticorforeignfor-profitorganization;

e) AFederalagency,butonlyasasubrecipientunderanawardorsubawardto
anon-Federalentity.

2)    “Executive”

Thistermmeansofficers,managingpartners,oranyotheremployeesinmanagementpositions.

3)    “Subaward”:

a) Thistermmeansalegalinstrumenttoprovidesupportfortheperformance
ofanyportionofthesubstantiveprojectorprogramforwhichyoureceivedthis
awardandthatyouastherecipientawardtoaneligiblesubrecipient.

b) Thetermdoesnotincludeyourprocurementofpropertyandservicesneeded
tocarryouttheprojectorprogram(forfurtherexplanation,seeSec.ll.210of
theattachmenttoOMBCircularA–133,‘‘AuditsofStates,Local
Governments,andNon-ProfitOrganizations’’).

c) Asubawardmaybeprovidedthroughanylegalagreement,includingan
agreementthatyouorasubrecipientconsidersacontract.

4)    “Subrecipient”

Thistermmeansanentitythat:

a) Receivesasubawardfromyou(therecipient)underthisaward;and

b) IsaccountabletoyoufortheuseoftheFederalfundsprovidedbythe
subaward.

5)    “Totalcompensation”

Thistermmeansthecashandnoncashdollarvalueearnedbytheexecutiveduringtherecipient’sor
subrecipient’sprecedingfiscalyearandincludesthefollowing(formoreinformationsee17C.F.R.§
229.402(c)(2)):

9Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a) Salaryandbonus.

b) Awardsofstock,stockoptions,andstockappreciationrights.Usethedollar
amountrecognizedforfinancialstatementreportingpurposeswithrespectto
thefiscalyearinaccordancewiththeStatementofFinancialAccounting
StandardsNo.123(Revised2004)(FAS123R),SharedBasedPayments.

c) Earningsforservicesundernon-equityincentiveplans.Thisdoesnot
includegrouplife,health,hospitalizationormedicalreimbursementplansthat
donotdiscriminateinfavorofexecutives,andareavailablegenerallytoall
salariedemployees.

d) Changeinpensionvalue.Thisisthechangeinpresentvalueofdefined
benefitandactuarialpensionplans.

e)  Above-marketearningsondeferredcompensationwhichisnottax-
qualified.

f)  Othercompensation,iftheaggregatevalueofallsuchothercompensation
(e.g.severance,terminationpayments,valueoflifeinsurancepaidonbehalfof
theemployee,perquisitesorproperty)fortheexecutiveexceeds$10,000.

5. Trafficking in Persons. ThisawardissubjecttotherequirementsofSection106(g)ofthe
TraffickingVictimsProtectionActof2000,asamended(22U.S.C.§7104)

10Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



A.Provisionsapplicabletoarecipientthatisaprivateentity.

1)  Youastherecipient,youremployees,subrecipientsunderthisaward,and
subrecipients’employeesmaynot

a) Engageinsevereformsoftraffickinginpersonsduringtheperiodoftime
thattheawardisineffect;

b) Procureacommercialsexactduringtheperiodoftimethattheawardisin
effect;or

c) Useforcedlaborintheperformanceoftheawardorsubawardsunderthe
award.

2)  WeastheFederalawardingagencymayunilaterallyterminatethisaward,without
penalty,ifyouorasubrecipientthatisaprivateentity–

a) IsdeterminedtohaveviolatedaprohibitioninparagraphA.1ofthisaward
term;or

b) Hasanemployeewhoisdeterminedbytheagencyofficialauthorizedto
terminatetheawardtohaveviolatedaprohibitioninparagraphA.1ofthis
awardtermthroughconductthatiseither-

(1) Associatedwithperformanceunderthisaward;or

(2) Imputedtoyouorthesubrecipientusingthestandardsanddue
processforimputingtheconductofanindividualtoanorganizationthat
areprovidedin2C.F.R.Part180,“OMBGuidelinestoAgencieson
GovernmentwideDebarmentandSuspension(Nonprocurement),”as
implementedbyouragencyat2C.F.R.Part376.

B.Provisionapplicabletoarecipientotherthanaprivateentity.

WeastheFederalawardingagencymayunilaterallyterminatethisaward,withoutpenalty,ifa
subrecipientthatisaprivateentity-

11Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



1)  Isdeterminedtohaveviolatedanapplicableprohibitioninparagrapha.1ofthis
awardterm;or

2)  Hasanemployeewhoisdeterminedbytheagencyofficialauthorizedtoterminate
theawardtohaveviolatedanapplicableprohibitioninparagrapha.1ofthisawardterm
throughconductthatiseither

a) Associatedwithperformanceunderthisaward;or

b) Imputedtothesubrecipientusingthestandardsanddueprocessfor
imputingtheconductofanindividualtoanorganizationthatareprovidedin2
C.F.R.Part180,“OMBGuidelinestoAgenciesonGovernmentwide
DebarmentandSuspension(Nonprocurement),”asimplementedbyouragency
at2C.F.R.Part376.

C. Provisionsapplicabletoanyrecipient.

1)  Youmustinformusimmediatelyofanyinformationyoureceivefromanysource
allegingaviolationofaprohibitioninparagraphA.1ofthisawardterm

2)  OurrighttoterminateunilaterallythatisdescribedinparagraphA.2orBofthis
section:

a) Implementssection106(g)oftheTraffickingVictimsProtectionActof
2000(TVPA),asamended(22U.S.C.§7104(g)),and

b) Isinadditiontoallotherremediesfornoncompliancethatareavailabletous
underthisaward.

3)  YoumustincludetherequirementsofparagraphA.1ofthisawardterminany
subawardyoumaketoaprivateentity.

D. Definitions.Forpurposesofthisawardterm:

1)     “Employee”meanseither:

a) Anindividualemployedbyyouorasubrecipientwhoisengagedinthe
performanceoftheprojectorprogramunderthisaward;or

b)  Anotherpersonengagedintheperformanceoftheprojectorprogramunder
thisawardandnotcompensatedbyyouincluding,butnotlimitedto,a
volunteerorindividualwhoseservicesarecontributedbyathirdpartyasanin-
kindcontributiontowardcostsharingormatchingrequirements.

2)    “Forcedlabor”means:

Laborobtainedbyanyofthefollowingmethods:therecruitment,harboring,
transportation,provision,orobtainingofapersonforlabororservices,throughtheuse
offorce,fraud,orcoercionforthepurposeofsubjectiontoinvoluntaryservitude,
peonage,debtbondage,orslavery.

3) “Privateentity”:

12Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



a) MeansanyentityotherthanaState,localgovernment,Indiantribe,or
foreignpublicentity,asthosetermsaredefinedin2C.F.R.§175.25.

b)Includes:

(1) Anonprofitorganization,includinganynonprofitinstitutionof
highereducation,hospital,ortribalorganizationotherthanoneincluded
inthedefinitionofIndiantribeat2C.F.R.§175.25(b).

(2) Afor-profitorganization.

4)“Severeformsoftraffickinginpersons,”“commercialsexact,”and“coercion”

Thesetermshavethemeaningsgivenatsection103oftheTVPA,asamended(22
U.S.C.§7102)

6. Whistleblower Protections. Youareherebygivennoticethatthe48C.F.R.§3.908(relatedtothe
enhancementofcontractoremployeewhistleblowerprotections),implementing41U.S.C.§4712,as
amended(entitled“Enhancementofcontractorprotectionfromreprisalfordisclosureofcertain
information”)appliestothisaward.

7. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance.

A. GeneralReportingRequirement

Ifthetotalvalueofyourcurrentlyactivegrants,cooperativeagreements,andprocurementcontracts
fromallFederalawardingagenciesexceeds$10,000,000foranyperiodoftimeduringtheperiodof
performanceofthisFederalaward,thenyouastherecipientduringthatperiodoftimemustmaintain
thecurrencyofinformationreportedtotheSystemforAwardManagement(SAM)thatismade
availableinthedesignatedintegrityandperformancesystem(currentlytheFederalAwardee
PerformanceandIntegrityInformationSystem(FAPIIS))aboutcivil,criminal,oradministrative
proceedingsdescribedinparagraph2ofthisawardtermandcondition.Thisisastatutoryrequirement
undersection872ofPublicLaw110-417,asamended(41U.S.C.§2313).Asrequiredbysection
3010ofPublicLaw111-212,allinformationpostedinthedesignatedintegrityandperformance
systemonorafterApril15,2011,exceptpastperformancereviewsrequiredforFederalprocurement
contracts,willbepubliclyavailable.

B.ProceedingsAboutWhichYouMustReport

Submittheinformationrequiredabouteachproceedingthat:

13Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



1)    Isinconnectionwiththeawardorperformanceofagrant,cooperativeagreement,
orprocurementcontractfromtheFederalGovernment;

2)    Reacheditsfinaldispositionduringthemostrecentfive-yearperiod;and

3)    Ifoneofthefollowing:

a)  Acriminalproceedingthatresultedinaconviction,asdefinedinparagraph
5ofthisawardtermandcondition;

b)  Acivilproceedingthatresultedinafindingoffaultandliabilityand
paymentofamonetaryfine,penalty,reimbursement,restitution,ordamagesof
$5,000ormore;

c)  Anadministrativeproceeding,asdefinedinparagraph5ofthisawardterm
andcondition,thatresultedinafindingoffaultandliabilityandyourpayment
ofeitheramonetaryfineorpenaltyof$5,000ormoreorreimbursement,
restitution,ordamagesinexcessof$100,000;or

d) Anyothercriminal,civil,oradministrativeproceedingif:

(1) Itcouldhaveledtoanoutcomedescribedinparagraph2.c.(1),(2),
or(3)ofthisawardtermandcondition;

(2) Ithadadifferentdispositionarrivedatbyconsentorcompromise
withanacknowledgementoffaultonyourpart;and

(3) Therequirementinthisawardtermandconditiontodisclose
informationabouttheproceedingdoesnotconflictwithapplicablelaws
andregulations.

C. ReportingProcedures

EnterintheSAMEntityManagementareatheinformationthatSAMrequiresabouteachproceeding
describedinparagraphBofthisawardtermandcondition.Youdonotneedtosubmittheinformation
asecondtimeunderassistanceawardsthatyoureceivedifyoualreadyprovidedtheinformation
throughSAMbecauseyouwererequiredtodosounderFederalprocurementcontractsthatyouwere
awarded.

D. ReportingFrequency

DuringanyperiodoftimewhenyouaresubjecttothisrequirementinparagraphAofthisawardterm
andcondition,youmustreportproceedingsinformationthroughSAMforthemostrecentfiveyear
period,eithertoreportnewinformationaboutanyproceeding(s)thatyouhavenotreported
previouslyoraffirmthatthereisnonewinformationtoreport.RecipientsthathaveFederalcontract,
grant,andcooperativeagreementawardswithacumulativetotalvaluegreaterthan$10,000,000must
disclosesemiannuallyanyinformationaboutthecriminal,civil,andadministrativeproceedings.

E. Definitions

Forpurposesofthisawardtermandcondition:

14Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



1)    Administrativeproceedingmeansanon-judicialprocessthatisadjudicatoryin
natureinordertomakeadeterminationoffaultorliability(e.g.,Securitiesand
ExchangeCommissionAdministrativeproceedings,CivilianBoardofContract
Appealsproceedings,andArmedServicesBoardofContractAppealsproceedings).
ThisincludesproceedingsattheFederalandStatelevelbutonlyinconnectionwith
performanceofaFederalcontractorgrant.Itdoesnotincludeaudits,sitevisits,
correctiveplans,orinspectionofdeliverables.

2)    Conviction,forpurposesofthisawardtermandcondition,meansajudgmentor
convictionofacriminaloffensebyanycourtofcompetentjurisdiction,whether
entereduponaverdictoraplea,andincludesaconvictionentereduponapleaofnolo
contendere.

3)    Totalvalueofcurrentlyactivegrants,cooperativeagreements,andprocurement
contractsincludes—

a) OnlytheFederalshareofthefundingunderanyFederalawardwitha
recipientcostshareormatch;and

b) ThevalueofallexpectedfundingincrementsunderaFederalawardand
options,evenifnotyetexercised.

F. DisclosureRequirements.

Consistentwith45C.F.R.§75.113,applicantsandrecipientsmustdisclose,inatimelymanner,in
writingtotheHHSAwardingAgency,withacopytotheHHSOfficeoftheInspectorGeneral,all
informationrelatedtoviolationsofFederalcriminallawinvolvingfraud,bribery,orgratuity
violationspotentiallyaffectingtheFederalaward.Subrecipientsmustdisclose,inatimelymanner,in
writingtotheprimerecipient(passthroughentity)andtheHHSOfficeoftheInspectorGeneralall
informationrelatedtoviolationsofFederalcriminallawinvolvingfraud,bribery,orgratuity
violationspotentiallyaffectingtheFederalaward.Disclosuresmustbesentinwritingtotheawarding
agencyandtotheHHSOIGatthefollowingaddresses:

HHS OASH Grants and Acquisitions Management
1101 Wootton Parkway, Plaza Level
Rockville, MD 20852

AND

US Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General
ATTN: OIG HOTLINE OPERATIONS—MANDATORY GRANT DISCLOSURES
PO Box 23489
Washington, DC 20026

URL:http://oig.hhs.gov/fraud/report-fraud/index.asp

(Include“MandatoryGrantDisclosures”insubjectline)

Fax: 1-800-223-8164(Include“MandatoryGrantDisclosures”insubjectline)

Failuretomakerequireddisclosurescanresultinanyoftheremediesdescribedin45C.F.R.§ 75.371
(“Remediesfornoncompliance”),includingsuspensionordebarment(Seealso2C.F.R.Parts180&
376and31U.S.C.§3321).

15Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



Therecipientmustincludethismandatorydisclosurerequirementinallsubawardsand
contracts underthisaward.

8. Intellectual Property.

A.   Data. Thefederalgovernmenthastherightto: 1)Obtain,reproduce,publish,orotherwiseuse
thedataproducedunderthisaward;and 2) Authorizeotherstoreceive,reproduce,publish,or
otherwiseusesuchdataforfederalpurposes.

B.   Copyright.  Theawardeemaycopyrightanyworkthatissubjecttocopyrightandwas
developed,orforwhichownershipwasacquired,underafederalaward.Thefederalgovernment
reservesaroyalty-free,nonexclusiveandirrevocablerighttoreproduce,publish,orotherwiseusethe
workforFederalpurposes,andtoauthorizeotherstodoso.

C.   PatentsandInventions.  Theawardeeissubjecttoapplicableregulationsgoverningpatentsand
inventions,includinggovernment-wideregulationsissuedbytheDepartmentofCommerceat37
CFRpart401.

9. Acknowledgement of Federal Grant Support. Whenissuingstatements,pressreleases,
publications,requestsforproposal,bidsolicitationsandotherdocuments--suchastool-kits,resource
guides,websites,andpresentations(hereafter“statements”)--describingtheprojectsorprograms
fundedinwholeorinpartwithU.S.DepartmentofHealthandHumanServices(HHS)federalfunds,
therecipientmustclearlystate:

    1)    thepercentageanddollaramountofthetotalcostsoftheprogramorprojectfundedwith
federalmoney;and,

    2)    thepercentageanddollaramountofthetotalcostsoftheprojectorprogramfundedbynon-
governmentalsources.

WhenissuingstatementsresultingfromactivitiessupportedbyHHSfinancialassistance,therecipient
entitymustincludeanacknowledgementoffederalassistanceusingoneofthefollowingorasimilar
statement.

IftheHHSGrantorCooperativeAgreementisNOTfundedwithothernon-governmentalsources:

This[project/publication/program/website,etc.][is/was]supportedbythe[full
nameofthePROGRAMOFFICE]oftheU.S.DepartmentofHealthand
HumanServices(HHS)aspartofafinancialassistanceawardtotaling$XX
with100percentfundedby[PROGRAMOFFICE]/OASH/HHS.Thecontents
arethoseoftheauthor(s)anddonotnecessarilyrepresenttheofficialviewsof,
noranendorsement,by[PROGRAMOFFICE]/OASH/HHS,ortheU.S.
Government.Formoreinformation,pleasevisit[PROGRAMOFFICEwebsite,
ifavailable].

TheHHSGrantorCooperativeAgreementISpartiallyfundedwithothernongovernmentalsources:

16Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



This[project/publication/program/website,etc.][is/was]supportedbythe[full
nameofthePROGRAMOFFICE]oftheU.S.DepartmentofHealthand
HumanServices(HHS)aspartofafinancialassistanceawardtotaling$XX
withXXpercentagefundedby[PROGRAMOFFICE]/OASH/HHSand$XX
amountandXXpercentagefundedbynon-governmentsource(s).Thecontents
arethoseoftheauthor(s)anddonotnecessarilyrepresenttheofficialviewsof,
noranendorsement,by[PROGRAMOFFICE]/OASH/HHS,ortheU.S.
Government.Formoreinformation,pleasevisit[PROGRAMOFFICEwebsite,
ifavailable].

Thefederalawardtotalmustreflecttotalcosts(directandindirect)forallauthorizedfunds(including
supplementsandcarryover)forthetotalcompetitivesegmentuptothetimeofthepublicstatement.

Any amendments by the recipient to the acknowledgement statement must be coordinated with 
the OASH federal project officer and the OASH grants management officer. 

Iftherecipientplanstoissueapressreleaseconcerningtheoutcomeofactivitiessupportedbythis
financialassistance,itshouldnotifythetheOASHfederalprojectofficerandtheOASHgrants
managementofficer inadvancetoallowforcoordination.

10.Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment.

A.AsdescribedinCFR200.216,recipientsandsubrecipientsareprohibitedtoobligateorspend
grantfunds(toincludedirectandindirectexpendituresaswellascostshareandprogram)to:

17Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



1)Procureorobtain, 

2)Extendorrenewacontracttoprocureorobtain;or 

3)Enterintocontract(orextendorrenewcontract)toprocureorobtainequipment,
services,orsystemsthatusecoveredtelecommunicationsequipmentorservicesasa
substantialoressentialcomponentofanysystem,orascriticaltechnologyaspartof
anysystem.AsdescribedinPub.L.115-232,section889,coveredtelecommunications
equipmentistelecommunicationsequipmentproducedbyHuaweiTechnologies
CompanyorZTECorporation(oranysubsidiaryoraffiliateofsuchentities). 

a)Forthepurposeofpublicsafety,securityofgovernmentfacilities,physical
securitysurveillanceofcriticalinfrastructure,andothernationalsecurity
purposes,videosurveillanceandtelecommunicationsequipmentproducedby
HyteraCommunicationsCorporation,HangzhouHikvisionDigitalTechnology
Company,orDahuaTechnologyCompany(oranysubsidiaryoraffiliateof
suchentities).

b)Telecommunicationsorvideosurveillanceservicesprovidedbysuchentities
orusingsuchequipment.

c)Telecommunicationsorvideosurveillanceequipmentorservicesproducedor
providedbyanentitythattheSecretaryofDefense,inconsultationwiththe
DirectoroftheNationalIntelligenceortheDirectoroftheFederalBureauof
Investigation,reasonablybelievestobeanentityownedorcontrolledby,or
otherwise,connectedtothegovernmentofacoveredforeigncountry.

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

1. Financial Reporting Requirement—Federal Financial Report (FFR) SF 425.  EffectiveOctober
1,2020,youmustsubmityourSF-425toOASHusingtheDepartmentofHealthandHumanServices
(HHS)PaymentManagementSystemforanyOASHawardswithaprojectperiodendingOctober1,
2020orlater. FailuretosubmittheFFRinthecorrectsystembytheduedatemaydelayprocessing
ofanypendingrequestsorapplications.

OASHandtheProgramSupportCenterarecollaboratinginthesubmissionoftheSF-425toreduce
theburdenongranteesandassistwiththereconciliationofexpendituresanddisbursements,andto
allowfortimelycloseoutofgrants. YoursubmissionmustbethroughtheHHSPayment
ManagementSystem. SF-425submissionsthroughGrantSolutionswillnolongerbeacceptedfor
OASHawards.

YoumustusetheSF-425FederalFinancialReport(FFR)forexpenditurereporting. Toassistinyour
preparationforsubmissionyoumayfindtheSF-425andinstructionsforcompletingtheformonthe
Webat:http://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/sample/SF425-V1.0.pdf. Youmustcompleteall 
sectionsoftheFFR.

A.  Quarterly FFR Due Date.

YourFFRisdue30daysaftertheendofeachQuarterinthefederalfiscalyear. Thatisforthe:

18Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



Quarter ending September 30, your FFR is due October 30

Quarter ending December 31, your FFR is due January 30

Quarter ending March 30, your FFR is due April 30

Quarter ending June 30, your FFR is due July 30. 

B. Final FFR Due Date.

YourfinalFFRcoveringtheentireprojectisdue90daysaftertheenddateforyourprojectperiod. 

C.  Past due reports.

Ifyouhavenotsubmittedbytheduedate,youwillreceiveamessageindicatingthereportisPast 
Due.PleaseensureyourPaymentManagementSystemaccountandcontactinformationareuptodate
soyoureceivenotifications.

D.  Electronic Submission.

ElectronicSubmissionsareacceptedonlyviatheHHSPaymentManagementSystem–Noother
submissionmethodswillbeacceptedwithoutpriorwrittenapprovalfromtheGMO.Youmustbe
assignedtothegrantwithauthorizedaccesstotheFFRreportingModulewhensubmitting.Ifyou
encounteranydifficulties,contacttheHHSPaymentManagementSystemHelpDeskoryour
assignedGrantsManagementSpecialist.PleasereferencetheCONTACTSsectionofNoATermsand
ConditionstolocatethenameofyourassignedGrantsManagementSpecialist.

2. Quarterly Progress Report Requirements. Youmustsubmitquarterlyprogressreports30days
aftertheendofeachquarteroftheperformanceperiodunlessotherwiserequiredundertheSpecial
TermsandRequirementsforthisaward. Yourprogressreportsmustaddresscontentrequiredby45
CFR§ 75.342(b)(2).Additonal progess reporting may be required under Special Terms and 
Requirements or Special Conditions as required by statute, regulation, or specific 
circumstances warranting additional monitoring. Additionalguidancemaybeprovidedbythe
ProgramOffice.ReportsmustbesubmittedelectronicallyviauploadtoGrantNotesin
GrantSolutions.

3. Audit Requirements. TheSingleAuditActAmendmentsof1996(31U.S.C.§§7501-7507)
combinedtheauditrequirementsforallentitiesunderoneAct.Anauditisrequiredforallnon-
FederalentitiesexpendingFederalawards,andmustbeconsistentwiththestandardssetoutat45
CFRPart75,SubpartF(“AuditRequirements”).Theauditsareduewithin30daysofreceiptfrom
theauditororwithin9monthsoftheendofthefiscalyear,whicheveroccursfirst.Theauditreport
whencompletedshouldbesubmittedonlinetotheFederalAuditClearinghouseat
https://harvester.census.gov/facides/Account/Login.aspx.

CONTACTS

1. Fraud, Waste, and Abuse. TheHHSInspectorGeneralacceptstipsandcomplaintsfromallsources
aboutpotentialfraud,waste,abuse,andmismanagementinDepartmentofHealthandHuman
Services'programs.Yourinformationwillbereviewedpromptlybyaprofessionalstaffmember.Due
tothehighvolumeofinformationthattheyreceive,theyareunabletoreplytosubmissions.Youmay
reachtheOIGthroughvariouschannels.

19Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



Internet:https://forms.oig.hhs.gov/hotlineoperations/index.aspx

Phone:1-800-HHS-TIPS(1-800-447-8477)

Mail: US Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Inspector General
ATTN: OIG HOTLINE OPERATIONS
PO Box 23489
Washington, DC 20026

Foradditionalinformationvisithttps://oig.hhs.gov/fraud/report-fraud/index.asp

2. Payment Procedures. PaymentsforgrantsawardedbyOASHProgramOfficesaremadethrough
PaymentManagementServices(previouslyknownastheDivisionofPaymentManagement)
https://pms.psc.gov/home.html PMSisadministeredbytheProgramSupportCenter(PSC),HHS.
NOTE:PleasecontactthePaymentManagementServicestoestablishanaccountifyoudonothave
one.

Inquiriesregardingpaymentsshouldbedirectedtohttps://pms.psc.gov/home.html;or

PaymentManagementServices, P.O.Box6021,Rockville,MD20852;

or1-877-614-5533.

3. Use of Grant Solutions. GrantSolutionsisourweb-basedsystemthatwillbeusedtomanageyour
grantthroughoutitslifecycle.PleasecontactGrantSolutionsUserSupporttoestablishanaccountif
youdonothaveone.YourGrantsManagementSpecialisthastheabilitytocreateaGrantSolutions
accountfortheGranteeAuthorizedOfficialandPrincipleInvestigator/ProgramDirectorroles.
FinancialOfficeraccountsmayonlybeestablishedbyGrantSolutionsstaff.Allaccountrequestsmust
besignedbytheprospectiveuserandtheirsupervisororotherauthorizedorganizationofficial.

ForassistanceonGrantSolutionsissuespleasecontact:GrantSolutionsUserSupportat202-401-5282
or866-577-0771,emailhelp@grantsolutions.gov,Monday–Friday,8a.m.–6p.m.ET.Frequently
AskedQuestionsandanswersareavailableathttps://grantsolutions.secure.force.com/.

4. Grants Administration Assistance. Forassistanceongrants administration issuespleasecontact:
JessicaShields,GrantsManagementSpecialist,at(240)453-8839,ore-mailjessica.shields@hhs.gov
ormail:

OASH Grants and Acquisitions Management Division
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of the Secretary
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health
1101 Wootton Parkway, Rockville, MD 20852.

20Page

Notice of Award
Award# 
FAIN#
Federal Award Date: 06/18/2021

1 CPIMP211254-01-00
CPIMP211254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Office of the Secretary



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management  

Grant Proposal Submission for Opportunity Number: MP-CPI-21-006 

 

 

 

 

Project Title: Closing the Gap on Covid-19 Through Improving Individual and 

Organizational Health Literacy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

1. Statement of Need 

Gila County is a rural county1 with a total area of 4,795mi2 located in central Arizona. In 

recent months, Gila County was leading Arizona’s resurgence of new Covid-19 cases and was 

recognized nationally as a hot spot for Covid-19 infections. Literacy, language, and culture 

impact the content and outcome of health communication. Gila County has a large vulnerable 

minority population, with the largest populations being Hispanic or Latinx (any race, 18.7%) and 

American Indian or Alaska Native (17.8%). Additionally, nearly a third of Gila County residents 

(28.4%) are age 65 and older (n=15,199). This is a very high proportion of older adults; greater 

than Arizona at large (17.5%). Covid-19 deaths (82.4%)2  in Gila County among those aged 65 

years and older account for more than 8 out of every 10 Covid-19 deaths reported. This is above 

both the Statewide (75.0%) and National (80.0%) Covid-19 reported deaths among ages 65 years 

and older. Gila County’s Covid-19 fatality rate of 402.47 per 100,000 persons is well above the 

Arizona (236.79 per 100,000)3 and US (173.10 per 100,000)4 fatality rates.  

Households speaking a language other than English comprise just over one in five 

(22.2%), with the largest proportion (11.8%) speaking Spanish. Of those Spanish speaking 

households 9.0% have limited English proficiency per 2019 Census data. The proportion of 

persons in Gila County who are of low socioeconomic status is much greater than across 

Arizona. There are 22.5% of Gila County residents living in poverty compared to 14.0% of 

Arizonans. Nearly half of all Gila residents (45.8%) live at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty 

Level. Additionally, 10.0% of Gila County residents are uninsured. Appendix E includes data on 

racial/ethnic minority populations, COVID-19 positivity rates, households with more persons 

 
1 HRSA. (n.d.). Rural Health Grants Eligibility Analyzer. Retrieved April 7, 2021, from https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/rural-health. 
2 Covid-19 Tribal Deaths (N=64) are excluded due data availability.   
3 https://azdhs.gov/preparedness/epidemiology-disease-control/infectious-disease-epidemiology/covid-19/dashboards/index.php 
4 Johns Hopkins University (April 7, 2021). Mortality Analyses: Mortality in the Most Affected Countries. Retrieved April 7, 
2021 from https://coronavirus.jhu.edu/data/mortality 



3 
 

than rooms, the uninsured population, and populations with limited English proficiency for Gila 

County. 

The disproportionate Covid-19 impact experienced by Gila County is explained in part by 

the high Social Vulnerability Index (SVI) score of 0.899. When examining the four SVI themes, 

Gila County has several geographic areas ranking in the Top 4th for vulnerability.5 One way to 

improve the social vulnerability of the community is to develop health literacy skills.6 

Inadequate population health literacy has been an underestimated problem throughout the Covid-

19 pandemic and the resultant infodemic.7 It is critical that health literacy capabilities are 

developed among communities to support the ability to continue to adapt to the continuously 

changing Covid-19 environment and for longer term improvements to population health. 

Community level Covid-19 data (stratified by demographics), Partner specific data (e.g., patients 

or population served), Census Data, and other health indicators will be used to develop the health 

impact statement.   

Improving personal and organizational health literacy will support Gila County’s 

vulnerable populations. It is of utmost importance to ensure that barriers to accurate and reliable 

health information are addressed and communication and understanding are improved. Working 

with a unique cadre of partners to reach vulnerable populations who have received incorrect 

health information or do not trust the messaging received is critical to continue to make gains 

against Covid-19 and support the disproportionately affected racial/ethnic and vaccine hesitant 

populations. Enhancing health literacy skills will help Gila’s vulnerable populations identify, 

trust, and act on critical public health information while continuing to navigate Covid-19.  

 
5 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. (2018) Social Vulnerability  
Index Interactive Map 2018. Retrieved April 6, 2021, from https://svi.cdc.gov/map.html. 

6 Covid-19: Health Literacy is an Underestimated Problem (April 14, 2020). Retrieved April 12, 2021 from 
https://www.thelancet.com/action/showPdf?pii=S2468-2667%2820%2930086-4. 
7 Rapid spread of misinformation. 



4 
 

2. Proposed Approach 
 

To improve organizational and individual health literacy, partnerships (Appendix A) have 

been established that include healthcare, fire and emergency responders, senior centers, and other 

community-based organizations spread across Gila County to connect with vulnerable 

populations. Project partners will work to address the following objectives: (1) Address barriers 

to accurate and reliable health information during the Covid-19 pandemic, (2) Apply health 

literacy and plain language principles to improve communication and understanding among 

vaccine hesitant and vulnerable populations, and (3) Identify, disseminate or develop Covid-19 

resources and responses to meet the literacy, language, and cultural needs of diverse audiences 

through the development of health impact statements and health literacy action plans.  

Organizational champions from each organization will join a collaborative workshop 

where project objectives, CLAS Standards, evidence-based health literacy concepts and 

strategies, and the quality improvement approach (PDCA) will be reviewed to create a common 

foundational knowledge across all partners. Project partners will be funded to do this work 

through sub-awards outlined in the project budget in Section 4. During the workshop, partners 

will work to develop health disparity impact statements that take into consideration data outlined 

in Appendix E, other community health data, organization specific data for populations served, 

and any new information that evolves regarding Covid-19. Health impact statements will then be 

used to to develop health literacy action plans utilizing a standard framework (e.g., Disparities 

Impact Statement Worksheet from CMS) 8 targeting vulnerable and vaccine hesitant populations 

served by each organization. Action plans will use evidence-based and best-practices outlined in 

the National Action Plan to Improve Health Literacy and adhere to CLAS Standards.  

 
8 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (2021). Disparities Impact Statement. Retrieved on April 7, 2021 from 
https://www.cms.gov/About-CMS/Agency-Information/OMH/Downloads/Disparities-Impact-Statement-508-rev102018.pdf. 



5 
 

Champions will support implementation, data collection and reporting, problem solving, 

and ongoing quality improvement activities. Monthly data reporting from partners will provide 

information on (1) the evidence-based health literacy interventions implemented, (2) the number 

of community members impacted by the intervention, (3) demographic characteristics of the 

population served and their alignment with the disparity impact statement, and (4) data (stratified 

by demographics characteristics) on changes in access, use, and outcomes of Covid-19 

vaccination, testing and preventative behaviors. Other data available specific to HP 2030 

objectives (HC/HIT-01-03 & IID-D02) focusing on the patient and provider communication and 

patient decision making related to their care will also be reported.  

Evaluators will monitor community Covid-19 vaccination, testing and outcomes data 

(stratified by demographics) along with quarterly data submitted by partners. Data summaries 

prepared quarterly will be used to facilitate quarterly reviews with partners to review data 

reporting/tracking, trends, data-driven recommendations (consideration for data stratified by 

demographic characteristics), and other opportunities to better target populations in the health 

impact statements. Action plans will be updated, and changes documented (as needed). The 

evaluation team will also collect and share feedback from partners and recipients of services 

(e.g., interviews or focus groups). All partners will be convened in-person bi-annually to review 

progress, gain insights from other partners, share successes, and ensure that organizations are 

creating connections for future sustainability. Technical assistance and support will be provided 

throughout the duration of the project via public health professionals, health literacy experts, 

evaluation team members, and quality improvement professionals. 

 

 



6 
 

3. Organizational Capacity 
 

Gila County does not anticipate any delays in project start-up. Partners have been asked to hold 

space to come together for the workshop outlined in Section 2. Upon notice of award, additional 

support for the project will be solicited through a competitive opportunity for a health literacy 

and project management team to supplement Gila County’s team who are hard at work 

vaccinating Gila County residents.   

Project Director/Principal Investigator (PD/PI) - Michael O’Driscoll, Gila County Director of 

Health & Emergency Management will oversee project personnel, provide logistical and 

intellectual guidance. In addition, the PD/PI is responsible for directing the project, both 

intellectually and logistically, and will oversee all activities performed throughout the course of 

the project lifecycle. The PD/PI is responsible and accountable for the proper conduct of the 

project including the submission of all required reports.  

Project Coordinator - Stella Gore, Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager will 

oversee project coordination as the internal point of contact for partners, a project management 

and health literacy consultant team, and the Minority Serving Institution Evaluation Partner. 

Project coordinator will also support quarterly reporting and support scheduling and navigating 

internal processes.  

Minority Serving Institution Partner for Evaluation & Quality Improvement - The 

Morrison Institute for Public Policy at Arizona State University’s Watts College for Public 

Service and Community Solutions is committed to serving as the evaluation partner (Appendix 

B, Letter of Commitment). Morrison staff (Appendix G) will be responsible for designing the 

evaluation tools, creating the data collection/submission tool for partners, and providing 

quarterly data to partners to support the review of progress and quality improvement activities.  



7 
 

Appendix A: Project Partners Table 
Project Partners Organization Focus Responsibilities 
1   Banner Health 

Payson 
https://www.bannerhea
lth.com/locations/pays
on/banner-payson-
medical-center 
 

Banner Payson Medical Center is a community 
healthcare provider. BPMC is a 25-bed critical 
access hospital that provides inpatient, 
outpatient, diagnostic, imaging, medical, 
surgical, and emergency care to the greater 
Payson area. 

 
 
• Support & 

Participate in 
the 
Development of 
a Health Impact 
Statement 

 
• Support & 

Participate in 
the 
Development of, 
Implementation 
of, and Updates 
to the Health 
Literacy Action 
Plan 

 
• Support Data 

Collection & 
Evaluation 
Activities 

 
• Participate In & 

Support Quality 
Improvement 
Activities  

 
• Supporting 

Other Project 
Activities (as 
needed) 

2   Canyonlands 
Healthcare 
https://canyonlandschc
.org/ 
 

Canyonlands Healthcare is a private non-profit 
providing quality primary and preventive care. 
Canyonland’s 7 sites are Federally Qualified 
Health Centers providing primary healthcare 
needs. Canyonland’s mission is to promote 
healthier lives through affordable, accessible, 
and integrated primary care.  

3   Horizon Health & 
Wellness  
http://www.hhwaz.org/ 
 

Horizon Health and Wellness is a non-profit 
501(c)(3) integrated health care agency 
provides an array of inpatient, outpatient and 
residential services in Pinal, Gila, and Yuma 
Counties as well as habilitation services in the 
counties of Cochise, La Paz, Maricopa, and 
Santa Cruz. Horizon’s mission is to provide 
Integrated Health Care that addresses the whole 
person and promotes wellness using best 
practices to enhance the quality of life of the 
individuals, families, and communities we 
serve. 

4   Arizona Youth 
Partnership  
https://azyp.org/ 
 

Arizona Youth Partnership builds solid 
foundations for youth and families by 
partnering with Arizona communities to prevent 
and solve local issues such as substance abuse, 
youth homelessness, lack of educational 
opportunities, teen pregnancy, and challenging 
family dynamics. 

5   Town of Miami - 
Senior Center 
https://miamiaz.gov/co
mmunity-
services/senior-center/ 

The Town of Miami Senior Center serves 
anyone 50 years of age and older. Individuals 
are welcome to enjoy activities, lunch, and 
programming offered by the center. 

6   Town of Payson Fire 
Department 
http://www.paysonaz.g
ov/Departments/fire/fir
e-index.html 

Fire Department’s mission is to safely minimize 
the loss of life and property resulting from fire, 
medical emergencies, and other disasters 
through prevention, education, preparedness, 
and response.  

 
 

https://www.bannerhealth.com/locations/payson/banner-payson-medical-center
https://www.bannerhealth.com/locations/payson/banner-payson-medical-center
https://www.bannerhealth.com/locations/payson/banner-payson-medical-center
https://www.bannerhealth.com/locations/payson/banner-payson-medical-center
https://canyonlandschc.org/
https://canyonlandschc.org/
http://www.hhwaz.org/
https://azyp.org/
https://miamiaz.gov/community-services/senior-center/
https://miamiaz.gov/community-services/senior-center/
https://miamiaz.gov/community-services/senior-center/
http://www.paysonaz.gov/Departments/fire/fire-index.html
http://www.paysonaz.gov/Departments/fire/fire-index.html
http://www.paysonaz.gov/Departments/fire/fire-index.html


8 
 

Appendix B: Letters of Commitment from Each Partner Organization 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

Appendix C: Organizational Chart  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PD/PI 
(Michael O’Driscoll) 

Gila County Director of 
Health & Emergency 

Management 

 

 

Project Management & 
Health Literacy Team 

(TBD upon award) 

Project Evaluation Team 
Morrison Institute at 

Arizona State University 

(Team Lead: Alison Cooke-
Davis) 

Project Coordinator 
(Stella Gore) 

Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness Manager 

Administration &  
Financial Management 

(Debra Blevins) 



10 
 

Appendix D: Key Project Personnel Biographical Sketches 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Team 
 
Principal Investigator/Project Director: Michael O’Driscoll, Director Gila County Public 
Health & Emergency Management 

Michael O’Driscoll is the Director of Health & Emergency Management for Gila County 

Arizona. Michael Joined Gila County in 2011 and has more than 30 years of experience in Public 

Health and Emergency Preparedness. He has been integral in resolving large health disparity 

issues, vector-borne disease, foodborne outbreaks, ground water contamination, and hazardous 

materials complaints, among others—mitigating issues and ensuring public safety state-wide, 

across its various constituency populations. Beginning his public service career in Santa Clara 

County, CA, in 1989, Michael progressively rose the ranks, holding critical positions at Will and 

DuPage Counties in Illinois. He has been recognized with outstanding employee awards; won 

individual citation honors; and has developed numerous key systems and protocols for food 

safety, day care assessment, multicultural task forces, and intragovernmental communications/ 

alerts systems. Michael spearheaded Gila Counties community response to the COVID-19 

pandemic in 2020, coordinating contact tracing efforts, creating, and implementing streamlined 

vaccination protocols leading Gila County to become the first Local Health Department in the 

US to begin vaccinating the general population of residents.  

Project Coordinator: Stella Gore, Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager 

Stella is an experienced project coordinator with extensive knowledge in public health practices, 

immunizations, and community education. She has more than 5 years of management experience 

with an emphasis on staff oversight and community relations and is proficient in case 

management, contact tracing, client services, and project management. Stella has been critical in 

the Covid-19 response in Gila County through overseeing the team of disease investigators 

responsible for handling all Covid positive cases. She has established strong connections with 

community partners to help support vaccination and other preparedness activities.  
Evaluation Team – Morrison Institute at Arizona State University  

Alison Cook-Davis, PhD, Evaluation Team Lead 

Alison is an Associate Director for Research at Morrison Institute for Public Policy, an applied 

research institute at Arizona State University. Previously, Cook-Davis was Assistant Director for 



11 
 

Program Evaluation within the Arizona State University Office of Evaluation and Educational 

Effectiveness. Within her tenure at ASU, Cook-Davis has led research and evaluation activities 

for over 50 separate grant-funded programs or initiatives focused on the evaluation of student 

success, outreach impacts, innovative learning techniques, and STEM-related interventions and 

curricula. Prior to joining UOEEE, she supported the research and program evaluation efforts of 

Maricopa County Adult Probation Department, coordinated and executed the research and 

program evaluation for a large Department of Justice Second Chance Act grant. These efforts 

included monitoring, assessing, and evaluating the impacts of program outcomes. Cook-Davis 

holds a Master’s degree and Doctorate in Social Psychology from the University of Missouri, 

Columbia. She also earned Master’s in Legal Studies from Arizona State University’s Sandra 

Day O’Connor College of Law. 

Kristi Eustice, MS, Senior Research Analyst  

Kristi Eustice (she/her/hers) is a Senior Research Analyst at Morrison Institute for Public Policy, 

an applied research institute at Arizona State University. In her role, Kristi helps conduct 

research and evaluation projects that inform understanding of key policy issues facing Arizona. 

Key focus areas include development of healthy relationships and reduction of dating violence 

among at-risk youth; civic engagement of young voters; the AZ integrated health care system 

and the intersection mental health, substance use, and homelessness; the disproportionate impact 

of COVID-19 on extreme heat resilience among communities of color; and evaluation of 

community-led initiatives. Kristi joined Morrison Institute in December 2020. Previously, she 

worked as Assistant Director and a Research Analyst for the University Office of Evaluation and 

Educational Effectiveness at ASU. In this role, Kristi led a team of 6 analysts providing 

evaluation and research activities for over 35 grant-funded programs or initiatives related to 

education and community outreach. Additionally, Kristi has experience in project management 

and data handling on a variety of education and psychology-related research projects. Broadly, 

Kristi is interested in applied research that aims to positively impact wellness and quality of life 

in high-risk and underrepresented minority populations.  

 

 

 



12 
 

Appendix E: Gila County Target Population Summary Data   
Gila County* Characteristics N % 
Race+     

White 41,171 76.9% 
Black or African American 375 0.7% 
American Indian or Alaska Native 8,733  16.3% 
Asian 439 0.8% 
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 22 <0.1% 
Two or More races 1,622 3.0% 
Other 1,184 2.2% 

Ethnicity+   
Hispanic or Latino (any race) 10,038 18.7% 
Not Hispanic or Latino  43,508 81.3% 

Household Language Spoken   
Spanish 2,584 11.8% 
Other Indo-European languages 503 2.3% 
Asian and Pacific languages 156 0.7% 
Other languages 1,626 7.4% 

Households  21,945  
More than one occupant per room 875 4.0% 

Insurance Status^     
No Insurance Coverage 5,274 10.0% 

Covid-19 Positivity Rate --- 9.0% 
Fatality Rate 402.5 per 100,000 --- 
Covid-19 Cases by Age   

Less than 20 years 1252 19% 
20 to 44 years 2204 34% 
45 to 54 years 823 13% 
55 to 64 years 993 15% 
65 years and older 1299 20% 

Covid-19 Cases by Race/Ethnicity   
White, Non-Hispanic 2,783 42% 
Hispanic or Latino 630 10% 
Native American 1,381 21% 
Black, Non-Hispanic 35 1% 
Asian/Pacific Islander 9 <1% 
Other, Non-Hispanic  170 3% 
Unknown 1,565 24% 

Covid-19 Deaths by Age N=159++  
Less than 20 years *** *** 
20 to 44 years *** *** 
45 to 54 years *** *** 
55 to 64 years 20 12.6% 
65 years and older 131 82.4% 

*Gila County Population 2019 Census Estimate N=53,546 ; +Data from Census Table, DP05 ; ^Data from Census 
Table, DP03 ; ***Data suppressed due to N<10; ++ Tribal deaths are not included in the age stratification due to data 
being unavailable. A total of 223 deaths have occurred as of 04/12/21.  



1 

Section4. Budget Narrative 
A. Personnel

Provide the following information for the budget narrative and justification: 

Key staff positions are identified and outlined in the table below.  

FEDERAL REQUEST – Personnel Justification 

Position 
(1) 

Name 
(2) 

Key Staff 
(3) 

Annual 
Salary/Rate 

(4) 

Level of 
Effort 

(5) 

Total Salary 
Charge to 

Award 
(6) 

(1) Project
Director/Principal 

Investigator 

Michael 
O’Driscoll Yes $107,000 10% $21,400 

(2) Program
Coordinator

Stella Gore Yes $53,263 20% $21,306 

(3) Administration &
Financial

Management
Debra Blevins Yes $47,980 10% $9,596 

FEDERAL REQUEST (enter in Section B column 1, line 6a of SF-424A) $52,302 

FEDERAL REQUEST – Sample Justification for Personnel 

1. The Project Director will provide oversight of the grant. This position is
responsible for overseeing the implementation of the project activities, internal
and external coordination, reviewing materials, and project goals.

2. The Program Coordinator will serve as the internal point of contact, support grant
activities, including training, communication, and information dissemination.

3. The Administration & Financial management will support budgetary, financial
reporting, payments, and other administrative tasks associated with the grant.

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



2 

B. Fringe Benefits
FEDERAL REQUEST - Fringe Benefits Narrative 

Position 
(1) 

Name 
(2) 

Rate 
(3) 

Total Salary 
Charged to Award 

(4) 

Total Fringe 
Charged to 

Award 
(5) 

(1) Project
Director/Principal 

Investigator 
Michael O’Driscoll 40.00% $21,400 $8,560 

(2) Program
Coordinator <same as above> 40.00% $21,306 $8,522 

(3) Administration
& Financial

Management
<enter name> 

40.00% 
$9,596 

$3,838 

FEDERAL REQUEST (enter in Section B column 1, line 6b of SF-424A) $20,920 

FEDERAL REQUEST – Fringe Benefits Justification 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management’s Fringe benefit rate for full-time 
employees for years one and two is calculated at 40.0%.   

C. Travel

FEDERAL REQUEST – Travel Narrative 

Purpose 
(1) 

Destination 
(2) 

Item 
(3) 

Calculation 
(4) 

Travel Cost Charged to 
the Award 

(5) 
Health Literacy 
Action Planning 

Workshop Travel for 
Sub-Recipients  

Payson, AZ Mileage $.445/mile x 30 
persons x 160 

miles  

$2,136 

Sub-Recipient Bi-
Annual Meeting 
Travel for Sub-

Recipients 

Payson, AZ Mileage $.445/mile x 30 
persons x 160 
miles x 2days 

$4,272 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



3 

Purpose 
(1) 

Destination 
(2) 

Item 
(3) 

Calculation 
(4) 

Travel Cost Charged to 
the Award 

(5) 
Lodging for Health 

Literacy Action 
Planning Workshop 

Payson, AZ Hotel $116/night x 25 
persons x 1 nights 

$2,900 

Sub-awardee Meals 
for Health Literacy 

Action Plan 
Workshop 

Payson, AZ Per Diem 
(meals and 
incidentals) 

$46/day x 30 
persons x 2 day 

$2,760 

Local Travel Various Partner 
Sites Across 
Gila County 

Mileage 2,300 miles x 
$.445/mile x 2 

years 

$2,048 

FEDERAL REQUEST - (enter in Section B column 1, line 6c of SF-424A $14,116 

FEDERAL REQUEST:  Justification for Travel 

1. Sub-awardees (up to 4 members from each partner organization) travel to
Payson, AZ (City in Gila County) for a workshop to develop health impact
statements and health literacy plans in support of the project goal.

2. Local travel is needed to attend local meetings, project activities, and training
events. Local travel rate is based on organization’s policies/procedures for
privately owned vehicle reimbursement rate.

D. Equipment

FEDERAL REQUEST – Equipment Narrative 

Item(s) 
(1) 

Quantity 
(2) 

Amount 
(3) 

% Charged to the 
Award 

(4) 

Total Cost Charged 
to the Award 

(5) 

FEDERAL REQUEST − (enter in Section B column 1, line 6d of SF-424A) $0 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



4 

E. Supplies

The following lists the requested item for supplies (items less than $5000) 

FEDERAL REQUEST – Supplies Narrative 

Item(s) Rate Cost 

General office supplies $80/mo. x 12 mo. $960 

Postage $110/mo. x 12 mo. $1,320 

Copies 12,000 copies x .18/copy $3600 

Computer $1200 x 2 $2400 

Printer $400 x 2 $800 

Projector $300 $300 

FEDERAL REQUEST − (enter in Section B column 1, line 6e of SF-424A) $9,380 

FEDERAL REQUEST – Justification for Supplies 

1. Office supplies, copies and postage are needed for general operations for the
project. Due to the large size of the county and for quality control any materials
developed will be printed centrally and distributed to partners around the county
via courier.

2. Computer, printer and projector will be used to support program staff working on
the grant.

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



5 

F. Contract

The following lists the budgets for each planned sub-award, contract and consultant 
supporting the Advancing Health Literacy Project.  

FEDERAL REQUEST – Contracts Narrative 

Name (1) Service (2) Rate (3) Other Cost (4) 

(1) Health Literacy
Action Plan

Partners 

<Sub-recipient> 

Community 
Partners 

Developing 
Disparity 
Impact 

Statements & 
Health Literacy 

Plans 

$250,000 x 7 partner 
organizations $1,750,000 

(2) Morrison
Institute at Arizona 

State University 

<Contract> 

Evaluators $156,678/ per year 

Travel - $2000.00 

Transcription - $3,938 

Translation - $24,000 

Focus Group/Key 
Informant Interview 

Participant Incentives - 
$15,038 

F&A - $113,766 

$313,356 

(3) Project
Management & 
Health Literacy 

Consultants  

To be announced 

 <Consultant> 

Coordination of 
Partners, 
Meeting 

Facilitation, and 
Ongoing 
Technical 

Assistance for 
Development & 
Implementation 

of Health 
Literacy Action 

Plan 

$135/hr x 2.5 staff 

Meeting Coordination 
& Facilitation 

(workshop and bi-
annual meeting) - 

$18,000 

$298,800 

FEDERAL REQUEST – (enter in Section B column 1, line 6f of-424A) $2,362,156 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



6 

FEDERAL REQUEST –Justification for Contracts 

1. Health Literacy Partners represent healthcare and community organizations
across Gila County who work with vulnerable populations and will support the
grant through the development and implementation of health literacy plans for
their organizations and populations they interact with. This award will support
their efforts to Advance Health Literacy in Gila County.

2. The Morrison Institute Evaluation Team has a long history of working with
vulnerable populations and supporting evaluation in Arizona Communities.
Evaluators will prepare quarterly data summaries for partners, participate in
meetings, and prepare annual summaries for partners. Additionally, the
evaluators were identified due to their being a part of a Minority Serving
Institution as per the grant.

3. Project Management & Health Literacy Consultant Team will supplement the Gila
County staff by outreach, one-on-one check-ins, problem solving with partners,
and facilitation of quarterly check-ins to discuss evaluation summaries with
partners and facilitation of bi-annual partner meetings.

G. Construction

No dollars requested. 

H. Other

FEDERAL REQUEST – Justification for “Other” 

Item Rate Cost 

(1) Other Printed Materials 1.50/item X 10000 items $15,000 

(2) Conference / Meeting
Space for Health
Literacy Action Planning
Workshop & Bi-Annual
Meeting

$200/hr x 50hours $10,000 

FEDERAL REQUEST  (enter in Section B column 1, line 6h of SF-424A) $25,000 

FEDERAL REQUEST – Sample Justification for Other 

1. Brochures will be used at various community functions, such as health fairs and
exhibits.

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



7 

 

2. Conference/Meeting space will be needed to accommodate all Health Literacy 
Workshop (2-days) participants and for the bi-annual (1-day) in-person meeting 
for partners. Utilizing a cost of $200/hr.  
 
 
 

I. Total Direct Charges 

FEDERAL REQUEST – TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES -  Section B column 1, line 6i 
of SF-424A 

$2,557,096 

 

J. Indirect Cost Rate 

 
Calculation 

(1) 
Indirect Cost 

Charged to the 
Award 

(2) 

Organization’s Indirect Cost Rate of 10% (10% of personnel and fringe) $14644 

FEDERAL REQUEST – (enter in Section B column 1, line 6j of-SF-424A) $14,644 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



8 

 

Total proposed project period and federal funding as follows: 
 
Proposed Project Period 

a. Start Date: 07/01/2021 b. End Date: 07/31/2023 
 

BUDGET SUMMARY  

Category Year 1 Year 2* Year 3* Year 4* Year 5* 
Total 
Project 
Costs 

Personnel $40,592 $40,592 $0 $0 $0 $81,184 

Fringe $20,920 $20,920 $0 $0 $0 $41,840 

Travel $9,576 $4,540 $0 $0 $0 $14,116 

Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Supplies $6,440 $2,940 $0 $0 $0 $9,380 

Contractual $1,181,078 $1,181,078 $0 $0 $0 $2,362,156 

Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Other $12,500 $12,500 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 

Total Direct 
Charges $1,270,386 $1,261,850 $0 $0 $0 $2,532,236 

Indirect 
Charges $6151 $6151 $0 $0 $0 $12,302 

Total Project 
Costs $1,276,537 $1,268,001 $0 $0 $0 $2,545,978 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



9 

 

SF-424A 
 SECTION A – BUDGET SUMMARY 

Section A - Budget 
Summary   

 
Grant Program 

Function or 
Activity 

Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance 

Number 

Estimated Unobligated Funds New or Revised Budget 

Federal  Non-Federal  Federal Non-
Federal Total 

 (a) (b) (c ) (d) (e) (f) (g) 

1. 

MP-CPI-21-006 
Advancing Health 
Literacy to 
Enhance 
Equitable 
Community 
Responses to 
COVID-19 

93.137 $2,571,740 $0     $2,571,740 

2.       $0     $0 
3.       $0     $0 
4.       $0     $0 

5. Totals   $2,571,740 $0 $0 $0 $2,571,740 
 

Section B - Budget Categories 

Section B - Budget 
Categories   

6. Object Class Categories 
Grant Program, Function or Activity 

Total (5) 
(1) (2) (3) (4) 

 a.  Personnel $52,302 $52,302 $0 $0 $104,604 
  b.  Fringe Benefits $20,920 $20,920 $0 $0 $41,840 

 c.  Travel $9,576 $4,540 $0 $0 $14,116 
  d.  Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 e.  Supplies $6,440 $2,940 $0 $0 $9,380 
  f.  Contractual $1,181,078 $1,181,078 $0 $0 $2,362,156 

 g.  Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
  h.  Other $12,500 $12,500 $0 $0 $25,000 

 i.  Total Direct Charges (sum 
of 6a-6h) $1,282,816 $1,274,280 $0 $0 $2,557,096 

  j.  Indirect Charges $7,322 $7,322     $14,644 
 k.  Totals (sum of 6i-6j) $1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0 $2,571,740 

  
7. Program Income         $0                 
  

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



10 

 

Section C -  Non-Federal Resources   
         

Section C - Non-Federal Resources   
 (a) Grant Program (b) Applicant (c) State (d) Other 

Sources (e) Totals 

8.   $0 $0 $0 $0 

9.         $0 

10.         $0 

11.         $0 

12. Total (sum of lines 8 - 11) $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

Section D – Forecasted Cash Needs  

Section D - Forecasted Cash Needs   

  Total for 1st Year 1st Quarter 2nd 
Quarter 

3rd 
Quarter 4th quarter 

13. Federal $1,290,138 $510,903 $383,177 $305,062 $97,147 

14. Non-Federal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

15. Total (sum of lines 13 and 14) $1,290,138 $510,903 $383,177 $305,062 $97,147 

 

Section E – Budget Estimates of Federal Funds Needed for Balance of the Project 

Section E - Budget Estimates of Federal Funds Needed for 
Balance of the Project   

(a) Grant Program 
Future Funding Periods (Years) 

(b) First (c ) Second (d) Third (e) Fourth 

16. MP-CPI-21-006, Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance 
Equitable Community Responses to Covid-19 $1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0 

17.           

18.           

19.           

20. Total (sum of lines 16-19) $1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0 

 

Section F – Other Budget Information 

Section F - Other Budget Information   
21. Direct Charges $2,557,096 22. Indirect Charges $14,644 
23. Remarks:  
  
  

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006



11 

 

2. Oversight  
Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management has robust systems in place to 
adhere to all Gila County Financial and Procurement Policies and Controls. A copy of 
the BOS-FIN-113 is provided on the next page.  

 

Program incentives will be provided by the Minority Serving Institution Partner, Morrison 
Institute at Arizona State University. Documentation regarding the distribution and 
payment of the incentives will be required by the Gila County Team. Arizona State 
University Financial Controls can be found here: https://cfo.asu.edu/financial-controls. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Budget Narrative for MP-CPI-21-006

https://cfo.asu.edu/financial-controls




































































Page 1 of 3

Gila County Public Health & Emergency Management Award Number:

Federal Non-Federal Federal Non-Federal Total

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e) (f) (g)
1. MP-CPI-21-006 93.137 $2,571,740 $0 $2,571,740
2. $0 $0
3. $0 $0
4. $0 $0
5. Totals $2,571,740 $0 $0 $0 $2,571,740

(1) (2) (3) (4)

$52,302 $52,302 $0 $0 $104,604
$20,920 $20,920 $0 $0 $41,840

$9,576 $4,540 $0 $0 $14,116

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$6,440 $2,940 $0 $0 $9,380

$1,181,078 $1,181,078 $0 $0 $2,362,156

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$12,500 $12,500 $0 $0 $25,000

$1,282,816 $1,274,280 $0 $0 $2,557,096

$7,322 $7,322 $14,644

$1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0 $2,571,740

7. $0

SF-424A (Rev. 4-92) 

(b) Applicant (c ) State (d) Other Sources (e) Totals

8. $0 $0 $0 $0

9. $0

10. $0

11. $0

12. $0 $0 $0 $0

Total for 1st Year 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th quarter

13. $1,290,138 $510,903 $383,177 $305,062 $97,147

14. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0Non-Federal

Total (sum of lines 8 - 11)

Applicant Name:

Budget Information - Non Construction Programs
OMB Approval No. 0348-0044

New or Revised Budget
Section A - Budget Summary

i.  Total Direct Charges (sum of 6a-6h)

Grant Program, Function or Activity
Object Class Categories

Authorized for Local Reproduction

h.  Other

a.  Personnel

b.  Fringe Benefits

c.  Travel

d.  Equipment

6.

j.  Indirect Charges

k.  Totals (sum of 6i-6j)

Program Income

Total (5)

f.  Contractual

g.  Construction

Section B - Budget Categories

Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance Number

Grant Program Function or 
Activity

Estimated Unobligated Funds

e.  Supplies

Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102Previous Edition Usable

(a) Grant Program
Section C - Non-Federal Resources

Section D - Forecasted Cash Needs

Federal



Page 2 of 3

15. $1,290,138 $510,903 $383,177 $305,062 $97,147

(b) First (c ) Second (d) Third (e) Fourth

16. $1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0

17.

18.

19.

20. $1,290,138 $1,281,602 $0 $0

21. Direct Charges 22. Indirect Charges

23.  Remarks

SF-424A (Rev. 4-92) 
              Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102

Section F - Other Budget Information

Future Funding Periods (Years)

Total (sum of lines 13 and 14)

Total (sum of lines 16-19)

(a) Grant Program

MP-CPI-21-006

Section E - Budget Estimates of Federal Funds Needed for Balance of the Project

Previous Edition Usable
Authorized for Local Reproduction

$14,644$2,557,096

Instructions for the SF-424A 
 
Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 3.0 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and 
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Please do not return your completed form to the Office of Management and Budget; send it to the address 
provided by the sponsoring agency. 
 
General Instructions 

This form is designed so that application can be made for funds from one or more grant 
programs. In preparing the budget, adhere to any existing Federal grantor agency 
guidelines which prescribe how and whether budgeted amounts should be separately 
shown for different functions or activities within the program. For some programs, grantor 
agencies may require budgets to be separately shown by function or activity. For other 
programs, grantor agencies may require a breakdown by function or activity. Sections A, 
B, C, and D should include budget estimates for the whole project except when applying 
for assistance which requires Federal authorization in annual or other funding period 
increments. In the later case, Sections A, B, C, and D should provide the budget for the 
first budget period (usually a year) and Section E should present the need for Federal 
assistance in the subsequent budget periods. All applications should contain a 
breakdown by the object class categories shown in Lines a-k of Section B. 
 
Section A. Budget Summary Lines 1-4 Columns (a) and (b) 
For applications pertaining to a single Federal grant program (Federal Domestic 
Assistance Catalog number) and not requiring a functional or activity breakdown, enter 
on Line 1 under Column (a) the catalog program title and the catalog number in Column 
(b). 
 
For applications pertaining to a single program requiring budget amounts by 
multiple functions or activities, enter the name of each activity or function on each line in 
Column (a), and enter the catalog number in Column (b). For applications pertaining to 
multiple programs where none of the programs require a breakdown by function or 
activity, enter the catalog program title on each line in Column (a) and the respective 
catalog number on each line in Column (b). 
For applications pertaining to multiple programs where one or more programs 
require a breakdown by function or activity, prepare a separate sheet for each 
program requiring the breakdown. Additional sheets should be used when one form does 
not provide adequate space for all breakdown of data required. However, when more 
than one sheet is used, the first page should provide the summary totals by programs. 
 
Lines 1-4, Columns (c) through (g) 
 
For new applications, leave Columns (c) and (d) blank. For each line entry in 
Columns (a) and (b), enter in Columns (e), (f), and (g) the appropriate amounts of funds 
needed to support the project for the first funding period (usually a year). 

 
For continuing grant program applications, submit these forms before the end of 
each funding period as required by the grantor agency. Enter in Columns (c) and (d) the 
estimated amounts of funds which will remain unobligated at the end of the grant funding 
period only if the Federal grantor agency instructions provide for this. Otherwise, leave 
these columns blank. Enter in columns (e) and (f) the amounts of funds needed for the 
upcoming period. The amount(s) in Column (g) should be the sum of amounts in 
Columns (e) and (f). 
 
For supplemental grants and changes to existing grants, do not use Columns (c) 
and (d). Enter in Column (e) the amount of the increase or decrease of Federal funds 
and enter in Column (f) the amount of the increase or decrease of non-Federal funds. In 
Column (g) enter the new total budgeted amount (Federal and non-Federal) which 
includes the total previous authorized budgeted amounts plus or minus, as appropriate, 
the amounts shown in Columns (e) and (f). The amount(s) in Column (g) should not 
equal the sum of amounts in Columns (e) and (f). 
 
Line 5—Show the totals for all columns used. 
 
Section B. Budget Categories 

In the column headings (a) through (4), enter the titles of the same programs, 
functions, and activities shown on Lines 1-4, Column (a), Section A. When 
additional sheets are prepared for Section A, provide similar column headings on each 
sheet. For each program, function or activity, fill in the total requirements for funds (both 
Federal and non-Federal) by object class categories. 
 
Lines 6a-i—Show the totals of Lines 6a to 6h in each column. 
 
Line 6j—Show the amount of indirect cost. 
 
Line 6k—Enter the total of amounts on Lines 6i and 6j. For all applications for new 
grants and continuation grants the total amount in column (5), Line 6k, should be the 
same as the total amount shown in Section A, Column (g), Line 5. For supplemental 
grants and changes to grants, the total amount of the increase or decrease as shown in 
Columns (1)-(4), Line 6k should be the same as the sum of the amounts in Section A, 
Columns (e) and (f) on Line 5. 
Line 7—Enter the estimated amount of income, if any, expected to be generated from 
this project. Do not add or subtract this amount from the total project amount. Show 
under the program narrative statement the nature and source of income. The estimated 
amount of program income may be considered by the federal grantor agency in 
determining the total amount of the grant. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          SF-424A (Rev. 4-92 
Previous Edition Usable                                                                                                                                   Authorized for Local Reproduction                                                                                                                   Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 
 



Page 3 of 3

Instructions for the SF-424A 
 
Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 3.0 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and 
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Please do not return your completed form to the Office of Management and Budget; send it to the address 
provided by the sponsoring agency. 
 
General Instructions 

This form is designed so that application can be made for funds from one or more grant 
programs. In preparing the budget, adhere to any existing Federal grantor agency 
guidelines which prescribe how and whether budgeted amounts should be separately 
shown for different functions or activities within the program. For some programs, grantor 
agencies may require budgets to be separately shown by function or activity. For other 
programs, grantor agencies may require a breakdown by function or activity. Sections A, 
B, C, and D should include budget estimates for the whole project except when applying 
for assistance which requires Federal authorization in annual or other funding period 
increments. In the later case, Sections A, B, C, and D should provide the budget for the 
first budget period (usually a year) and Section E should present the need for Federal 
assistance in the subsequent budget periods. All applications should contain a 
breakdown by the object class categories shown in Lines a-k of Section B. 
 
Section A. Budget Summary Lines 1-4 Columns (a) and (b) 
For applications pertaining to a single Federal grant program (Federal Domestic 
Assistance Catalog number) and not requiring a functional or activity breakdown, enter 
on Line 1 under Column (a) the catalog program title and the catalog number in Column 
(b). 
 
For applications pertaining to a single program requiring budget amounts by 
multiple functions or activities, enter the name of each activity or function on each line in 
Column (a), and enter the catalog number in Column (b). For applications pertaining to 
multiple programs where none of the programs require a breakdown by function or 
activity, enter the catalog program title on each line in Column (a) and the respective 
catalog number on each line in Column (b). 
For applications pertaining to multiple programs where one or more programs 
require a breakdown by function or activity, prepare a separate sheet for each 
program requiring the breakdown. Additional sheets should be used when one form does 
not provide adequate space for all breakdown of data required. However, when more 
than one sheet is used, the first page should provide the summary totals by programs. 
 
Lines 1-4, Columns (c) through (g) 
 
For new applications, leave Columns (c) and (d) blank. For each line entry in 
Columns (a) and (b), enter in Columns (e), (f), and (g) the appropriate amounts of funds 
needed to support the project for the first funding period (usually a year). 

 
For continuing grant program applications, submit these forms before the end of 
each funding period as required by the grantor agency. Enter in Columns (c) and (d) the 
estimated amounts of funds which will remain unobligated at the end of the grant funding 
period only if the Federal grantor agency instructions provide for this. Otherwise, leave 
these columns blank. Enter in columns (e) and (f) the amounts of funds needed for the 
upcoming period. The amount(s) in Column (g) should be the sum of amounts in 
Columns (e) and (f). 
 
For supplemental grants and changes to existing grants, do not use Columns (c) 
and (d). Enter in Column (e) the amount of the increase or decrease of Federal funds 
and enter in Column (f) the amount of the increase or decrease of non-Federal funds. In 
Column (g) enter the new total budgeted amount (Federal and non-Federal) which 
includes the total previous authorized budgeted amounts plus or minus, as appropriate, 
the amounts shown in Columns (e) and (f). The amount(s) in Column (g) should not 
equal the sum of amounts in Columns (e) and (f). 
 
Line 5—Show the totals for all columns used. 
 
Section B. Budget Categories 

In the column headings (a) through (4), enter the titles of the same programs, 
functions, and activities shown on Lines 1-4, Column (a), Section A. When 
additional sheets are prepared for Section A, provide similar column headings on each 
sheet. For each program, function or activity, fill in the total requirements for funds (both 
Federal and non-Federal) by object class categories. 
 
Lines 6a-i—Show the totals of Lines 6a to 6h in each column. 
 
Line 6j—Show the amount of indirect cost. 
 
Line 6k—Enter the total of amounts on Lines 6i and 6j. For all applications for new 
grants and continuation grants the total amount in column (5), Line 6k, should be the 
same as the total amount shown in Section A, Column (g), Line 5. For supplemental 
grants and changes to grants, the total amount of the increase or decrease as shown in 
Columns (1)-(4), Line 6k should be the same as the sum of the amounts in Section A, 
Columns (e) and (f) on Line 5. 
Line 7—Enter the estimated amount of income, if any, expected to be generated from 
this project. Do not add or subtract this amount from the total project amount. Show 
under the program narrative statement the nature and source of income. The estimated 
amount of program income may be considered by the federal grantor agency in 
determining the total amount of the grant. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          SF-424A (Rev. 4-92 
Previous Edition Usable                                                                                                                                   Authorized for Local Reproduction                                                                                                                   Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 
 

Section C. Non-Federal Resources 
 
Lines 8-11—Enter amounts of non-Federal resources that will be used on the 
grant. If in-kind contributions are included, provide a brief explanation on a 
separate sheet. 
 
Column (a)—Enter the program titles identical to Column (a), Section A. A 
breakdown by function or activity is not necessary. 
 
Column (b)—Enter the contribution to be made by the applicant. 
 
Column (c)—Enter the amount of the State's cash and in-kind contribution if 
the applicant is not a State or State agency. Applicants which are a State or 
State agencies should leave this column blank. 
 
Column (d)—Enter the amount of cash and in-kind contributions to be made 
from all other sources. 
 
Column (e)—Enter totals of Columns (b), (c), and (d). 
 
Line 12—Enter the total for each of Columns (b)-(e). The amount in Column (e) 
should be equal to the amount on Line 5, Column (f) Section A. 
 
Section D. Forecasted Cash Needs 
 
Line 13—Enter the amount of cash needed by quarter from the grantor agency 
during the first year. 
 
Line 14—Enter the amount of cash from all other sources needed by quarter 
during the first year. 
 
Line 15—Enter the totals of amounts on Lines 13 and 14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section E. Budget Estimates of Federal Funds Needed for Balance of the 
Project 
 
Lines 16-19—Enter in Column (a) the same grant program titles shown in 
Column 
(a), Section A. A breakdown by function or activity is not necessary. For new 
applications and continuation grant applications, enter in the proper columns 
amounts of Federal funds which will be needed to complete the program or 
project over the succeeding funding periods (usually in years). This section 
need not be completed for revisions (amendments, changes, or supplements) to 
funds for the current year of existing grants. 
If more than four lines are needed to list the program titles, submit additional 
schedules as necessary. 
 
Line 20—Enter the total for each of the Columns (b)-(e). When additional 
schedules are prepared for this Section, annotate accordingly and show the 
overall totals on this line. 
 
Section F. Other Budget Information 
 
Line 21—Use this space to explain amounts for individual direct object-class 
cost categories that may appear to be out of the ordinary or to explain the 
details as required by the Federal grantor agency. 
 
Line 22—Enter the type of indirect rate (provisional, predetermined, final or 
fixed) that will be in effect during the funding period, the estimated amount of 
the base to which the rate is applied, and the total indirect expense. 
 
Line 23—Provide any other explanations or comments deemed necessary. 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          SF-424A (Rev. 4-92 
Previous Edition Usable                                                                                                                                   Authorized for Local Reproduction                                                                                                                   Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 
 



   
ARF-6814   Regular Agenda Item     4. H.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Health & Emergency Management
Fiscal Year: 2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09-07-21 to 09-06-22 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 071921 Sub-Grantee for
Project Management (Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance
Community Equitable Responses to COVID-19).

Background Information
As part of President Biden’s National Strategy for the COVID-19 Response
and Pandemic Preparedness today, the Administration is announcing an
effort to invest $250 million to encourage COVID-19 safety and
vaccination among underserved populations. The U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS) Office of Minority Health (OMH) will
offer the funding as health literacy grants to localities, who will partner
with community-based organizations, to reach racial and ethnic minority,
rural, and other vulnerable populations. The new initiative is expected to
fund approximately 30 projects in urban communities and 43 projects in
rural communities for two years. Recipients are expected to develop a
disparity impact statement using local data to identify underserved
populations at the highest risk for health disparities, low health literacy,
and not being engaged or reached through existing public health
messages and approaches for promoting COVID-19 public health
recommendations. They will create and put into action a health literacy
plan, partnering with community-based organizations and adhering to
culturally and linguistically appropriate standards, to increase the
availability, acceptability, and use of COVID-19 public health information
and services by underserved populations and others considered
vulnerable for not receiving and using COVID-19 public health information.



The Gila County Health Department was notified about this grant
opportunity on March 15th, 2021 by Senator Sinema's office. After
reaching out to our consultant list, ASU and U of A, and our local
stakeholders the decision was made to complete an expedited contract for
the May 20, 2021 application deadline. The grant opportunity allows for
73 awards of up to 3 million dollars each. The Gila County application is
for $2,571,740 with no match required. This sum includes $1,750,000 in
mini-grant for local Gila County organizations. The anticipated grant
period will be July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2023.

On June 1, 2021, The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the
application for the Health Literacy Initiative; addressing COVID-19
Pandemic in Gila County's underserved communities grant.

On July 1, 2021, The Department of Health & Human Services Office of
Minority Health signed the disposition letter of approval awarding Gila
County an award in the amount of $2,571,740 for the period of July 1,
2021, through June 30, 2023. Gila County was officially notified on July
15, 2021, of the award letter.

The Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division is seeking
a consultant team to provide grant management services, including
subgrantee awards, evaluation, fiscal tracking, and implementation
support for the Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Equitable
Community Response to Covid-19 grant received from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services Office of Minority Health
(OMH). The main objectives of the grant are to improve organizational and
individual health literacy and connect with vulnerable populations
through established partnerships that include healthcare, fire and
emergency responders, senior centers, and other community-based
organizations.

Evaluation
The Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division will utilize
the funding in coordination with the awarded contractor to address health
literacy in the underserved populations of Gila County in partnership with
Banner Payson Medical Center, Canyonlands Healthcare, Horizon Health
& Wellness, Arizona Youth Partnership, Town of Miami - Senior Center,
and the Town of Payson Fire Department. Project partners will work to
address the following objectives: (1) Address barriers to accurate and
reliable health information during the COVID-19 pandemic, (2) Apply
health literacy and plain language principles to improve communication
and understanding among vaccine-hesitant and vulnerable populations,
and (3) Identify, disseminate or develop COVID-19 resources and



and (3) Identify, disseminate or develop COVID-19 resources and
responses to meet the literacy, language, and cultural needs of diverse
audiences through the development of health impact statements and
health literacy action plans.

Conclusion
To meet grant requirements, Gila County is seeking a consultant team to
provide grant management services, including subgrantee awards,
evaluation, fiscal tracking, and implementation support for the Advancing
Health Literacy to Enhance Equitable Community Response to Covid-19
grant received from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Minority Health (OMH). The main objectives of the grant are to
improve organizational and individual health literacy and connect with
vulnerable populations through established partnerships that include
healthcare, fire and emergency responders, senior centers, and other
community-based organizations.
 
Upon approval from the Board of Supervisors, the advertisement for
Request for Proposals No. 071921-Sub-Grantee for Project Management
(Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Community Equitable
Responses to COVID-19) will run on July 28, 2021, and August 4, 2021,
editions of the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper with a proposal due date of
September 2, 2021.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health and
Emergency Management Director that the Board of Supervisors
authorizes the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 071921 - 
Sub-Grantee for Project Management (Advancing Health Literacy to
Enhance Community Equitable Responses to COVID-19) to be
published for two consecutive weeks in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Proposals No. 071921 - Sub-Grantee for Project Management
(Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Community Equitable
Responses to COVID-19). (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Request for Proposal No. 071921





  

Bids  Proposals X
     

      

 
FUNDING PROJECTS:

Fund 1008 Dept No. 404 Program Location Account

INTENT

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

EXHIBIT "H"

GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one

 Sub-grantee forProject Management (Advancing Health 

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Request Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifications attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

 

 

 

 

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish a contract with a contractor to assist with our health literacy response to the current COVID-19 pandemic.

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4210.4

 

 

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Health & Emergency Management

Department Head Signature 7/19/2021



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 0 
 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 071921 
 
 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO 
ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19) 

 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 

Steve Christenson, Vice Chairman 
Woody Cline, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 071921 

SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE 
RESPONSES TO COVID-19) 

 
Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a program for 
Sub-Grantee for Project Manager (Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Community Equitable Responses to COVID-
19).  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      11:00 AM, MST, August 11, 2021 
 
RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  

    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be received 
by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than the 
date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The prevailing 
clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 071921 package and 
shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-402-
4355 or by clicking on the link: http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php 
and downloading the file.  Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, Contracts 
Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive any 
informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All procurement 
activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila County Procurement 
Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: July 28, 2021, and August 4, 2021 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 4-5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-7 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 6 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 6 
 Submittal Bid Format ................................................................................................................................ 7 

General Terms and Conditions ................................................................................................................ 7-9 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................... 9 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement .................................................................................................... 9 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations .......................................................................................................... 9 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 10 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 10 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 10 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 10 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 10 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 10 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 11 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 11 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 12-13 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 14-15 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 14 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ............................................................................................................... 14 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................................ 15 
Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 16-17 

Price Sheet ............................................................................................................................................... 18 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 19 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 20 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….21 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 22 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 23 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………24 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 25 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 26 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 27 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 3 
 

 
INTENT 

                               
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Sub-Grantee for Project Manager (Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance 

Community Equitable Responses to COVID-19) 
 

INTENT: 

 
Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Management is seeking a consultant team to provide grant 
management services, including subgrantee awards, evaluation, fiscal tracking, and implementation support 
for the Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Equitable Community Response to Covid-19 grant received from 
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of Minority Health (OMH). The main objectives of 
the grant are to improve organizational and individual health literacy and connect with vulnerable populations 
through established partnerships that include healthcare, fire and emergency responders, senior centers, and 
other community-based organizations. 
 
 

 
 

For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 4 
 

SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
The Contractor shall:  
 
Subgrantee Awards 

● Partner with Gila County organizations, which may include, healthcare, fire and emergency 

responders, senior centers, and other community-based organizations to connect with vulnerable 

populations. 

● Award mini grants for up to $250,000 per partner for a total of 1.75 million dollars for the grant period 

of July 2021 to June 2023.  

● Work with project partners to address the following grant objectives: 

○  (1) Address barriers to accurate and reliable health information during the Covid-19 

pandemic,  

○ (2) Apply health literacy and plain language principles to improve communication and 

understanding among vaccine hesitant and vulnerable populations, and  

○ (3) Identify, disseminate or develop Covid-19 resources and responses to meet the literacy, 

language, and cultural needs of diverse audiences through the development of health impact 

statements and health literacy action plans. 

Evaluation Services 
● Partner with a Minority Serving Institution Partner to provide evaluation & quality improvement as 

prescribed by OMH to include the following: 

○ Monitor community Covid-19 vaccination, testing and outcomes data (stratified by 

demographics) along with quarterly data submitted by partners.  

○ Prepare quarterly data summaries to facilitate quarterly reviews with partners to assess data 

reporting/tracking, trends, data-driven recommendations (consideration for data stratified by 

demographic characteristics), and other opportunities to better target populations in the 

health impact statements. 

Implementation Support 
● Work directly with Gila County in all aspects of strategy and implementation. 

● Attend and participate in any required Gila County and OMH training and meetings. 

● Perform partner outreach and regular check-ins with all partners (individually and/or as a large group) 

to discuss progress and problem solve 

● Coordinate and facilitate bi-annual partner meeting, including meeting space and printed materials 

● Collaborate with ASU Morrison Institute of Public Policy as grant evaluators to ensure timely data 

reporting 

● Support project partner development and implementation of Health Impact Statements and Health 

Literacy Action Plans in alignment with CLAS Standards and OMH Requirements. 

● Provide technical assistance and subject-matter expertise in: 

○ Grants management  

○ Data management and reporting  

○ Health Literacy, including strategy implementation & plan development 

○ CLAS Standards 

○ Lean/Quality Improvement & Performance Management 

○ Community collaboration and capacity building    

○ Policy Development 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 5 
 

Financial Management:  
● Follow federal grant fiscal accounting practices 

● Develop, prepare, and finalize budget adjustments and associated narratives for submission. 

● Review and approve grant expenditures and oversee compliance related to grant funds.  

● Maintain quarterly reconciliations and reviews of accounts and transactions. 

● Manage pre- and post-award accounting and reporting, and complete ongoing monitoring of 

compliance with required deliverables.  

● Support the preparation and submission of quarterly SF-425 Federal Financial Reports. 

Deliverables:  
The Contractor shall:  

● Coordinate and facilitate bi-annual meetings with project partners 

● Prepare and submit timely required narrative and financial reports and project updates using the 

standard reporting forms. 

● Prepare and submit grant data reports in collaboration with evaluators.  

● Updates to the grants program officer and other key project personnel as required. 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

● Master’s degree in Public Health  

● Bi-lingual, Spanish - English  

● Extensive experience with grants management 

● Strong track record of managing people, processes, and timelines   

● Strong background supporting organizations with strategic development of plans supporting a 

common goal and alignment with desired outcomes 

● Experience working with partner organizations to understand and implement health literacy strategies 

and CLAS Standards 

● Lean, Quality Improvement, and Performance Management experience with Government and 

Healthcare Organizations 

 
PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: 
A concise proposal narrative based on the following weighted criteria: 
 
Description of Organization 
 
Key Staff Qualifications and Resume/CV outlining experience in the administration, implementation, and 
evaluation of health literacy programs, grant management, community partnerships, Public Health experience, 
and experience working in Gila County. 
 
Examination 

Experience successfully supporting similar projects 40 points 

Experience and capability of principal applicant and key personnel 30 points 

The proposal indicates a clear understanding of the project and is appropriate to the charge 20 

points 

The budget is appropriate for the scope of work submitted 10 points 

 

 Total 100 points 
                                                                       



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 6 
 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Sub-Grantee for Project 

Manager (Advancing Health Literacy to Enhance Community Equitable Responses to COVID-19).   

 

See page 18 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.   

 
The county will use the proposal and qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to 
perform the scope of services as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and 
submit the price sheet and signature and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for 
automatic disqualification of the Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 7 
 

F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 
will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 25. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Thursday, August 5, 2021 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 
binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 8 
 

2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 
place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 

 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 
 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “SUB-GRANTEE FOR 
PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19)”, Proposal No., “071921”, Date “August 11, 2021”, and time “11:00 AM” of proposal opening shall 
be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location 
designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 
failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 9 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 
 
A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 16 through 
27. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.   
Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to the county inclusive, but not limited 
to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the Contractor. 

 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 10 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 

the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 
 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  
 
 The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be requested by other parties of said active purchasing 
agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase supplies, equipment, and services provided by the 
Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and  
 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 11 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 

 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.   
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law 
or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, 
rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 
instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be 
indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor will be responsible 
for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
 
 
 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 12 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 

Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 

A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 
not less than those stated below. 

 
1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
3. Automobile Liability 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 13 
 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 
shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 
commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 14 
 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide SUB-
GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE 
RESPONSES TO COVID-19) for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 
submitted at time of bid opening. 

1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 16-17) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 18) 
1.3.4 References List (page 19) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 20) 
1.3.6 Certification of Debarment (page 21) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 22) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 23) 
1.3.9 Israel Boycott Certification (page 24) 
1.3.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 25) 
1.3.11 Offer Page (page 26) 
1.3.12 Acceptance of Offer (page 27) 

 
 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

1.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 15 
 

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from the 
date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) 
year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the request for proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the request for proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 16 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 071921 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO 
ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19) 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 17 
 

 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 
A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 18 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 071921 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT 
MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19).   
 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 
 

 
COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 19 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 20 
 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING 
HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19), RFP NO. 071921 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2021. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 21 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 22 
 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 071921 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER 
(ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19), my 
intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 
     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
     NO,  it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 23 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 24 
 

 
ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 

 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may 
result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 
 
 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
       

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 25 
 

 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2021 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the 
following statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 071921 SUB-
GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE 
RESPONSES TO COVID-19).  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the 
Copper Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before, December 18, 2021, by 3:00 PM. 

 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 26 
 

 
 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  071921 SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO 
ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO COVID-19) 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RFP NO. 071921/SUB-GRANTEE FOR PROJECT MANAGER (ADVANCING HEALTH LITERACY TO ENHANCE COMMUNITY EQUITABLE RESPONSES TO 
COVID-19) Page 27 
 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 071921, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 071921. The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________,                    . 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:     
 
 
         
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman, Board of Supervisors    
 
 
ATTEST:         
         
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

 



   
ARF-6798   Regular Agenda Item     4. I.     
Special BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/27/2021  
Submitted For: Tim Humphrey, Board of Supervisors-District 2 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager/Librarian
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 2

Information
Request/Subject
Discussion regarding creating a reward program for reporting illegal
dumping.

Background Information
There is a large and serious issue with illegal dumping on private, state,
and federal lands. One idea that has been brought forward that has been
used in other areas such as Sacramento is to create a reward program for
reporting illegal dumping.

Evaluation
It would be beneficial for the Board of Supervisors to receive information
regarding the potential barriers, impacts and benefits regarding the
creation of a reward program for reporting illegal dumping.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion regarding the creation of a reward program for
reporting illegal dumping. (Tim Humphrey)

Attachments
Reward for Reporting Illegal Dumping



Gila County 
Illegal Dumping 
Reward Program
Supervisor Humphrey 



Project Goals

 Reduce the amount of trash illegally dumped in our outdoor spaces.

 Reward citizens for reporting illegal dumping.

 Clean up our communities and surrounding areas.

 Discourage illegal dumping by placing signage and potentially game 
cameras in the most utilized dumping areas.



Example

 The City of Sacramento California implements a reward program to 
reduce illegal dumping of trash, furniture and old appliances. They 
have a dedicated telephone line as well as a web page for citizens to 
use to report an illegal dumping incident.

 If citizens witness the dumping or have information that leads to an 
arrest or citation of the violator, they may be eligible for a reward. 

-for more info…List location or contact for specification (or other related documents)



Potential Guidelines for Reward Program
 Upon receipt of the information, staff will investigate.

 In order for report to be reward eligible, a sworn statement from the reporting citizen(s) would be required and would 
be collected by County Code Enforcement Officer or Sheriff’s Deputy.

 Other factors determining eligibility for reward could be:

– If the information furnished directly led to a citation or arrest of the violator without need for further investigation.

– If the information furnished included the name, physical description, or other information about the identity of the 
violator sufficient to lead law enforcement to be able to cite or arrest the violator.

– If photographs provided by the citizen(s) making the report, or other evidence of the violation is provided which 
leads law enforcement directly to the violator.

– Whether other information is provided that proves to be a significant factor in the citing or arrest of the violator.

– Staff investigating the incident will make a recommendation to Board of Supervisors or County Manager regarding 
issuance of reward.



Potential Limits on Issuance
– Recipients must be 18 years of age. In the event the witness is a minor, the reward should 

be furnished to the minor’s parents and/or legal guardian.

– Only one reward to be paid out per person, per incident. If the same person furnished two 
or more pieces of information that led to the citation or arrest and conviction of a violator, 
this should not result in the issuance of additional rewards.

– In the event that one or more persons furnish identical information leading to the citation 
or arrest and conviction of violator, as determined by staff, the reward should be evenly 
divided among those persons.

– In an effort to ensure sufficient funds are available and encourage as many different 
members of the public as possible to be “vigilant” about illegal dumping issues, there 
should be a limit of the number of rewards  or partial rewards payable to any single 
person each calendar year.      



Potential Persons Ineligible for Reward
 Those persons, including members or their families who are determined by Law Enforcement or Code 

Enforcement to have in any way committed, participated, encouraged, allowed or facilitated the illegal 
dumping to occur.

 County Code Enforcement personnel.

 Law Enforcement.

 Private citizens responsible for enforcement or regulations, monitoring and/or maintaining property and 
other areas, including property managers, maintenance staff and similar personnel. 

 The property owner or occupant whose property was used as the illegal dumping site in the incident. 



Questions?


	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Senator Mark Kelly's Introduction
	 Item 3.A. - CUPP2102-001 Auxier
	Att1_Auxier House Plans
	Att2_Auxier Staff Report
	Att3_Auxier Application Material
	Att4_Auxier Legal Ad
	 Item 3.B. - CPA2103-001, REZONP2103-001 and P2105-067 Canyon River Ranch
	Att1_Ordinance No. 2021-02
	Att2_Canyon River Legal Ad
	Att3_Canyon River CPA and Rezoning Applications
	Att4_Canyon River - Rezoning Narrative
	Att5_Canyon River - CPA Narrative
	Att6_Reversion to Acreage Application Materials
	Att7_Canyon River Development Plan
	Att8_Parcel Maps
	Att9_Canyon River Staff Report
	Att10_Applicant Presentation
	 Item 4.A. - Redistricting Discussion
	Att1_Redistricting Presentation
	 Item 4.B. - Update on the Proposed Cobre Valley Regional Aquatic Center
	Att1_Aquatic Center Presentation 
	Att2_Aquatic Center Community Information and Timeline
	Att3_Income and Expense Report Aquatic Center
	Att4_Aquatic Center Architect Amenity Building 
	 Item 4.C. - Agreement for E-Rates Services for Gila County Information Education Technology Consortium
	Att1_Agreement for E-Rate Services
	 Item 4.D. - Approval of E-Rate Services for Library District
	Att1_Agreement for E-Rate Services
	 Item 4.E. - Memorandum of Understanding, Gila County Housing Authority and the Gila County Homeless Task Force
	Att1_Memorandum of Understanding
	Att2_HUD notification
	 Item 4.F. - Special Use Permit from USDA Forest Service for the Pleasant Valley Admin Site_Tonto National Forest
	Att1_Special Use Permit
	Att2_PV Admin Site Operating Plan
	Att3_PV Admin Site Presentation
	 Item 4.G. - Award approval for the Health Literacy Initiative_ addressing COVID-19 Pandemic in Gila County's underserved communities grant
	Att1_Disposition Letter
	Att2_Notice of Award
	Att3_Section 1-3 Grant proposal 
	Att4_Section 4_ Narrative 
	Section4. Budget Narrative

	Att5_Budget
	 Item 4.H. - Advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 071921 Sub-Grantee for Project Management 
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_Request for Proposal No. 071921
	 Item 4.I. - Discussion regarding creating a reward program for reporting illegal dumping
	Att1_Reward for Reporting Illegal Dumping
	Gila County �Illegal Dumping �Reward Program
	Project Goals
	Example
	Potential Guidelines for Reward Program
	Potential Limits on Issuance
	Potential Persons Ineligible for Reward
	Questions?



{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }

